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PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA
Tuesday, April 19, 2016
Breckenridge Council Chambers
150 Ski Hill Road

7:00pm Call To Order Of The April 19 Planning Commission Meeting; 7:00 P.M. Roll Call
Location Map 2
Approval Of Minutes 4

Approval Of Agenda

7:05pm Consent Calendar
1. Shock Hill Cottages #4 (CK) PL-2016-0097; 24 Regent Drive 15
7:15pm Other Decisions
1. Marriott Residence Inn Signage (MM) PL-2016-0080; 600 South Ridge Street 23
7:30pm Worksessions
1. Breckenridge Water Treatment Building (MM) 27
8:30pm Preliminary Hearings
1. McAdoo Corner Lot 5 Mixed Use (MM) PL-2016-0048; 209 South Ridge Street 53
9:30pm Combined Hearings
1. Gondola Lots Development Master Plan (MM) PL-2016-0003; 320 and 350 North Park 73
Avenue
2. Peak 8 Ski Hill Road Reconstruction and PMA Variance (MM) PL-2016-0082; 1627 Ski Hill 110
Road

11:30pm Adjournment

For further information, please contact the Planning Department at 970/453-3160.

*The indicated times are intended only to be used as guides. The order of projects, as well as the length of the
discussion for each project, is at the discretion of the Commission. We advise you to be present at the beginning of
the meeting regardless of the estimated times.
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PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING
The meeting was called to order at 7:00 pm

ROLL CALL
Ron Schuman Dan Schroder Gretchen Dudney
Christie Mathews-Leidal Jim Lamb Dave Pringle

Mike Giller was absent.
There was no Town Council Liaison present due to today’s election.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Mr. Schuman: On page 4 of the packet, under the approval of minutes (for March 1), please change “Manager
/ Owner” to just “Manager”. With no other changes, the March 15, 2016, Planning Commission Minutes were
approved as presented.

APPROVAL OF AGENDA
With no other changes, the April 5, 2016, Planning Commission Agenda was approved as presented.

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS:
1) Wilmot-Adler Remodel/Addition (MM) PL-2016-0064, 104 North Gold Flake Terrace
2) Shock Hill Overlock Duplex Lot 6A & 6B (MM) PL-2016-0069, 44 & 40 West Point Lode

Mr. Mosher: There is a correction on staff report for Wilmot-Adler Remodel/Addition under the summary for
the total density, there was numerical a typo. I have passed out a document to each of you this evening that
shows the correct amount. It is already changed in the final document itself and it did not affect the report.

With no requests for call up, the Consent Calendar was approved as presented.

FINAL HEARINGS:

1) Denison Placer Housing Phase 1 (JP) PL-2016-0011, 107 Denison Placer Road / TBD Flora Dora Drive
Mr. Mosher presented on behalf of Mr. Grosshuesch, who was to present on behalf of Ms. Puester. The
proposal is to construct 66 workforce rental Townhome and apartment units (43 single family equivalents) in
fifteen buildings, a neighborhood community center including manager’s lease office and associated parking
on 4.4 acres of the northernmost section of the Block 11 parcel with access from Denison Placer Road and
Floradora Drive. In addition, Floradora Drive is proposed to be extended through the development from
Airport Road.

As a reminder, the Commission has had three previous hearings and a site visit on this project.

Architectural compatibility will be presented by the agent who is here this evening. Under Placement of
Structures, the two required are not being met; therefore, for each non-compliant, negative three (-3) points
are assessed, so the total for this is negative six (-6) points. Positive three (+3) points were assessed on the
pathway after your concern that positive six (+6) points were too much. Parking: there are two spaces per
unit. There is adequate open space.

Interior storage of 5% is encouraged which equates to 3,211 square feet for this phase. The total floor area of
separate storage units is 1,188 square feet. Further, the interior storage areas of the Townhomes and apartment
buildings equate to 3,825 square feet (6%). Landscaping: they have met requirements for right of way
plantings and exceeded the number of trees for the overall site. Under Policy 24/R, The Social Community;
Positive ten (+10) points are suggested for providing 100% workforce housing. Positive six (+6) points for
goals and objectives of Town Council for providing the employee housing. The drainage issue off site is
being addressed on site; therefore, positive three (+3) points for drainage. Snow stacking: mechanical removal
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(beside a simple plow) is anticipated with the maintenance crew looking after it (similar to Wellington
Neighborhood). The transit points will be assigned under the Denison Placer parking lot application being
presented later this evening. For refuse, there are multiple dumpster enclosures planned that have been
carefully located for functionality.

The project has a passing score positive sixteen (+16) points.

The Planning Department was supportive of the changes made by the applicant based on Planning
Commission comments. Staff recommended the Planning Commission approve Denison Placer Housing
Phase 1, PL-2016-0011, located at 107 Denison Placer Road, Lot A-1, and Tract E, Runway Subdivision,
with a passing point analysis of positive sixteen (+16) points with the presented Findings and Conditions.

Ms. Laurie Best, Planner III: Since architecture was big concern for the Commission at the last meeting, Mr.
Jarrett Buxkemper from BHH Partners is going to go through some of your concerns with a PowerPoint
presentation.

Jarrett Buxkemper, BHH Partners: We made the following changes for the final hearing you are seeing
tonight (showed graphics on the overhead screen so Commission and Audience could view as well):

Community Building: We removed skylights; added cupola & clearstory windows; removed covered porch
patio area; removed covered walkway around backside of building; added windows in garage. (Mr. Pringle:
Why did you take the covered walkway off?) Budgetary concerns. (Mr. Schuman: Was clearstory result of
removing skylights?) (Ms. Best: We added the clearstory to break up the roof and articulate the building. Mr.
Giller had asked the question previously about the skylights, and we realized the skylights did little to
improve either the aesthetics or functionality of the building so those were removed)

Building A: We made some roof modifications; changed gables to shed if order to shed snow clear of
entryways; added gables onto entry doors; on the left elevation, we changed shed roof to gable roof; added
some lower shed roof forms to break up size of wall; added some columns where we previously had braces on
little awning roofs; on the back elevation, we have broken up that elevation there with shed roofs instead of
gables; added columns on low awning roofs to break up facade better.

Building B1: Likewise, we added columns onto lower roofs there to break up facades; extended overhangs a
little bit more. (Mr. Pringle: Soffits on ends of eaves?) Correct. We added another window on back elevation;
added columns. (Ms. Dudney: Change to window design?) Yes; these two (noted on plan) are now ganged up.
(Mr. Schroder: They were too similar? That was the reason you changed?) Exactly right.

Building B2: We added some wainscoting; changed colors a little bit; on the front elevation we changed the
entry roofs to gables and added columns to those and a little more banding. (Ms. Dudney: More windows?)
Correct. Low awning roof over meters; on the right elevation, we ganged windows up; added columns; low
shed roof over center portion; windows; on the back elevation, we have broken down the large gable there to
have nested gable to right side; added columns to entry rooms; banding and wainscoting; added some
windows; changed coloring around.

Building C: On the front elevation, we added wainscoting and banding; changed shed roofs to gable; ganged
up windows; added banding; we added some roof vents in gable ends; on the right elevation, we added
wainscoting and banding; changed windows; added columns to front elevation. Actually on the back elevation
we added gable roofs over entry doors; broke up colors of siding; did a wainscoting siding change; on the left
elevation, we changed windows; did banding and wainscoting; added a low shed roof over center; ganged
windows up.
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Building D: We flipped the gable element to a smaller gable element; added some columns to low shed roofs;
ganged widows; on the back elevation, we added banding and wainscoting breaking up those elevations; on
the left side we added wainscoting and banding; did gable roof over meters; added columns over entry; on the
left elevation, we ganged up windows on the side; on the front elevation we added a gable roof to the middle
entry door; two height double level pop outs; changed up window patterns as well as siding. (Mr. (Pringle: Is
it fair to conclude that the right elevation on Building D faces Floradora drive; is that why the elevations are
distinctly different as they front different streets?) (Ms. Best: Yes; that happens twice when the D building is
on a corner.)

Building E: We are removing the second level awning roof there and also you asked us to straighten up deck
columns, so we straightened up all of those on all of the elevations.

Ms. Best: We are going to show you a couple of perspectives (shown to Commission and audience on
overhead monitor). This is entry off Airport Road and Floradora looking south from Denison at intersection
of Floradora. Please note that the building elevation has not been changes yet to show the new columns and
architectural changes, but gives a good idea of the mass and the street perspective.

Commissioner Questions / Comments:

Mr. Schroder: It is appreciated that you gave us the side by side comparisons of the elevations. The visual
help was really great thank you.

Ms. Dudney: How do you feel about the suggested changes? (Mr. Buxkemper: I think they were very good
for breaking up masses.) Do you think you can afford it? (Ms. Best: Well, we think we can.
We are hoping we will get the LIHTC funding.)

Mr. Pringle:  The drainage problem identified in the report and the associated positive points being sought
originates off this property; it is a Town created problem across the street. I applaud the Town
for doing it. Can we set bad precedent that if neighbor across the street is taking care of it and
we don’t need the positive three (+3) points we can remove those? (Ms. Best: The 48” pipe is
a very expensive piece of this project and is solving a pre-existing off site issue.) (Mr.
Mosher: The difference that might matter for precedent is that Barton Creek predates this
subdivision and Win Lockwood’s PUD improvements and the development. This was not
development creating this issue; the issue is the creek historically running through this valley.
As far as precedent goes, I believe we would be hard pressed to find one.) It seems to me to
be a Town problem; this developer is fixing but the developer is the Town who is fixing it.
Kind of like we are applauding ourselves for fixing a Town problem. Maybe the funding
needs to come from Public Works, not the project.

Mr. Lamb: I am glad to see you solving the Barton Creek issue. I used to work down there and Denison
Placer floods pretty often.
Ms. Leidal: It is mentioned in staff report for this application or the next one that three apartments do not

have storage. (Ms. Best: The plans in your packet have not been updated yet, but there will be
three additional storage units added to the north building so all 16 apartments will have a
storage unit) Within the unit? (Ms. Best: The ground floor units all have their storage on their
patios; the upper level units all have storage in the southern building)

Mr. Schuman opened the hearing to public comment. There was no public comment, and the hearing was
closed.

Commissioner Questions / Comments:

Mr. Pringle: 1 don’t know how anyone else feels, but positive three (+3) points for the drainage problem in
the Town which the Town should have solved; is the Town awarding itself?

Ms. Dudney:  This is not a Town project in the sense of us making recommendation to Town Council, so
the Town is being treated as private developer here. I understand what you are saying but this
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application is different from Town project.

You bring up a good point. Offsite does not serve this project. (Ms. Best: This is an on- site
improvement to fix an off-site regional problem. If we were holding ourselves to same
standard that we would apply to a private developer, we would be very hard pressed to get a
private developer to put in a 48” pipe to fix an offsite problem, and not receive any points.)
It’s an incestuous deal. I just don’t know if we want to award positive points for something
the Town should be dealing with offsite.

I am opposed to this.

The offsite issue is affecting on site where problem happens. I am fine with awarding positive
three (+3) points.

I tip toward leaving the points on. In my mind, thinking of the Town as the developer, and in
my mind [ agree with Ms. Best; to award them points for the fix is something we would want
to incentivize.

I don’t think they would have other developer fix problem from offsite.

I do.

The precedent is good; offsite problem hope opportunity would be for a developer to fix.
Incentivize them to fix with points.

The next off site problem might not be drainage.

Good point.

It’s an onsite improvement.

It’s a gray area. What if you have someone plant trees in another location? Do they get
points?

Not off site. Your tree example: trees would have to be on site. I agree; don’t award points for
doing something off site. This pipe is on site.

I support the points as they are.

Good arguments on both sides, but I agree it’s a gray area. I support removing those points
and not creating precedent.

It is an offsite problem they are fixing on site, but setting precedent for further issues.

We need to talk this out. I don’t think we award positive points when it is gray area because
we try to tighten up the point analyses on projects.

Give an example. It has to be improvement on site; not plant trees off site.

The problem is off site.

But it affects the site. [ agree it starts off site but it creates the effects on site.

The Town should take care of this problem independent of this application. The Town is
taking care of this problem through this development AND it is awarding itself positive three
(+3) points.

I think you won.

1 did? So I should stop digging now?

Yes.

Commissioner Final Comments:

Ms

Mr. Schroder:

Mr

. Leidal:

. Lamb:

Thank you for listening to our concerns about the architecture. We appreciate the side by side
view; more changes visually than just reading it in the report. Thank you for finding the three
storage units. This is a much better project especially as the entry to Town.

I support project as presented.

Support the point analysis. I was ok with the architecture before, but the changes look good.
Good looking project; one of first things you see as you enter Town. When will you break
ground? (Ms. Best: On the LIHTC site, excavation work will start this summer and then go
vertical in 2017. On the Phase 2 apartment buildings and the roads, infrastructure, utilities,
and grading we plan to break ground early summer with site work and go vertical late
summer.)



Town of Breckenridge Date 04/05/2016
Planning Commission Regular Meeting Page 5

Mr. Pringle: I tip my hat to you for listening to the Commission. The first time I saw this, it was bleak and
austere and I was really alarmed. I appreciate it so much that you have listened to the
comments of the Commission. And buildings are a lot more interesting and it’s a better
project. I appreciate comments from the Commissioners that helped push this forward. I hope
when we get to value engineering so much does not come out. I applaud you. I would like to
see the three points come out of the point analysis, but won’t lose sleep if not.

Ms. Dudney: I agree with everything Mr. Pringle said. Design by committee usually doesn’t work, but in
this case you made it a better looking project. I hope the value engineering does not take it
out.

Mr. Schuman: Thank you and thank you to Staff as well for putting the additional worksession in to allow
the input on architecture; it truly put us on right path.

Mr. Pringle made a motion to change the point analysis for the Denison Placer Housing Phase 1, PL-2016-
0011, 107 Denison Placer Road, Lot A-1 and Tract E, Runway Subdivision, on policy 27R drainage from
positive three (+3) to zero (0) points. Ms. Leidal seconded and the motion was carried (5-1).

Mr. Pringle made a motion to approve the modified point analysis for the Denison Placer Housing Phase 1,
PL-2016-0011, 107 Denison Placer Road, Lot A-1 and Tract E, Runway Subdivision, showing a passing
score of positive thirteen (+13) points. Ms. Leidal seconded, and the motion was carried unanimously (6-0).

Mr. Pringle made a motion to approve the Denison Placer Housing Phase 1, PL-2016-0011, 107 Denison
Placer Road, Lot A-1 and Tract E, Runway Subdivision, with the presented findings and conditions. Ms.
Leidal seconded, and the motion was carried unanimously (6-0).

2) Denison Placer Housing Phase 2 (JP) PL-2016-0012, 107 Denison Placer Road
Mr. Mosher presented on behalf of Mr. Grosshuesch who was to present on behalf of Ms. Puester. The
proposal is to construct 30 workforce rental apartment units (101-BR and 20 studio) (13 single family
equivalents) in three buildings on approximately 1.05 acres on the southern section of Tract D with access
from Denison Placer Road. A material and color sample board was also presented.

This project is under density and mass. Parking, no concerns. Setbacks not being met in the front garner
negative three (-3) points. Per the Land Use Guidelines, 13 SFEs are proposed for this property for employee
housing and 3.25 SFEs must be transferred to the site. Building height: The negative points for a long
unbroken ridgeline are incurred with this report; but, plans are to change the long ridgeline out of building.
Storage: 929 square feet required storage units. Access circulation. Landscaping: no concerns. Positive ten
(+10) points for affordable housing project. Town Council goals, Policy 24/R, positive six (+6) points.
Drainage utility and snow storage: no concerns. Transit not included on this property. The Point Analysis
shows positive twelve (+12) points: negative three (-3) placement of structures for not meeting 15° front
setback; negative one (-1) ridgeline for building types exceeding 50’ ridge lengths, Policy 24 positive ten
(+10) for employee housing and positive six (+6) for Town Council goals.

The Planning Department recommended the Planning Commission approve the point analysis for the Denison
Placer Phase 2, PL-2016-0012, located at 107 Denison Placer Road, Tract D, Runway Subdivision, showing a
passing point analysis of positive twelve (+12) points. The Planning Department also recommended the
Planning Commission approve Denison Placer Phase 2, PL-2016-0012, located at 107 Denison Placer Road,
Tract D, Runway Subdivision, with the presented findings and conditions.

Mr. Jarrett Buxkemper, BHH Partners:

Building F1: On the front elevation, we added gable element to left side; decreased shed roof to right side of
entry; added banding; changed color of wainscoting; added some windows on the gable elements and above
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connector element; changed colors; on the left elevation, we changed direction of shed roof and made it into
gable roof; added shed roof to side; reconfigured window patterns; banding; on the right elevation, we have
broken the vertical gable element up with banding; added shed roof to right of gable element; on the back
elevation, we reworked the entire center portion gable on sides, the shed element in middle, the shed dormer
elements to break up elevation; added banding as well.

Building F2: We changed colors; added some banding; added shed roof over to side of gable elevation; on the
back elevation, we reworked elevation; added banding; on the front elevation, we changed to a single center
gable element as opposed to two on sides; windows reworked; on the right elevation, we added banding;
reworked the window patterns there.

The dumpster enclosure did not change.

Mr. Schuman opened the hearing to public comment. There was no public comment and the hearing was
closed.

Commissioner Questions / Comments:

Ms. Dudney:  This is a great improvement appreciate the changes.

Mr. Pringle: ~ Same comments as last time; thank you. I agree with point analysis.

Mr. Lamb: I agree with those two; pretty straightforward. I support the point analysis.
Mr. Schroder: I agree with Mr. Lamb & the rest of the Commission.

Ms. Leidal: I agree; I support.

Mr. Schuman: Thank you staff for extra worksession.

Mr. Pringle made a motion to approve the point analysis for the Denison Placer Housing Phase 2, PL-2016-
0012, 107 Denison Placer Road, Tract D Runway Subdivision, showing a passing point analysis of positive
twelve (+12) points. Mr. Lamb seconded, and the motion was carried unanimously (6-0).

Mr. Pringle made a motion to approve the Denison Placer Housing Phase 2, PL-2016-0012, 107 Denison
Placer Road, Tract D Runway Subdivision, with the presented findings and conditions. Mr. Lamb seconded,
and the motion was carried unanimously (6-0).

COMBINED HEARINGS:

1. Resubdivision of Lot A-1, Tract D, and Tract E, Runway Subdivision and Lot 2C, A Resubdivision of the
Common Area of Rock Pile Ranch Condominium (JP) PL-2016-0067, 107 Denison Placer Road and
1900 Airport Road

Mr. Mosher presented on behalf of Mr. Grosshuesch who was to present on behalf of Ms. Puester. The

proposal is to resubdivide Lot A-1, Tract D and Tract E, Runway Subdivision and Lot 2C, Block 10, a

resubdivision of the common area of Rock Pile Ranch, to create a total of eight lots/tracts, easements and

rights of ways.

Applicants are Colorado Mountain College and the Town of Breckenridge. 107 Denison Placer Road and
1900 Airport Road in Land Use District 31.

The right of way is 859 feet long. The subdivision measures the right of way to get the number of trees every
ten feet and place them in the subdivision. Floradora gets you 759 feet; therefore, 413 trees, so staff had no
concerns. There is no point analysis for subdivision.

This subdivision proposal is in compliance with the Subdivision Standards. Staff recommended approval of the
Resubdivision of Tract D, Tract E and Lot A-1 of Runway Subdivision and Lot 2C, Block 10, A Resubdivision of
Common Area of Rock Pile Ranch, PL-2016-0068, located at 107 Denison Placer Road and 1900 Airport Road
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with the presented Findings and Conditions.

Ms Best: (Helping locate the property on a map) I am going to zoom in on the plan to show it on the overhead
camera. Basically (indicating on plan) this is all of Block 11 and this is the Rock Pile Ranch Lot 2C. We are
taking that the Rock Pile Ranch lot and Block 11 Iot, and reconfiguring them to create the LHTC parcel, the
Phase 2 parcel, the Oxbow Park lot, and to establish the right of way and utility locations. (Showed LHTC
parcel and Oxbow Park.)

Mr. Schuman opened the hearing to public comment. There was no public comment and the hearing was
closed.

Commissioner Questions / Comments:

Ms. Leidal: This is a housekeeping matter to accommodate the land swap easements and clean up other
ones. I agree with staff report.

Mr. Schroder: I agree with staff report.

Mr. Lamb: I agree with staff; no concerns.

Mr. Pringle: I concur.

Ms. Dudney:  No comment.

Mr. Schuman: I agree.

Mr. Schroder made a motion to approve the Resubdivision of Lot A-1, Tract D, and Tract E, Runway
Subdivision and Lot 2C, A Resubdivision of the Common Area of Rock Pile Ranch Condominium, PL-2016-
0067, 107 Denison Placer Road and 1900 Airport Road, with the presented findings and conditions. Ms.
Leidal seconded, and the motion was carried unanimously (6-0).

(The Commission took a five minute recess.)

2. Lincoln Park Filing No. 2 Subdivision (MM) PL-2016-0032, Bridge Street / Stables Road

Mr. Mosher presented. This is a continuance from the March 15th Planning Commission Meeting. Per the
Lincoln Park at the Wellington Neighborhood Master Plan, the applicant proposes to subdivide a portion of
Lots 1 and 2, Block 6, Lincoln Park at the Wellington Neighborhood, into 21 lots with 24 units. Units are
composed of 18 single-family and 3 duplex homes. The Vern Johnson Memorial Park (separate Class D
Development Permit) is to be constructed as part of this phase of the Lincoln Park Master Plan.

At the previous meeting, the Commission expressed concerns regarding the number of trees that are to be
planted along the Bridge Street right of way (ROW) as far as where they belong during the subdivision and
where they belong during the overall development. For the subdivision code policy, the required trees are to be
planted throughout entire development while the Development Code policy the tree counts are only along the
ROW. This application: The number of trees along the ROW is one tree every fifteen feet of ROW. The
number of trees overall is one tree every ten feet of ROW. However, under Policy 22/R, the trees are suggested
to have a minimum diameter of 3” caliper whereas the minimum requirement for a subdivision is 2” caliper.

Negative points may be assigned to the master plan, not a subdivision. Staff has already approved a Class D
modification to the Lincoln Park at the Wellington Neighborhood Master Plan subtracting negative point for
the under sized tree (from positive thirteen (+13) to positive eleven (+11) points). (Ms. Dudney: Is this because
they didn’t meet caliper?) Right. Ultimately, this subdivision is still standing with the added condition
regarding the tree counts associated with the Master Plan.

We have identified this condition for past and future Lincoln Park subdivisions. I may repeat the condition in
Phases 3 and 4 as a precaution. (Ms. Leidal: This new condition was not clear to me until I discussed with Mr.
Mosher. Bridge Street runs through entire subdivision, so the condition takes into account that at the end of

-10-
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day, you need to install 214 trees of minimum 2” caliper.) There may be garage added to one unit, and then a
tree from Phase 1 moves to Phase 2. (Ms. Dudney: So this is now already dealt with in the Master Plan.)
Again, I passed out a new set of Findings and Conditions for you this evening. “Bridge Street extends through
the entire length of Lincoln Park at the Wellington Neighborhood, and will be platted via subdivision
applications. The total length of Bridge Street is approximately 2,139 feet which equates to 214 trees for all of
Lincoln Park at the Wellington Neighborhood filings. Applicant shall install a total of 214 trees, a minimum
of 2-inch in caliper, per 9-2-4-2-D-3 for all of the Lincoln Park at the Wellington Neighborhood subdivision
filings.”

Staff recommended the Planning Commission approve the Lincoln Park at the Wellington Neighborhood
Filing 2 Subdivision, PL-2016-0032 with the presented Findings and Conditions.

Mr. Schuman opened the hearing to public comment.

Andrew Podhorecki, 581 High Point Drive: I live to the south of the development. My main concern was I
think it is too late to do anything, but I built my house in 1993 and I believe the Wellington site was zoned as
agricultural with almost no density. Our concerns were construction noise, dust, traffic, fumes, and the free
handout of their density. Additional phases were approved with almost unchecked density.

There has been heavy construction here since 1999 and now it is going another six years; almost a quarter of a
century of rock crushing, quarry noises and dust, roar of multiple diesel engines, diesel fumes, the piercing
shrill of numerous back up beepers, steel buckets grinding against river rock, rock dredge banged against large
three cubic yard steel buckets, the sound of metal crawler tracks against dredge rock, dredge rock being
classified through mechanical grizzlies, dozers pushing dredge rock, concrete trucks, dump trucks having
dredge rock dumped into their beds, compactors, diesel powered high lifts, power saws, pneumatic nailers,
gunpowder driven concrete nailers, constant delivery trucks, hammering, etc. The topo to the South is a natural
amphitheater that allows all the noise to go directly to our homes.

Last Sunday I heard construction noise and called Breck PD. I had called numerous times before kept working
past before and after hours now documented with Police Report 16-4367. There was a crew working with a
diesel powered high lift on the exterior of the Townhome. I took a picture. When I told them it is unlawful to
work on Sundays, he told me that I was wrong and that he has been working on Sundays here for the last two
years. He told me to call his boss McCreary.

There are always excuses why the rules are violated. It seems like this project’s M.O. is just do it, don’t get
caught, and if caught just ask for forgiveness. Possible violations that I have noticed; work outside of
designated hours, exceed state noise ordinances, no BMP-lack of erosion control for run-off and ensuing
stream degradation, dredge rock and crushed rock trucked off site, exceeded diesel smoke pollution standards,
lack of dust control, worker safety, is there checking of undocumented labor? It is time for consequences for
any disregard of the rules.

In summary, we are asking that since this was a special approved zoning variance project that extremely
changed the neighbors’ quality of life, that the construction impact be mitigated. With this application, please
decrease the hours of operation to 9am to Spm Monday to Friday. We have to be subjected to this construction
from the time we awake until well after dinner six for days a week. There are people who work late and sleep
in, work from home, have kids, are retired or semi-retired and need relief. Please do not approve this proposal
unless the construction impact is mitigated.

Site specific concerns:
A limit of disturbance plan should be submitted and adhered to, to prevent more site disruption. Be sure that
the dredge pile to the South remains in place as a buffer and that it is not to be disturbed for any reason,
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including ball fields, a dog park, or other reason that would create more construction. How can this area to the
South be guaranteed open space in perpetuity? Why is there a loop road to the South, can’t there just be dead
end alleys like in the other phases? Eliminating this road will decrease the amount of impermeable surface,
plowing costs, and maintenance costs. It will also give the homes more privacy by not having asphalt on two
sides. The homes can be oriented toward the alley with minimal redesign.

At the last meeting, the issue of not enough trees to meet code came up. Do not let the LLC get away without
either planting the trees or in lieu of the trees, contribute money to the open space fund. Maybe even make the
LLC pay for the free market density. Each tree is worth a minimum of $250 each, plus irrigation cost.

The Stables Road should not be used as a part of this development. It is a gravel road and additional traffic will
create dust and ruin the tranquil setting of the horse stables. There should be a berm with trees between the
development and the horse stables. Again the alleys should dead end here.

That’s pretty much it. I don’t know if there is any power you have to mitigate noise. (Mr. Schuman: If staff is
interested in mitigating or eliminating issues, they have to be Code based issues. I have a question for you;
Are you are representing you, yourself, or neighbors? Is there an HOA? 1 wanted to clarify whether you are
representing an HOA or just yourself and your neighbors?) I don’t think there is an HOA, no, just myself and
the neighbors. (Mr. Schuman: If it’s not in the Code, there is nothing we can do as Planning Commissioners. I
don’t know if you have approached the Town Council; that is where you need to let the rubber hit the road.
We don’t finally approve projects; we recommend the Town Council approve projects. I recommend you
approach the Town Council; that is really who you need to speak to. We look at the Code; what is allowed by
the code. A lot of the concerns you have are large big project issues that the Town Council could certainly
flex some of their muscle.) (Mr. Mosher: As a reminder, public comment at the beginning of the Town
Council meeting is for any item NOT on that meeting’s agenda.) (Mr. Schuman: Coffee Talk with the Mayor
is a great venue too. You could go there, have a coffee, and clearly state your concerns with the project.) (Ms.
Dudney: Construction protocol; we never get into that. If they are violating that, you have a complete right to
talk to the police and the Town Manager. Keep filing Police reports. I am sorry that is your experience.) (Mr.
Schuman: Thank you for your comments and your time.)

There was no more public comment and the hearing was closed. (Mr. Pringle: It’s difficult living in a
transitional area.)

Commissioner Questions / Comments:

Mr. Dudney:  No comment.

Mr. Pringle:  No comment.

Mr. Lamb: No comment. Working after 7 and on Sundays; that is an enforcement issue, a police issue.

Mr. Pringle: I would like to thank Ms. Leidal and Mr. Mosher for working out that technical issue. Thank
you for figuring out the math on that.

Mr. Schroder:  Enforcement is important. (Mr. Mosher: We have followed up  and there is the police
report. Also, I have indicated to Mr. Podhorecki to please get his comments in prior to the
packet deadline so they can be included in your packet you see instead of 35 minutes before
the meeting.)

Mr. Leidal: Thank you, Mr. Podhorecki, for bringing this to our attention and sounds like staff is working
on it. Thank you, Mr. Mosher for helping me understand the calculations on the landscaping.

Mr. Schuman: I concur.

Ms. Leidal made a motion to approve the Lincoln Park Filing No. 2 Subdivision, PL-2016-0032, Bridge
Street / Stables Road, with the modified findings and conditions, including the addition of Condition Number
9 (“The application for this phase of the Lincoln Park at the Wellington Neighborhood subdivision and all
previous and subsequent subdivisions of Lincoln Park at the Wellington Neighborhood shall abide with
Development Code, 9-1-19-35A4: Policy 35 (Absolute) Subdivision and Subdivision Standards, 9-2-4-2: Design
Compatible With Natural Features that requires all subdivisions to provide one tree having a minimum trunk
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diameter (measured 12 inches above ground level) of not less than two inches (2") suitable for the Breckenridge
climate for every ten (10) linear feet of roadway platted. Bridge Street extends through the entire length of
Lincoln Park at the Wellington Neighborhood, and will be platted via subdivision applications. The total length
of Bridge Street is approximately 2,139 feet which equates to 214 trees for all of Lincoln Park at the Wellington
Neighborhood filings. Applicant shall install a total of 214 trees, a minimum of 2-inch in caliper, per 9-2-4-2-D-
3 for all of the Lincoln Park at the Wellington Neighborhood subdivision filings.”) Mr. Schroder seconded, and
the motion was carried unanimously (6-0).

TOWN PROJECT HEARINGS:

1) Denison Placer Parking Lot (JP) PL-2016-0013, 1900 Airport Road

Mr. Mosher presented on behalf of Mr. Grosshuesch who was to present on behalf of Ms. Puester. This
application is a proposal to construct a 30 space paved parking lot and install landscaping and downcast
lighting. This parking lot is intended as overflow parking for the adjacent Denison Placer workforce housing
rental units on Block 11.

No density or mass are required for parking and staff had no concerns from site design, environmental impact
or drainage. None of this parking is required. Again, healthy landscaping is being placed. This is for the
benefit of Denison Placer residents.

Point Analysis (Section: 9-1-17-3): Staff has provided a final point analysis and find this application warrants
negative two (-2) points under Policy 22R Landscaping for providing less than 10 feet of landscape area
width along one edge of the parking lot and therefore warrants positive four (+4) points under Policy 25R
Transit for providing bus pull outs in both travel directions. The application was found to meet all Absolute
policies.

This is a Town Project pursuant to the ordinance amending the Town Projects Process (Council Bill No. 1,
Series 2013). As a result, the Planning Commission is asked to identify any concerns with this project, and
any code issues and make a recommendation to the Town Council. Staff recommended the Planning
Commission recommend that the Town Council approve the Denison Placer Parking Lot, PL-2016-0013
located at 1900 Airport Road with a passing point analysis of positive two (+2) points with the presented
Findings and Conditions.

Commissioner Questions / Comments:

Ms. Dudney:  Why is this presented a Town Project? (Ms. Best: We know the Town will control this
property. It can only be Town Project if owned by the Town. The Housing projects may be
owned by different partnership entities so those were not processed as a Town Project, but
they were processed as Class A development permits)

Mr. Pringle:  For Denison? (Ms. Best: It will be overflow, maybe for all of Block 11 housing. We don’t
know yet.) The cagey skier might use the lot; is there any control? (Ms. Best: The designated
day skier parking will be in another location. This lot will support the residential units and
we’ll evaluate best way to manage that as part of managing the residential uses-perhaps
permit parking.) If a day skier wants to park on Main Street they can. (Ms. Best: This lot is
intended for parking for the residential use.)

Ms. Leidal: Just positive two (+2) for two pullouts and no shelter? (Ms. Best: No shelters included) (Mr.
Mosher: From Public Works - Shelters often need maintenance and a lot of extra work from
Public Works; we like to have HOA be responsible for the shelters if possible.)

Mr. Schuman opened the hearing to public comment. There was no public comment and the hearing was
closed.

Mr. Lamb made a motion to recommend the Town Council approve the Denison Placer Parking Lot, PL-
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2016-0013, 1900 Airport Road, showing a passing point analysis of positive two (+2) points, with the
presented findings and conditions. Mr. Schroder seconded, and the motion was carried unanimously (6-0).

ADJOURNMENT:
The meeting was adjourned at 8:50 pm.

Ron Schuman, Chair

14-



g TOWN OF ﬁ

BRECKENRIDGE
v ¥
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

Class C Single Family Development Review Check List

Proposal:

Build a new 4,089 square foot single family residence at Shock Hill Cottages

Project Name/PC#:

Shock Hill Cottages #4 PL-2016-0097

Project Manager:

Chris Kulick, AICP

PC Meeting:

April 19, 2016

Date of Report:

April 7, 2016

Property Owner:

Shock Hill Development, LLC

Agent:

Tom Begley, Breckenridge Lands LLC

Proposed Use:

Cluster Single Family Residence

Address:

24 Regent Drive

Legal Description:

Lot 4, The Cottages at Shock Hill

Area of Site:

Footprint Lot

Existing Site Conditions:

The site is relatively flat and sparsely vegetated with no existing tree cover. The
property is bordered by an existing residence to the north, and south. The east side
of the property is bordered by open space.

Areas:

Proposed

Main Level:

1,202 sq. ft.

Upper Level:

1,521 sq. ft.

Loft Level:

617 sq. ft.

Garage:

581 sq. ft.

Total:

3,921 sq. ft.

Code Policies (Policy #)

Land Use District (2A/2R):

10 2 UPA - Subject to Shock Hill Master Plan

Density (3A/3R): Allowed: Unlimited Proposed: 3,340 sq. ft.
Mass (4R): Allowed: Unlimited Proposed: 3,921 sq. ft.
F.A.R. N/A Footprint Lot

Bedrooms:|5 BR

Bathrooms: (5.5 BA

Height (6A/6R):*

35 feet overall

*Max height of 35’ for single family outside Conservation District unless otherwise stated on the recorded plat

Lot Coverage/Open Space (21R):

Building / Non-Permeable: (2,014 sq. ft.
Hard Surface/Non-Permeable: |656 sq. ft. 493 heated sq. ft.
Snowstack (13A/13R):
Required:|164 sq. ft. 25% of paved surfaces is required
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Proposed:[192 sq. ft.

(29.27% of paved surfaces)

Outdoor Heated Space (33A/33R):

Yes - Back Patio & Front

Walkway 493 sq. ft.
Parking (18A/18/R):
Required:|2 spaces
Proposed: |4 spaces
Fireplaces (30A/30R): 3 Gas Fired
Architectural Compatibility The architecture of this house is compatible with the other existing houses in the
(5/A & 5/R): neighborhood.

Exterior Materials:

8" Board on board, 8" V Groove, Cedar Shake Siding, 2 x 10 Timber with Chinking,
cedar trim and natural stone.

Roof: 50 Year high definition asphalt shingle with Core-Ten accents

Garage Doors: Cedar siding, color to match the home

Landscaping (22A/22R):

Planting Type Quantity Size
Aspen 5 1.5-2.0 inch caliper
Colorado Spruce 9 (2)12', (4) 10", (1) 8'and (2) 6'
Drainage (27A/27R): Positive drainage away from the structure.
Driveway Slope: 1%

Staff conducted a point analysis and found the proposal meets all Absolute Policies
of the Development Code and warrants the following points under the Relative

Point Analysis Policies: Negative one (-1) point under Policy 33 (Relative) Energy Conservation for
(Sec. 9-1-17-3): 493 sq. ft. of heated patio; and positive one (+1) point under Policy 33 (Relative)

zero (0) points.

Energy Conservation for obtaining a HERS Index, for a total passing point analysis of

Staff Action:

Staff has approved Cottage 11 at Shock Hill Cottages, PL-2015-0565, located at 82
Regent Drive with the attached Findings and Conditions.
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TOWN OF BRECKENRIDGE

Shock Hill Cottage #4
Lot 4, Shock Hill Cottages
24 Regent Drive
PL-2016-0097
FINDINGS
The project is in accord with the Development Code and does not propose a prohibited use.

The project will not have significant adverse environmental impact or demonstrative negative aesthetic effect.

All feasible measures mitigating adverse environmental impacts have been included, and there are no
economically feasible alternatives, which would have less adverse environmental impact.

This approval is based on the staff report dated April 7, 2015, and findings made by the Planning
Commission with respect to the project. Your project was approved based on the proposed design of the
project and your acceptance of these terms and conditions imposed.

The terms of approval include any representations made by you or your representatives in any writing or plans
submitted to the Town of Breckenridge, and at the hearing on the project held on April 26, 2016 as to the
nature of the project. In addition to Commission minutes, the audio of the meetings of the Commission are
recorded.

CONDITIONS
This permit does not become effective, and the project may not be commenced, unless and until the applicant
accepts the preceding findings and following conditions in writing and transmits the acceptance to the Town
of Breckenridge.

If the terms and conditions of the approval are violated, the Town, in addition to criminal and civil judicial
proceedings, may, if appropriate, issue a stop order requiring the cessation of work, revoke this permit,
require removal of any improvements made in reliance upon this permit with costs to constitute a lien on the
property and/or restoration of the property.

This permit expires eighteen (18) months from date of issuance, on October 26, 2017, unless a building
permit has been issued and substantial construction pursuant thereto has taken place. In addition, if this permit
is not signed and returned to the Town within 30 days from the permit mailing date, the duration of the permit
shall be 18 months, but without the benefit of any vested property right.

The terms and conditions of this permit are in compliance with the statements of the staff and applicant made
on the evidentiary forms and policy analysis forms.

Nothing in this permit shall constitute an agreement by the Town of Breckenridge to issue a certificate of
occupancy for the project covered by this permit. The determination of whether a certificate of occupancy
should be issued for such project shall be made by the Town in accordance with the applicable provisions
of the Town Code, including, but not limited to the building code.

Applicant shall field locate utility service lines to avoid existing trees.
An improvement location certificate of the height of the top of the foundation wall, second story plate,

and the height of the building’s ridge must be submitted and approved by the Town during the various
phases of construction. The final building height shall not exceed 35’ at any location.

All hazardous materials used in construction of the improvements authorized by this permit shall be disposed
of properly off site.
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0.

Each structure which is authorized to be developed pursuant to this permit shall be deemed to be a separate
phase of the development. In order for the vested property rights associated with this permit to be extended
pursuant to Section 9-1-17-11(D) of the Breckenridge Development Code, substantial construction must be
achieved for each structure within the vested right period of this permit.

PRIOR TO ISSUANCE OF BUILDING PERMIT

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

Applicant shall submit proof of ownership of the project site.

Applicant shall submit and obtain approval from the Town Engineer of final drainage, grading, utility, and
erosion control plans.

Applicant shall provide plans stamped by a registered professional engineer licensed in Colorado, to the Town
Engineer for all retaining walls over four feet in height.

Any exposed foundation wall in excess of 12 inches shall be finished (i.e. textured or painted) in accordance
with the Breckenridge Development Code Section 9-1-19-5R.

Applicant shall submit and obtain approval from the Town of a construction staging plan indicating the
location of all construction material storage, fill and excavation material storage areas, portolet and dumpster
locations, and employee vehicle parking areas. No staging is permitted within public right of way without
Town permission. Any dirt tracked upon the public road shall be the applicant’s responsibility to remove.
Contractor parking within the public right of way is not permitted without the express permission of the
Town, and cars must be moved for snow removal. A project contact person is to be selected and the name
provided to the Public Works Department prior to issuance of the building permit.

Applicant shall submit and obtain approval from Town staff of a cut sheet detail for all exterior
lighting on the site. All exterior lighting on the site or buildings shall be fully shielded to hide the light
source and shall cast light downward. Exterior residential lighting shall not exceed 15’ in height from
finished grade or 7° above upper decks.

Applicant shall submit to and obtain approval from the Department of Community Development a
defensible space plan showing trees proposed for removal and the approximate location of new
landscaping, including species and size. Applicant shall meet with Community Development Department
staff on the Applicant’s property to mark trees for removal and review proposed new landscaping to meet
the requirements of Policy 22 (Absolute) Landscaping, for the purpose of creating defensible space.

PRIOR TO ISSUANCE OF CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

Applicant shall revegetate all disturbed areas with a minimum of 2 inches topsoil, seed and mulch.

Applicant shall submit a final HERS Confirmed Home Energy Rating Report prepared by a prepared
by a registered Residential Services Network (RESNET) design professional using an approved
simulation tool in accordance with simulated performance alternative provisions of the towns adopted
energy code.

Applicant shall remove all vegetation and combustible material from under all eaves and decks.

Applicant shall create defensible space around all structures as required in Policy 22 (Absolute) Landscaping.

Applicant shall paint all garage doors, metal flashing, vents, flues, rooftop mechanical equipment, meters, and
utility boxes on the building a flat, dark color or to match the building color.

Applicant shall screen all utilities.

All exterior lighting on the site or buildings shall be fully shielded to hide the light source and shall cast light
downward.
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24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

At all times during the course of the work on the development authorized by this permit, the permittee shall
refrain from depositing any dirt, mud, sand, gravel, rubbish, trash, wastepaper, garbage, construction
material, or any other waste material of any kind upon the public street(s) adjacent to the construction site.
Town shall provide oral notification to permittee if Town believes that permittee has violated this
condition. If permittee fails to clean up any material deposited on the street(s) in violation of this condition
within 24 hours of oral notice from Town, permittee agrees that the Town may clean up such material
without further notice and permittee agrees to reimburse the Town for the costs incurred by the Town in
cleaning the streets. Town shall be required to give notice to permittee of a violation of this condition only
once during the term of this permit.

The development project approved by this Permit must be constructed in accordance with the plans and
specifications, which were approved by the Town in connection with the Development Permit application.
Any material deviation from the approved plans and specifications without Town approval as a
modification may result in the Town issuing a Stop Work Order and/or not issuing a Certificate of
Occupancy or Compliance for the project, and/or other appropriate legal action under the Town’s
development regulations. A Stop Work Order may not be released until a modification to the permit is
reviewed and approved by the Town. Based upon the magnitude of the modification, another hearing
before the Planning Commission may be required.

No Certificate of Occupancy or Certificate of Compliance will be issued by the Town until: (i) all work done
pursuant to this permit is determined by the Town to be in compliance with the approved plans and
specifications for the project, and all applicable Town codes, ordinances and standards, and (ii) all conditions
of approval set forth in the Development Permit for this project have been properly satisfied. If either of these
requirements cannot be met due to prevailing weather conditions, the Town may issue a Certificate of
Occupancy or Certificate of Compliance if the permittee enters into a Cash Deposit Agreement providing that
the permittee will deposit with the Town a cash bond, or other acceptable surety, equal to at least 125% of the
estimated cost of completing any required work or any applicable condition of approval, and establishing the
deadline for the completion of such work or the satisfaction of the condition of approval. The form of the
Cash Deposit Agreement shall be subject to approval of the Town Attorney. “Prevailing weather conditions”
generally means that work can not be done due to excessive snow and/or frozen ground. As a general rule, a
cash bond or other acceptable surety will only be accepted by the Town between November 1 and May
31 of the following year. The final decision to accept a bond as a guarantee will be made by the Town of
Breckenridge.

Applicant shall submit the written statement concerning contractors, subcontractors and material suppliers
required in accordance with Ordinance No. 1, Series 2004.

The development authorized by this Development Permit may be subject to the development impact fee
imposed by Resolution 2006-05 of the Summit County Housing Authority. Such resolution implements the
impact fee approved by the electors at the general election held November 7, 2006. Pursuant to
intergovernmental agreement among the members of the Summit Combined Housing Authority, the Town
of Breckenridge is authorized to administer and collect any impact fee which is due in connection with
development occurring within the Town. For this purpose, the Town has issued administrative rules and
regulations which govern the Town’s administration and collection of the impact fee. Applicant will pay
any required impact fee for the development authorized by this Development Permit prior to the issuance
of a Certificate of Occupancy.

(Initial Here)
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Subject:

Proposal:

Date:

Project Manager:

Planning Commission Staff Memo

Marriott Residence Inn Signage
(Class C Minor, Commission Decision; PL-2016-0080)

The applicant is seeking Planning Commission approval for a major identification
wall sign in excess of 20-square feet on the building facade facing Main Street
(State Highway 9). The extra square footage requested requires Planning
Commission approval.

April 7, 2016 (For meeting of April 19, 2016)

Michael Mosher, Planner III

Applicant/Owner

And Agent: Hotel Breck, LLC; Michel O’Conner - Triumph Development

Address: 600 South Ridge Street

Legal Description: Breckenridge Mountain Lodge Area Subdivision, Lot 3

Site Area: 114,317 sq. ft. (2.624 acres)

Land Use District: Densities and uses subject to the Breckenridge Mountain Lodge Area Master Plan

Historic District:

The northwest 31,627 square feet (0.726 acres) of the total lot area is located

within the South Main Transition Area (14). The remaining 83,725 square feet
(1.192 acres) lies outside the Transition Area and Conservation District.
Adjacent Uses: North: Placer Ridge Townhomes
South: Main Street Junction

East: Breckenridge Mountain Village
West: Ridge Street, Breckenridge Brewery,
& State Highway 9

Item History

The Breckenridge Mountain Lodge Redevelopment (PC#2014034) was approved by Town Council on
November 25, 2014. The 3-story, 129 room hotel is located at the corner of Ridge Street and Main Street
(east of Main Street Station). It will be operated as a Marriott Residence Inn. The building is currently
under construction.

Per the Development Code Section 9-1-5, a Class D Minor Development (Staff level approval) permit is
required for individual signs. Section 8-2-12 of the Sign Code limits all signs in Town to 20 square feet.
However, there is an exception allowed for a hotel to place a sign larger than 20 square feet per Section
8-2-13 with approval of the Planning Commission. Hence, Staff is presenting this request, in a memo
format, to the Commission.

The applicant is proposing a major identification sign on the facade of the Marriott Residence Inn
(currently under construction) that can be easily read from Main Street as it is anticipated that the
majority of their guests will arrive to the hotel from Main Street.
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Staff Comments

With over 230 linear feet of building frontage, this project is allowed 151 square feet of total sign area.
However, the Sign Code typically limits the size of sign space on a building fagade to a maximum of 20
square feet.

Per the Sign Code 8-2-13: G. Hotel and Condominium Signs:
1. Only one major identification sign shall be permitted for each hotel or condominium project. Such

major identification sign shall not exceed the twenty (20) square foot limitation established by
subsection 8-2-12B of this chapter, except when the commission determines all of the following to exist:

a. The major identification sign for the project is a single wall sign.

b. A sign exceeding the twenty (20) square foot limitation established by subsection 8-2-12B of this
chapter is necessary to fit proportionately within a large expanse of wall area not interrupted by
windows or other architectural features, and to serve as an architecturally compatible building feature
breaking up a large wall area that would otherwise be unbroken.

c. The wall sign is set back at least thirty feet (30') from the property line.

d. The wall sign is no larger than is reasonably necessary to identify the project from an adjacent public
way.

e. The colors and design of the sign are compatible with those of the building.

f- The wall sign is used in lieu of any other major identification sign for the project, including those
signs provided in subsection G2 of this section.

2. Where a hotel or condominium project has linear frontage of one hundred feet (100') or more and
multiple vehicular accesses all of which accesses are not visible from a single location, one freestanding
major identification sign may be permitted by the commission at each point of vehicular access to the
project. (Ord. 23, Series 1989)(Emphasis added.)

Major Identification Sign:

The applicant is seeking only one major identification sign for the project.
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WOQD OR COMPOSITE MATERIAL
LETTERS PAINTED WHITE, MOUNTED
TO BUILDING AND ILLUMINATED BY
SPOTLIGHTS UNDER ROOF OVERHANG

The west property line of Lot 3 shares the east side of the 80-foot wide CDOT right of way along Main
Street. The building is set back 35-feet from the property line. The distance from the Main Street paving
edge to the proposed major identification sign location is about 80-feet. This is an area of Main Street
where vehicles are accelerating southbound or decelerating northbound from the edge of Historic
downtown.

The sign with separate mounted letters is proposed to be constructed of wood or composite material to
appear as wood, painted white, and illuminated by shielded spotlights located under roof overhang.

The proposed sign area is 28 square feet as shown below (8 square feet over the suggested 20 square
foot maximum):

This is the only major identification sign for the project; it is more than 30-feet off the property line; it is
no larger than necessary to identify the project from an adjacent public way; and the materials, colors
and design of the sign are compatible with those of the building.
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Though “major identification sign” is not defined in the Code, Staff believes the intent is for a major
identification sign meets the Code criteria as illustrated above.

Staff is supportive of the design, size and location. The area exemption is unique to hotels with
expansive frontages and a substantial front setback. The applicant is seeking to provide one consolidated
wall sign rather than use all of their allowed signage (151 square feet) throughout the building. Staff is
supportive of this approach. Staff notes that this sign is visible from only one location, not from both the
abutting right of ways.

Staff Recommendation

With the specific criteria for the major identification sign for the Marriott Residence Inn at 28 square
feet described above, Staff believes the proposed 8 square feet of additional sign area could be
permitted.

Does the Commission support this proposal to exceed the 20 square foot sign limitation for a hotel per
Section 8-2-13 of the Code?
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Subject:

Proposal:

Project Manager:
Date:

Applicant:
Agent:

Address:

Legal Description:

Site Area:

Land Use District:

Site Conditions:

Adjacent Uses:

Density Allowed:

Proposed:

Planning Commission Staff Report

McCain Water Treatment Plant Buildings Work Session —
(Town Project Work Session; PL 2016-0112)

The applicants are proposing a water treatment facility, support building and pump
station on Tract 1 of the McCain Master Plan area.
Michael Mosher, Planner 111

April 8, 2016 (for the April 19, 2016 Meeting)

Town of Breckenridge

Marc Hogan, bhh Architecture and Planning

12965, 13215, 13217, 13221, 13250 Colorado State Highway 9

Tract 1 of the McCain Master Plan, which the entirety is described as follows: The
following real property in the Town of Breckenridge, Summit County, Colorado: (i)
Tract “B” (67.6099 acres) as shown on the Annexation Map McCain Annexation
Phase I, recorded under Reception No. 714272; (ii) the 35.2412 acre tract as shown
on the Annexation Map McCain Annexation Phase II, recorded under Reception
No. 714274; (iii) Parcel “A” and Parcel “B” as described in special warranty deed
recorded June 18, 2013 at Reception No. 1029052.

3.8 acres

LUD 43: Existing residential and Service Commercial; Recreational, Open Space, and
Governmental Land Uses; Mining. Residential: 1 unit per 20 acres (unless workforce
housing).

Several buildings associated with the Breck Bears retail business are located on this
relatively flat site adjacent to the Fairview Roundabout. The Town currently leases
portions of the property to Breck Bears. The Town intends to terminate the lease in
2017 to coincide with site preparation and development of the water treatment plant.
There are portions at the eastern property border with mature trees along the bike path
and CDOT right of way.

North: Stan Miller Residential Master Planned residential area, Breckenridge
Building Center commercial retail site

East: Highway 9, Silver Shekel Subdivision, Highlands at Breckenridge

South:  Tatro PUD (Summit County)

West:  Tract 2 of the McCain Master Plan (future residential/service commercial
area)

0 SFEs (Governmental Uses such as the water treatment plant are exempt from
density requirements.)

Water treatment plant (governmental use)
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Height: Recommended per LUD 43- Generally, building heights in excess of 2 stories are
discouraged. Exceptions may include related mining
operation facilities.

Parking: Required: Per Chapter 3, Off Street Parking Regulations of
The Town Code.

Item History

The Planning Commission reviewed the McCain Master Plan Modification at a work session on November
3, 2015 and at a Town Project Public Hearing on December 1, 2015. The Commission also visited the site
as part of their fall field trip. At the December 1 hearing the Planning Commission unanimously
recommended that the Town Council approve the McCain Master Plan Modification. On December 8§,
2015 the Town Council held a Town Project Public Hearing and approved the McCain Master Plan
Modification. The Plan Modification amended the previous 2012 McCain Master Plan, which provided
general land use guidance for the McCain property. The 2015 Plan Modification identified specific uses for
a total 13 different land use tracts on the McCain Property. The following table describes the allowed land
uses in each tract. Tract 1 is the area proposed to be developed under this application, under the Town
Project process.

The choice of Tract 1 for the water treatment plant was determined by several factors. Given the Town
Council’s desired groundbreaking timeline of spring 2017, it was preferable to utilize a site that was already
graded and ready for final site preparation. Tract 1 fits this well as the site is generally flat and contains an
existing business. Most of the other tracts on McCain include large areas of undulating terrain and would
require extensive grading in order to prepare for development. Another key location factor considered was
proximity to Highway 9. Location near Highway 9 was preferable to limit the cost of extending water
lines: 1) running from the pumpback near Lake Dillon to the property, and 2) running across the
highway and uphill through Silver Shekel and the Highlands to the Highlands water tank.

McCain Master Plan Modification (December 8, 2015)

Tract Area Density Tract Uses

Tract 1 3.8 acres | 0 SFEs Water treatment plant and uses
(Governmental Uses are accessory to the plant (e.g., settling
exempt from density pond)
requirements.)

Tract 2 10.2 acres | 3.71 SFEs for the purpose of | Residential deed restricted affordable
affordable housing have employee housing of an approved mix
been previously allocated to | of housing types (single family,
the site. In addition, duplexes, and multi-family units) with
additional density (up to a a maximum density of 20 UPA
maximum of 20 UPA) to
accommodate affordable Industrial (existing)
housing may be transferred e Mining, material processing,
to this tract and is not batch plant operations
subject to the point
deductions in the Town Service commercial Uses (e.g.,

Land Use Guidelines landscaping business, contractors yard,
Density Policy 3/R. other similar uses that are not retail)
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1:25 FAR for Service
commercial uses. Any
permanent structures built
shall require a density
transfer.

Tract 3 4.7 acres | 0 SFEs Public Works Storage
(Governmental Uses are
exempt from density
requirements.)

Tract 4 2.7 acres | 0 SFEs Solar panel garden and uses accessory
(Governmental Uses are to the solar garden (e.g., fencing,
exempt from density electric inverter)
requirements. )

Tract 5 2.7 acres | 0 SFEs Solar panel garden and uses accessory
(Governmental Uses are to the solar garden (e.g., fencing,
exempt from density electric inverter)
requirements. )

Tract 6 1.5acres | 1:25 FAR Service commercial uses (e.g.,

Any permanent structures landscaping business, contractors yard,
built shall require a density | other similar uses that are not retail)
transfer.

Tract 7 2.1 acres | O SFEs Snow storage
(Governmental Uses are
exempt from density
requirements.)

Tract 8 10.5 acres | 0 SFEs Snow storage
(Governmental Uses are
exempt from density
requirements.)

Tract 9 23.6 acres | 0 SFEs Open space and trails and uses
accessory to open space (e.g., bike
repair station, picnic shelter)

Tract 10 5.6 acres | 0 SFEs Overflow parking and accessory uses

(Governmental Uses are (e.g., bus stop and shelter)
exempt from density
requirements.)

Tract 11 1.4 acres | 0 SFEs Recycling Center
(Governmental Uses are
exempt from density
requirements. )

Tract 12 36.4 acres | 0 SFEs 300’ River Corridor, wildlife habitat
west of the Blue River, open space and
trails and uses accessory to open space
(e.g., bike repair station, picnic shelter)

Tract 13 16.4 acres | 0 SFEs 150” Highway 9 Setback, landscape

buffers, open space and trails and uses
accessory to open space (e.g., bike
repair station, picnic shelter)

The 2015 McCain Master Plan Modification also contains a series of Master Plan Notes related to Setbacks,

Building Height, Architecture, and Landscaping.
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Staff Review

This worksession is to introduce the initial program and conceptual architecture associated with the McCain
Water Treatment Plant Buildings. We are seeking Planning Commission input on the general site layout,
massing, architecture and finishes.

Items that are specifically subject to criteria listed in the McCain Master Plan are listed in this report. As the
development moves forward, we will present further detail and all associated policies of the Development
Code for the Commission to review. Signage will be reviewed with a separate permit application.

Land Uses and Density (Policies 2/A & 2/R, 3/A & 3R, 4/R): Subject to the McCain Master Plan. We
have no concerns.

Architectural Compatibility (5/A & 5/R): Per the Master Plan notes:
Architecture:

1. This Master Plan is not within the Breckenridge Conservation District boundary and does not seek
to replicate Breckenridge’s historic architecture. Architecture should be sensitive to the McCain
property’s scenic function. Due to high visibility of the property, architectural design is of great
importance and should incorporate low profile designs and non-contrasting colors.

2. The color of exterior structure materials must generally be subdued. Earth tones are encouraged
although accent colors which are used judiciously and with restraint may be permitted.

3. Architectural detail and design will meet all applicable Town Codes.

The agent has provided an architectural dialog that is part of the worksession discussion for the Planning
Commission. There are several samples of existing buildings attached exploring form, color and material
that might be considered for this proposal.

Based on the functions of the treatment plant, multiple buildings and structures are proposed. The massing
of the buildings are a function of the equipment and machinery housed in the buildings.

The on-site functions are to include:
¢  Administration Building.
¢ Blending Tank “Water Tank”.
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Processing Building.

Service Building.

Parking and driveways for general public.
Fenced area for service trucks and employees.
Residual Building.

Buried residual well and clear well.

Pump Building.

There are four primary structures shown on the site plan with some of the other functions listed above
within some of the buildings. The mechanical interconnectivity and functions of private and public use
determined the placement of the buildings on the site.

The Processing/Administration/Service Building is shown with the massing models as what could have
been an old large barn with later additions as time went by. The focal point of the building is the taller gable
roof form flanked by lower shed roofs. Additional flat roof and lower shed roof forms are attached to the
north side. The south roof is shown with solar panels.

To the south, the parking and entry to the Processing/Administration/Service Building is the primary
access and public entry to the facility. The smaller forms and shed roofs breakup this lower mass.

To the west Residual Well Building has similar forms as the Processing/Administration/Service
Building but on a smaller scale.

Building Height:

Tall buildings can impact the views of the property from Colorado Highway 9 and therefore building height
restrictions are proposed beyond the above-described 150 foot setback area from Highway 9:

Where buildings are proposed within 200 feet of the Highway 9 right-of-way, building heights in excess of
two (2) stories are prohibited. For buildings beyond 200 feet of the Highway 9 right-of-way, building
heights in excess of two (2) stories are discouraged.

Existing mining operation facilities are exempt from height requirements.

The building height of the Pump Building is one-story and outside the 150-foot setback and within the 200-
foot setback. The rest of all development lies outside the 200-foot setback. Actual building height of the
buildings beyond the 200-foot setback will be reviewed with the future application - we anticipate negative
points being incurred as it appears that the uses in the building will drive the building height to exceed two
stories.

Placement of Structures (9/A & 9/R): Per the Master Plan notes:

Setbacks:

No buildings shall be located within a 150 foot setback from the east property boundary bordering the
Highway 9 right-of-way. Internal setbacks shall be per the Development Code.

All proposed development (above and below grade) is outside the 150-foot setback along Highway 9.

Internal Circulation (16/A) and External Circulation (17/A): Access to the property has been
designed for the employees and general public. Access to employee-only sensitive areas will be fenced
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and gated with access only at the north and south entrance drives. We will have fence and gate design
and material information when the application is submitted.

The public will access the property off the south directly opposite Fairview Blvd. and the roundabout.
The water tank acts as a landmark identifying this primary entrance.

The support and service trucks will enter from the north end of the site through a gated driveway into an
area that has access to the non-public “back-of-house” functions of the facility.

Landscaping (22/A and 22/R): Per the Master Plan Notes:

Landscaping:

All plantings shall comply with the Town of Breckenridge’s Development Code. Existing trees along the
Blue River and along sections of the recreation path/CDOT right of way will be preserved to the greatest
effort possible.

Landscaping along the eastern property boundary adjacent to the Highway 9 right of way should be
enhanced as reasonably possible to assist in providing an effective buffer from Highway 9 to the site.
Landscaping is also encouraged.

The plans are showing preservation of all the existing landscaping features along the Highway. This plan
preserves the buffering with large existing trees and existing berming. At this early review, there is no

proposed landscaping shown. We will have more information at the town project hearing.

Staff Recommendation

Staff believes this facility will be an important entry component to anyone arriving (or leaving) along this
portion of Highway 9. The desire is to create a modern building that still respects the history and heritage of
this portion of Summit County and the Town of Breckenridge.

Though the Planning Commission reviews submittals based only on the Development Code, extra input is
appreciated as this development goes forward. It is anticipated that, following this worksession, a formal
Town Project Submittal will be presented for your review.
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Bakers Tank

Historic Train Depots

4/12/2016
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4/12/2016

Historic Train Depot
Western Barn

Simple Forms, Barn Wood Siding, Vertical Windows, Window Patterns

'36' 2



Traditional Roof Forms, Mixed Materials, Structure

Metal Siding, Wood Siding, Window Patterning

4/12/2016
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Expressed Structure, Clean Lines, Textures

Forms-Solids Versus Voids, Natural Materials

4/12/2016
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Metal Roofing, Simple Forms, Shed Roofs, Punched Windows

Board Formed Concrete, Employee Patio

4/12/2016
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Subject:

Proposal:

Project Manager:
Date:
Applicant/Owner:
Agent:

Address:

Legal Description:
Lot S Site Area:
Land Use District:
Historic District:

Site Conditions:

Adjacent Uses:

Density:

Above Ground:

Density:

Mass:

Planning Commission Staff Report

Lot 5, McAdoo Corner
(Class A Development, Preliminary Hearing; PL-2016-0048)

To construct a new mixed-use building of a restaurant and apartment on Lot 5 of
McAdoo Corner Subdivision. The total allowed density is subject to the McAdoo
Corner Master Plan.

Michael Mosher, Planner I11

April 6, 2016 (for the meeting of April 19, 2016)

Breckenridge Wild Cat, LLC - Jeremy Fischer

Janet Sutterley, Architect

209 S. Ridge Street

Lot 5, McAdoo Corner

0.063 acres (2,730 sq. ft.)

18.2: Commercial and Residential (Subject to the McAdoo Corner Master Plan)
South End Residential Historic District Character Area #3

The property is basically flat. Lot 5 is vacant with weeds and one, poor quality, 11-
inch caliper lodgepole pine is located near the back of the envelope for Lot 5. The
McAdoo Corner Subdivision consists of three historic structures and two vacant lots -
Lot 5 and Lot 1. (Staff notes the McAdoo Master Plan includes the Tin Shop and
Dee’s Cabin across the alley.) There is an existing utility pedestal in the north east
corner of Lot 5. There are two sewer connections located at the northwest corner of the
platted envelope.

North: Lot 4, McAbee House West: Barney Ford House
South: Lot 6, Abbett Addition (currently Ridge Street Dental)
East: The Cellar Restaurant

Allowed per Master Plan: 3,375 sq. ft.
Proposed density: 3,375 sq. ft.
(750 sq. ft. Apartment & 2,625 sq. ft. Restaurant)

Maximum allowed for the entire Master Plan
@ 12 UPA (negative points were incurred with the

MST PLN approval): 7,710 sq. ft.
Proposed: 2,493 sq. ft. (Lot 5)
Allowed under Master Plan: 3,375 sq. ft.
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Proposed mass: 2,493 sq. ft.

Height (measured to the mean):

Recommended: 23°-0”
Maximum allowed w/ negative pts: 26’-0”
Proposed: 22°-6”
Parking: Required:
Restaurant Use (3.5/1,000 SF): 6.10 spaces
Apartment Use (1.1/1,000 SF): 1.00 spaces (on-site)
Proposed (on-site): 4.00 spaces (per Master Plan)
To be purchased in Parking Service Area: 3.10 spaces
Snowstack: Required: 610 sq. ft.
Proposed: 610 sq. ft.
Setbacks: Within platted building envelope
Item History

Five historic structures, on both sides of the "Barney Ford" alley, have been combined with two building
sites to form an enclave known as McAdoo Corner. The McAdoo Corner Master Plan (PC#2005073) was
approved by the Town Council on June 28, 2005. The final Point Analysis assigned negative eighteen (-18)
points accessed under Policy 5/R for going over the suggested 9 UPA, up to 12 UPA. Positive four (+4)
points were awarded for Policy 22/R on-site landscaping and positive fifteen (+15) points under Policy
24/R for onsite restoration and landmarking of five historic structures. The Master Plan passed with a total
point assessment of positive one (+1) point. All applicable Absolute Policies were met.

Since points were assigned under certain Development Code policies with the McAdoo Master Plan, it
affects all point assignments associated with future development on this subdivision. For example, no new
positive points may be awarded for landscaping or historic preservation and the above ground density is
allowed to be no greater than 12 UPA.

A previous development permit for a restaurant on Lot 5 had been approved and later renewed on August 7,
2012 (PC#2009009) but has expired. This application has a new design specifically addressing the revised
Policy 80A of the Handbook of Design Standards for the Historic and Conservation Districts.

Staff Comments

9-1-19-2A&R: Policy 2 (Absolute/Relative) Land Use Guidelines: The properties lie within Land Use
District 18-2 which allows both residential and commercial uses. Both uses were also approved with the
Master Plan. Staff has no concerns with the proposed uses.

This property lies within the Downtown Overlay District. The Downtown Overlay District was created in
order to maintain a viable and vibrant downtown commercial area, certain restrictions should be enacted
regarding land uses on ground floors. Such restrictions should provide for and encourage pedestrian
circulation and interesting shopping attractions for the residents of and the many visitors to the Town.

Past developments in the Downtown Overlay District have allowed residential uses as long as they are
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located upstairs or at the rear of the property. This proposal has the residential use at the back of the
property and primarily upstairs. The Entry, Mudroom, Laundry, and Storage for the apartment are off the
alley and on the first level. The primary living space is on the second level at the back of the lot.

9-1-19-3A/R: Policy 3 (Absolute/Relative) Density/Intensity and 9-1-19-4A/R: Policy 4 (Absolute and
Relative) Mass: The total allowed building density (above and below ground combined) for the entire
Master Plan is 15,141 square feet. (As noted above, negative points were awarded with the Master Plan for
exceeding 9 UPA.) The individual sites were allotted specific square footages to meet this cap. Lot 5 is
assigned a maximum of 3,375 square feet regardless of use.

The plans show that the total allowed density is being met and the above ground density and mass numbers
are less than the allowed. We have no concerns.

9-1-19-24R: Policy 24 (Relative) Social Community:

3 x (-5/+5) Conservation District: Within the conservation district, which contains the historic district,
compatibility of a proposed project with the surrounding area and the district as a whole is of the highest
priority. Within this district, the preservation and rehabilitation of any historic structure or any "town
designated landmark"” or "federally designated landmark" on the site (as defined in chapter 11 of this title)
is the primary goal. Any action which is in conflict with this primary goal or the "handbook of design
standards" is strongly discouraged, while the preservation of the town's historic fiber and compliance with
the historic district design standards is strongly encouraged. Applications concerning development
adjacent to Main Street are the most critical under this policy.

Per the Handbook of Design Standards for the Historic and Conservation Districts: New buildings
should be similar in scale with the historic context of the respective character area.

Priority Policy 80 states: Respect the perceived building scale established by historic structures
within the relevant character area.

®  An abrupt change in scale within the historic district is inappropriate, especially where new, larger
structure would directly abut smaller historic buildings.

® Locating some space below grade is encouraged to minimize the scale of new buildings.

For the South End Residential Historic District Character Area, the suggested average module size is
1,300 square feet with a range between 540 to 2,600 square feet. The proposed building is separated into
two masses with a connector between. The east mass of the building (the primary fagade) is 923 square
feet. The west mass, off the alley, is 1,268 square feet. Each falls below the suggested average module
size. We have no concerns.

Priority Policy 80/A states: The design standards stipulate that larger masses should be divided
into smaller “modules” and be linked with a “connector” that is subordinate to the larger masses.
The design standard for 80A states: use connectors to link smaller modules and for new additions to
historic structures.

A portion of Policy 80/A connector criteria states:
1. The connector and addition should be located at the rear of the building or in the event of a corner

lot, shall be setback substantially from significant front facades.
2. The width of the connector shall not exceed two-thirds the width of the facade of the smaller of the
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two modules that are to be linked.

3. The wall planes of the connector should be set back from the corners of the modules to be linked by
a minimum of two feet on any side.

4. The larger the masses to be connected are, the greater the separation created by the link should be;
a standard connector link of at least half the length of the principal (original) mass is preferred, a
minimum of six feet is required. (In addition, as the mass of the addition increases, the distance
between the original building and the addition should also increase. In general, for every foot in
height that the larger mass would exceed that of the original building, the connector length should
be increased by two feet.)

The plans show a 14-foot long connector. At recent Planning Commission meetings, Staff had reviewed
connectors for projects and discussed a connector length that was a cumulative addition of the height
difference between building plus one half the building length (as Policy 80/A suggests). At those
hearings, Staff noted that some of the language in this policy states “should” instead of ““shall”. We also
noted that, at times, the length of the structure, and an allowed addition, with a literally measured
connector could be difficult to meet.

For this proposal, placing a connector that is the cumulative addition of the height difference between
building plus one half the larger building length (as Policy 80/A suggests) would be result in a connector
that is 20-feet long. This would leave 15-feet at the back of the lot for the remaining density. Both
building modules being separated are less than the suggested average module size of 1,300 square feet.

Excerpts from past recently approved staft reports with similar situations for the connectors:

e Marvel House Addition, Restoration, and Landmarking - (PL-2015-0328) - The plans show
that the height of the one-story connector is clearly lower than either structure. The edges step
in at least 2-feet (2 to 10-feet). The proposed form is a simple gable with a door, barn doors for
trash, and a window. The length of the connector separates the historic structure front the new
by 18-feet. Staff believes the design meets the intent of Policy 804 by clearly separating the
massing modules with a subordinate form and design. (The Planning Commission approved
the connector design.)

e The Old Enyeart Place Renovation, Addition and Landmarking - (PL-2015-0361) - Staff heard
some Commission support during the last meeting that the connector length should not be the
cumulative addition of the height difference between building plus one half the historic
building length. The plans show that the height of the one-story connector is clearly lower than
either structure. The edges step in at least 2-feet (2 to 10-feet). The proposed form is a simple
gable with a door and a couple windows on the south elevation. The north elevation shows a
smaller bank of three windows set above the interior counter. Staff notes that these windows
will be difficult to see from Harris Street or the alley. The length of the connector separates the
historic structure front from the new by 17-feet. Staff believes the design meets the intent of
Policy 804 by clearly separating the massing modules with a subordinate form and design.
(The Planning Commission approved the connector design.)

The plans show that the height of the one-story connector is clearly lower than either structure. The
edges step in more than 2-feet. The proposed form is a simple gable with a door and small upper
windows. Staff believes the 14-foor deep length of the connector adequately separates the front module
from the larger back module.

Based on past precedent, Staff believes the design meets the intent of Policy 80A by separating the
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massing modules with a connector of subordinate form and design. Does the Commission concur?

Priority Policy 164 states: New buildings should have primary facades similar in dimension to
those found historically. Typical building widths of surviving historic buildings range between 16
and 44 feet; the average is 31 feet. The Design Standard states: Reinforce typical narrow front
fagade widths that are typical of historic buildings in the area.

®  Projects that incorporate no more than 50 feet of lot frontage are preferred.

e The front facade of a building may not exceed 30 feet in width.

The front fagade is 22-feet wide. The secondary fagade is 16-feet wide. We have no concerns.
Architectural Character

The architectural character of the building complies with the design standards of the Handbook of
Design Standards for the Historic and Conservation Districts and the specific standards described in the
South End Residential Historic District Character Area #3.

The primary fagade, or East Elevation, steps down in height at the entry creating a pedestrian scale

residential style entry with a porch that has tube steel columns (4 tubes to a column) on a fluted metal

base. There are also steel channel accents inside the gable end of the primary entry. (See below.)
»
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This is similar to what is used at the buildings at The Shops at Historic South Main Street.

The Shops at Historic South Main Street are located in the South Main Street Residential Character area
(.

Building Materials: - Policy:
The historic district should be perceived as a collection of wooden structures. A strong uniformity in
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building materials is seen in the area. Most structures, both historic and more contemporary, have
horizontal lap siding. This material is usually painted. A few historic log buildings serve as accents to
the lap siding standard. This uniformity of materials should be respected.

Design Standard.:

Priority Policy 146. Maintain the present balance of building materials found in the Character Area.

e Use painted wood lap siding as the primary building material. An exposed lap dimension of
approximately 4 inches is appropriate. This helps establish a sense of scale for buildings that is
similar to that found historically.

e Contemporary interpretations of these historically-compatible materials are discouraged. Wood
imitation products are discouraged as primary facade materials because they often fail to age
well in the Breckenridge climate. The long term durability of siding materials will be considered.

The verbiage above primarily addresses siding materials.

The installation of the steel columns at The Shops at Historic South Main Street was not addressed in any
Staff report. We also note that the same steel columns for the previously approved development on this
property were not addressed in the Staff report.

This building is located in South End Residential Historic District Character Area #3.

Building Materials: - Policy:

The historic district should be perceived as a collection of wooden structures. A strong uniformity in
building materials is seen in the area. Most structures, both historic and more contemporary, have
horizontal lap siding. This material is usually painted. Although a few historic log buildings serve as
accents to the lap siding standard, this uniformity of materials should be respected.

Design Standard.:
Priority Policy 165. Maintain the present balance of building materials found in the character area.

e Use painted wood lap siding as the primary building material. An exposed lap dimension of
approximately 4 inches is appropriate. This helps establish a sense of scale for buildings similar to
that found historically.

e Contemporary interpretations of these historically-compatible materials are discouraged. Wood
imitation products are discouraged as primary facade materials because they often fail to age well
in the Breckenridge climate. The long term durability of siding materials will be considered.

®  Modular panel materials are inappropriate.

®  Masonry (brick or stone) only may be considered as an accent material. Stone indigenous to the
mountains around Breckenridge may be considered.

® Logs are discouraged.

®  Rough-sawn, stained or unfinished siding materials are inappropriate on primary structures.

Again, this policy primarily addresses the siding materials.

From the Handbook of Design Standards for the Historic and Conservation Districts under Chapter 4.0,
Design Standards for the Rehabilitation of Existing Buildings in the Historic District.

4.0 - Design Standards For The Rehabilitation Of Existing Buildings In The Historic District
The standards for rehabilitation of existing buildings are organized into three divisions:
1. General principles for rehabilitation
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These apply to all existing buildings in the historic and conservation districts.
2. Standards for rehabilitation of residential-type structures

These apply to all residential-type structures, in addition to the General Principles for
Rehabilitation.
3. Standards for rehabilitation of commercial-type structures

These apply to all commercial-type structures, in addition to the General Principles for
Rehabilitation.

"Commercial-type" structures are those that originally were designed as a commercial building.
Similarly, "residential-type" structures were designed as houses, even though today they may be used for

commercial purposes.

Under section 4.4 - Standards for the Rehabilitation of Residential-Type Buildings

These standards apply to the renovation of primary structures that are residential. They should be used
in conjunction with the General Standards for Rehabilitation. The General Standards provide an overall
direction for rehabilitation that will preserve the integrity of all historic buildings in Breckenridge. These
special standards for residential structures provide more detailed guidance for issues that specifically
relate to this building type.

Design Standards:

Priority Policy 63 - Preserve original porches.
Replace missing posts and railings where necessary.
Match the original proportions and spacing of balusters.
Avoid using "wrought iron" posts and railings.

(Emphasis added.)
For New Construction:

5.0 - Design Standards For New Construction

New construction within the Historic District should be compatible with the character of the historic
resources found there. New designs that respect the general characteristics of the historic buildings
including their basic scale, form, and materials are likely to be compatible; this means that an historic
style need not be copied. Although historic styles may often be compatible, new design "styles" can also
respect the basic characteristics of the district and be compatible while expressing current concepts.

Staff believes the primary fagade of this building represents new construction with a non-residential use.
The steel columns are articulated to represent the general characteristics of historic columns on the
Historic District.

Does the Commission believe Priority Policy 165 applies to the proposed steel porch columns?

The double hung windows are vertically oriented and spaced with a similar solid-to-void ratio of other
historic buildings in the area. The porch has a rusted corrugated metal roof. The bay window has a dull
finished copper roof. The front door is a 3/4 glass panel. The main roof is a darker wood-like composite
asphaltic shingle.
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The siding of the front module shows that the entry/porch area is sided with 4-1/2 inch reveal clapboard
siding with a semisolid stain. As the building steps back, the next form is sided with 1X6 board-on-board
with a semitransparent stain. (See attached elevations.)

The North Elevation shows the front module, connector, and rear module. The masses are broken into
smaller forms with gable and shed roof forms. The double hung windows are vertically oriented and
spaced with a similar solid-to-void ratio of other historic buildings in the area. The connector has two
small windows set above the wainscot.

The siding of the front module shows the 1X6 board-on-board with a semitransparent stain. (See
attached elevations). The connector uses the same 1X6 board-on-board with a semitransparent stain with
a rusted corrugated wainscot. The siding on the rear module has more rustic finishes with 1X random
width rough sawn oiled finish.

The roof forms are simple gables with the asphaltic shingles with lower shed roofs sheathed in rusted
corrugated metal. We have no concerns.

The South Elevation is similar to the North Elevation with the exception of an added bay window in the
restaurant dining area in the front module. This window has inset painted wood panels at the base instead
of the clapboard siding. The double hung windows are vertically oriented and spaced with a similar
solid-to-void ratio of other historic buildings in the area. The connector has three small windows set
above the wainscot and a 3/4 light door. The siding on the rear module has more rustic finishes with 1X
random width rough sawn oiled finish with a small portion of a dull copper wall pane panel (less than
25% of the elevation).

The roof forms are simple gables with the asphaltic shingles with lower shed roofs sheathed in rusted
corrugated metal. We have no concerns.

The West Elevation, along the alley, has the residential apartment primarily upstairs (the Entry
Mudroom, Laundry and Storage is downstairs) and additional restaurant seating on the main level.
Again, the masses are broken into smaller forms with gable and shed roof forms. The double hung
windows are vertically oriented and spaced with a similar solid-to-void ratio of other historic buildings in
the area.

The siding on the rear module has more rustic finishes with 1X random width rough sawn oiled finish
with a small portion of a dull copper wall pane panel (less than 25% of the elevation).

There is a small upper level balcony shown. There is established past precedent for upper level balconies
with the Historic District as long as they are at the back of the property away from the primary fagade.

The agent is proposing steel in the upper level guardrail. (See below.)
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Similar to the discussion above, Staff is seeking Commission input on the use and location of steel
accents on this building as it relates to Priority Policy 165.

The roof forms are simple gables with the asphaltic shingles with lower shed roofs sheathed in rusted
corrugated metal. Staff has no concerns.

Priority Policy 163 states: Similarity in building heights is desired to help establish a sense of visual

continuity and to respect the character established by the small sizes of original buildings. Building

heights for new structures should be perceived to be similar in scale to those found during the historic

period of significance. The design standard for Priority Policy 163 states: Building height should be

similar to nearby historic buildings.

®  Primary facades should be 1 or 1-1/2 stories tall. The front-most fagade is one story tall.

® Refer to height limits in ordinance. (Note that the height limits are absolute maximums and do not
imply that all building should reach these limits. In some cases, lower buildings will be more
compatible with the context.)

The two-story rear module is 22°-6" in height measured to the mean, just below the suggested
maximum height. The historic structures to the north are one-story buildings. The historic building
across Ridge Street (Twist Restaurant) is a full two-stories tall. Staff believes the proposed building fits
in the historic context of the block and Character Area. Does the Commission concur?
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Snow Removal And Storage (13/R): The plans show that all of the hardscape areas will be snow-melted.
Negative points will be assessed under Policy 33/R below. There is ample space for snow storage along the
sidewalks if the snow-melting is not used. We have no concerns.

9-1-19-33R: Policy 33 (Relative) Energy Conservation: The drawings show that the areas being heated
for snow melt total less than 500 square feet. Based on past precedent, areas less than 500 square feet
warrant negative one (-1) point under this policy. Positive points may be obtained by having an IECC
energy analysis prepared by a registered design professional. A draft analysis prepared by a design
professional will be required with the next planning review submittal. At final review, a Condition of
Approval will be added requiring a final report prior to Certificate of Occupancy.

Refuse (15/R): All developments are encouraged to provide for the safe, functional and aesthetic
management of refuse. The existing Barney Ford Dumpster is shared by the surrounding uses. Plans show
a buried grease trap under the parking area for the restaurant use. We have no concerns.

Access / Circulation (16/A & 16/R; 17/A & 17/R): Vehicular access to the property is from the one-way
alley off of east bound Washington Street or along Ridge Street. Pedestrian access is provided by a
walkway to the main entrance off of Ridge Street or a rear entrance off of the alley. Staff has no concerns
with access and circulation.

Landscaping (22/A & 22/R): The master plan called for the entire property: five (5) conifers, (1) 6° — 8,
(2) 8 -10°, (2) 12’ — 15°, either Colorado Blue Spruce or Engelmann Spruce; thirteen (13) deciduous trees
either aspen or Narrow Leaf Cottonwood 2 to 3” minimum caliper at least 50% multi-stem; and, twenty
(20) shrubs of Alpine currant, Juniper, Potentilla, and Cotoneaster. Positive points were already allocated
for the landscaping plan during the Master Plan approval process. Lot 1 of the McAdoo Corner is still
undeveloped.

The submitted landscaping plan for Lot 5 is showing:

(3) Engelmann Spruce and Blue Spruce 8-10 feet tall
(2) Spring Snow Crabapple 1.5-2 inch caliper

(1) Narrow Leaf Cottonwood 2-3 inch caliper

(9) Aspen (50% multi-stem) 2-3 inch caliper

(9) Native shrubs 5-gal.

There are no trees at 12-15 feet tall, but Lot 1 is still undeveloped. The proposed landscaping plan meets
the requirements of the Master Plan. Per the South End Residential Character Area design standards,
Policies 171 and 172, Evergreen trees should be planted in the front yard and Cottonwood trees along the
street edge. Staff has no concerns

Employee Housing (24/R): As a commercial project of less than 5,000 square feet, this project is not
required to provide employee housing, and none is proposed.

Utilities Infrastructure (26/A & 26/R; 28/A): All the utilities are on the property, in the Ridge Street right
of way, or along the alleyway. We have no concerns.

Point Analysis (Section: 9-1-17-3): Based on direction from the Commission, the project may need to
remove the steel columns, Channels and guardrails in order to pass Priority Policy 163, an Absolute Policy.
Negative point and positive points have been suggested under policy 33/R related to the snow melted areas.
We anticipate a passing point analysis at the next hearing
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Staff Recommendation

Staff believes this proposal is off to a solid start and represents proper new construction infill for the
Historic District. We have the following questions for the Commission:

1. Does the Commission support the design of the 14-foot long connector for this building?
Does the Commission believe the design and material of the proposed steel columns, channels and
guardrails for this building do not relate to Priority Policy 165?

3. The historic structures to the north are one-story buildings. The historic building across Ridge
Street (Twist Restaurant) is a full two-stories tall. Staff believes the proposed building fits in the
historic context of the block and Character Area. Does the Commission concur?

Pending any substantial changes, Staff suggests this application return for a final hearing.
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Subject:

Date:

Project Manager:
Owner:
Applicant:
Agent:

Proposal:

Address:

Legal Description:

Planning Commission Staff Report

Gondola Lots Redevelopment Master Plan — Second Permit
Renewal - Class A Combined Hearing (PL-2016-003)
(Previous permit PC# 2009010)

April 5,2016 (For April 19, 2016 meeting)

Michael Mosher, Planner 111

Vail Summit Resorts, Inc. & Town of Breckenridge
Vail Resorts Development Company (VRDC)
Steve West, West Brown Huntley PC

Renew the existing development permit for PC#2009010 for three
years. No changes are proposed.

A master plan had been approved for the north and south parking
lots surrounding the town gondola terminal with a Condo-Hotel,
Townhomes, commercial uses, Mixed Use Building, a new skier
service/Transit facilities, and two Parking Structures. The proposal
also includes development on portions Wellington parking lot and
the East Sawmill parking lot, plus modifications to the Blue River,
all of which are owned by the Town of Breckenridge. This proposal
includes the transfer of 93 SFEs of density from the Gold Rush
parking lot to the north and south gondola parking lots.

A reduced parking requirement of 1 space per 1 Condo-Hotel unit is
allowed per an approved Development Agreement with the Town
Council (Reception #934609 - Expires May 27, 2023).

320 North Park Avenue (Gondola)

Tract A, Block 3, Parkway Center

Lot 1, Block 3, Parkway Center

Lot 1A, Block 4, Parkway Center

Lot 1B, Block 4, Parkway Center

Lot 1-A, Sawmill Station Square, Filing No. 3
Lot 1-B, Sawmill Station Square, Filing No. 3
Lot 1-C, Sawmill Station Square, Filing No. 3
Lot 2-A, Sawmill Station Square, Filing No. 3
Lot 2-B, Sawmill Station Square, Filing No. 3
Lot 3-A, Sawmill Station Square, Filing No. 3
Lot 3-B, Sawmill Station Square, Filing No. 3
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Site Area:

Land Use Districts:

Historic District:

Existing Conditions:

Adjacent Uses:

Lot 4, Sawmill Station Square, Filing No. 3
Lots 71-74, and Lots 87-90, Bartlett & Shock Addition

Approximately 17.07 acres

Site improvements area (no density) = Land Use District 19 (1:1
FAR/20 UPA Commercial)

Development Area (density per Master Plan) = Land Use District
20 (1:3 FAR, Lodging or Commercial; Building Height - 3 stories,
except along the Blue River and Watson Avenue, which is 2 stories)

The main development area is outside the Conservation District.
A portion east of the Blue River is located inside the “8 River Park
Corridor” Transition Character Area.

Most of the site is used for paved and unpaved guest parking for the
Breckenridge Ski Resort. Portions of this plan currently include the
Breckenridge Station Transit Center, the Breck-Connect Gondola
FirstBank and mountain ticket office. East of the Blue River are the
Wellington and East Sawmill parking lots. There is no significant
vegetation on the site, except for willows along the river, and new
landscaping around the paved north gondola lot. The site slopes
downhill from south to north at a rate of 2-3%.

North: Parkway Center Plaza/City Market

South: FirstBank, Town Hall, and the Breckenridge Professional
Building

East: Blue River, Main Street and Mixed Use Buildings

West: Park Avenue, Mountain Thunder Lodge, and Gold Rush lot

Action Requested By Planning Commission

The Applicant is requesting that the Planning Commission renew the existing Development
Permit for three years. This is the second request for an extension of this permit. During review
of an application like this, the Commission should focus on any Code changes that have been
adopted subsequent to the previous permit approval. In this case, Staff has found that the only
relevant code issue that would affect this application is under Policy 24/R, Social Community, as
it relates to Town Council Goals. This related discussion follows below in this report.

Staff notes that, with new Planning Commissioners that were not involved in the past reviews of
this application, we have included all relevant information on the project in this report.

Following is the portion of Section 9-/-17-11 of the Development Code that allows a permit

extension:

-74-



1. Extension of Vested Property Rights: A development permit and the vested
property rights for such project may be extended by the planning commission. An
application for an extension shall be made in writing to the director and shall
include such submittal information as the director may require. Such application
must be received at least thirty (30) days prior to the expiration of the
development permit. An application for an extension which is received within the
specified time period shall extend the development permit and the vested property
rights for such project until such application is finally determined, and an
application for extension shall be considered even though, at the time of such
consideration, the development permit would have otherwise expired. Failure to
submit a written request for extension within the specified time period shall cause
the development permit and the vested property rights for such project to expire
at the end of the time period provided in subsection D of this section. An extension
application shall be classified and processed one classification lower than the
classification of the development permit which gave rise to the vested property
rights for the project. The planning commission may approve the requested
extension, deny the requested extension or approve the requested extension with
conditions. If an extension is granted, the planning commission shall fix the
period of extension which may be up to and including a period of three (3) years.

Item History

Ordinance No. 31 Series 2014 And Council Bill No. 35, Series 2014 modified the Code
definitions for condominiums and condo hotels. Specifically, “Condominium/Hotel” has been
replaced with “Condominium”. A condominium is defined as “a multi-unit structure in which
units may be individually owned and which provides on the site of the development recreation
and leisure amenities.” All references to Condo-Hotel will mean “Condominiums”.

As the current Master Plan and this report reference “Condo-Hotel” in the verbiage, we have
added a Condition of Approval that prior to recordation of the Master Plan, all references to
“Condo-Hotel” be changed to “Condominium”.

Designing for a master plan for this site began in 2006 when VRDC hired Ecosign Mountain
Resort Planners to develop a concept plan. After developing several concepts that were not well-
received by VRDC or the Town, another design firm, DTJ Design, was hired to complete this
process.

DTJ Design became involved in December 2007. In 2008, the Client Review Team, that
included VRDC, the Town of Breckenridge and DTJ Design, began the visioning process
towards the development of a master plan. DTJ Design came up with several different concepts
for this site, which were then narrowed down to two final concepts. These two are called “Extend
the Grid” and “Breckenridge Station” (also known as the “Grand Hotel”) concepts.

Eventually, these two concepts merged into one. At that time the public scoping process began
with stakeholder meetings held throughout the spring and summer of 2008. In the spring of 2009,
VRDC submitted a formal master plan permit application. The process was reviewed at six
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public meetings with the Planning Commission. The Master Plan was approved by the Planning
Commission on December 1, 2009 and placed on the Town Council’s Consent Calendar for the
December 8, 2009 public meeting.

The Town Council voted to “call-up” the application for a de-novo hearing. It was removed from
the Consent Calendar and presented again on January 26, 2010. The Town Council approved the
application, with normal vesting of three years. The vesting was extended in 2013 for another
three years, but development of the property is still pending and, as the vesting has ended, the
applicant is seeking a renewal of the permit.

Renewal (portions of this section of the code are listed below):

Extension Of Vested Property Rights: An approved development permit for a class A, B, and C
development, and the vested property rights for such project, may be extended by the planning
COMmMmISSION.

An application for an extension shall be made in writing to the director and shall include such
submittal information as the director may require. Such application must be received at least
thirty (30) days but no earlier than four (4) months prior to the expiration of the development
permit and the associated vested property rights. An application for an extension which is
received within the specified time period shall extend the development permit and the associated
vested property rights until such application is finally determined, and an application for
extension shall be considered even though, at the time of such consideration, the development
permit would have otherwise expired. Failure to submit a written request for extension within the
specified time period shall cause the development permit and the vested property rights for such
project to expire at the end of the time period provided in subsection D of this section. An
extension application shall be classified and processed one classification lower than the
classification of the development permit which gave rise to the vested property rights for the
project. No extension of a vested property right may be approved unless the approved project
complies with all town land use laws in effect at the time of the extension request.

When considering a request to extend a development permit and the associated vested property
rights, the planning commission and/or director shall consider all relevant circumstances,
including, but not limited to, the size and phasing of the development, economic cycles, and
market conditions. The planning commission may approve the requested extension, deny the
requested extension, or approve the requested extension with conditions. If an extension is
granted, the planning commission shall fix the period of extension which may be up to and
including a period of three (3) years from the date of the expiration of the original development
permit and the associated vested property rights. There is never an entitlement to an extension of
an approved development permit and the associated vested property rights, the decision to grant
or deny a requested extension lies in the sound discretion of the planning commission if the
extension is for a class A, B, or C development permit, or the director if the extension is for a
class D major or a class D minor development permit. (Ord. 1, Series 2014)
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For the record, Staff received a written request to extend the existing Development Permit and
complete application on January 6, 2016, more than 30-days before the expiration date of the
existing permit on February 12, 2016.

Project Goals

The visioning process, or goals, for this site began as collaborative effort between Vail Resorts
Development Company and the Town of Breckenridge.

During that process, several key design drivers were developed between VRDC and the Town to
help steer the project towards public and private design goals:

= Compatibility with Breckenridge: Create an environment that is compatible with the
values and character of the existing Town.

= Authentic story: Relate to the Town of Breckenridge in an authentic way, building on the
existing story of this strong community.

= Integration with the fabric of town: Integrate with the Town fabric so that the newly
developed area has a seamless Transition to the existing town.

= Balance Transit/transportation issues: Develop a balanced solution that improves the
Transit and transportation issues associated with the bus system, the gondola, the
Riverwalk/bike path, and the pedestrian experience.

= World class visitor/resident experience: Establish a world class visitor/resident
experience within the ski area, as well as the Town. This includes creating an outstanding
community that demonstrates a high level of quality and a character that will stand the
test of time.

= Sustainability: Develop a neighborhood that represents Vail Resorts Development
Company’s and the Town’s commitment to creating sustainable places.

Town Council Goals

Policy 24 (Relative) Social Community
Section B. Community Need

This policy allows for positive points to be awarded for projects and developments that
“Community Needs: Developments which address specific needs of the community which have
been identified in the yearly goals and objectives reports within the three (3) year period
preceding the date of the application are encouraged. Positive points shall be awarded under
this subsection only for development activities which occur on the applicant's property. (Ord. 1,
Series 2014)”.

The report, commonly known as the “Council Goals”, identifies many community wide goals,
based on the Vision Plan adopted in 2002. Developing a master plan for this site was a prior goal
of the Town Council, but has since been removed from the yearly goals and objectives, as this
master plan was approved in 2010.
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The 2016 Town Council Goals and Objectives heading that Staff believes is addressed with this
Master Plan is:

# 2. Implement actions that further the Town's efforts towards sustainability and reduction of
our community’s carbon footprint.

. Encourage certified businesses to take further efforts to reduce their carbon footprint.

. Identify and implement new initiatives that can further the Town’s sustainability efforts.

Sustainability

The Built Environment:

This goal of the Master Plan is heavily influenced by the Town’s commitment to sustainability,
which is discussed in more detail in the SustainableBreck Plan. As indicated throughout the
visioning process and documented in the Master Plan, sustainability is a core value of the
project. Based on input from the Council, the Master Plan language has been revised to create
more definitive sustainability goals for the project. The Applicant is willing to commit to a
nationally recognized, third-party energy certification program to be agreed upon between the
Applicant and the Town. Additionally, the Applicant must meet the Town’s sustainable code in
effect at the time of construction for the buildings in the master plan.

The plan is designed to incorporate sustainable design into as many elements as possible. The
Vision Plan identified “sustainability” as one of the main design drivers of this plan: “Develop a
neighborhood that represents Vail Resorts Development Company’s and the Town’s commitment
to creating sustainable places.” This Master Plan plans to steer the design by indicating that
nationally recognized third-party energy certifications will be sought with the specific
certification program to be determined in the future between the Town of Breckenridge and Vail
Resorts Development Company. The plan also includes new language on the recycling or reuse
of materials from the existing Breckenridge Station, which is not anticipated for re-use. The new
Master Plan language from Sheet 1 reads as follows:

“The Master Plan is designed to create an efficient and sustainable development. The project
will explore ways to reduce the environmental and carbon impact of the development. The latest
proven technology available is intended to be used to create a highly sustainable development.
The development will be designed according to a nationally recognized third party certification
program to be agreed upon by the Town of Breckenridge and Vail Summit Resorts, Inc. In
addition the project will meet the then-current Town sustainability code.

The existing Transit Building will be removed. A relocation, demolition, and material
management plan will be developed to identify materials to be diverted from disposal and sorted
to be either salvaged for reuse or recycled. The plan will consider recycling cardboard, metal,
brick, mineral fiber panel, concrete, plastic, clean wood, glass, gypsum wallboard, and
insulation. Construction debris that can be processed into a recycled content commodity that has
an open market value will be recycled. A specific area on or off the construction site will be
designated for segregated or comingled collection of recyclable materials, and recycling efforts
will be tracked for the Transit Building. Diversion or reuse of materials may include donation of
materials to charitable organizations and salvage of materials on-site.”
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Focusing on the current Council Goals and specific language, Staff believes that the current
Council Goals for sustainability has been met with this application:

2) Implement actions that further the Town's efforts towards sustainability and reduction of
our community’s carbon footprint.
e FEncourage certified businesses to take further efforts to reduce their carbon footprint.

e [dentify and implement new initiatives that can further the Town'’s sustainability

efforts.

Staff feels that this language helps to strengthen the sustainability commitment by the Applicant
and will ensure a highly sustainable development. In addition to this language in the Master Plan,
all buildings will be subject to the “then-current” sustainability codes in effect at the time of
development. The current Development Code allows positive points for energy conservation and
renewable sources of energy under Policy 33/R. It is difficult at this time to assign positive
points since the buildings are not yet designed, and specific sustainability features have not been
identified.

We recommend positive three (+3) points under this policy. As a result, Staff recommends that
points still be allocated under this policy. Does the Commission concur?

Transit Access

9-1-19-25R: Policy 25 (Relative) Transit:

All buses, shuttle vans, etc. are to access the west portion of the site from Watson Avenue and
depart from a new curb cut onto North Park Avenue. A mountable curb has also been shown to
allow buses to use North Depot Road in case the egress to North Park Avenue is blocked.

The current Transit building (Breckenridge Station) would be removed (there are no current plans
to re-use the building). All new Transit operations would operate from the new Transit / Skier
Services Building. Planning Commission previously supported positive four (+4) points for this
design due to improved Transit circulation, and since the waiting experience would be improved
with the new Transit station, the pedestrian experience at the plaza would be improved without
idling buses so close, and pedestrian conflicts would be reduced.

During the two year visioning and master plan development, the Staff and Applicant worked a
great deal with the local Transit operators to create an improved Transit Center. The
improvements listed below were a result of interaction with Transit providers on how to improve
their Transit Center. The positive four (+4) points were awarded based on the following
improvements:

* The design allows for 11 bus parking stalls to be in one place and to load from the same
side. This is more typical of a typical large transit station and allows riders to view the
loading side of all of the buses from one location. Currently, buses are dispersed in the

-79-



turn-around and on Watson Avenue, creating a difficult situation for people waiting for the
bus, crossing loading areas, and trying to figure out where they wait for their bus.

* The Master Plan accommodates the largest bus used in Summit County in all spaces shown
in the plan. The new design provides space for the different bus systems to use larger
buses in the future.

* The Master Plan also creates the potential to add a 12th bus by providing a spot along
Watson for a “Main Street Trolley” bus if the Town desires to add one. If this spot is not
used for a “Main Street Trolley” then it can be used for future expansion or built to serve as
a drop off for touring buses.

» The new design also greatly reduces the pedestrian and vehicular conflicts with buses. The
Transit center is moved out of the center of the pedestrian flow between the Parking
Structures and the gondola and vehicular traffic is greatly diminished on Watson Avenue.
If pedestrians are in the bus area it will not be because they are trying to navigate an icy
walk to the gondola. Today, there are many instances with cars dropping off in the bus
area and pedestrians cutting across the loading zones to access the gondola. This plan
reduces these conflicts.

* The Master Plan shows a new Transit building that will have an upgraded environment,
creating a pleasant experience while waiting for the bus. The building could be designed
with a café and small store for getting a hot coffee and a sandwich while waiting, and could
serve both skiers in the plaza and Transit riders. The waiting area has the potential to be a
great place to enhance the bus riding experience.

* The bus-only exit onto North Park Avenue also includes a merging lane when the buses
turns left, allowing the buses to have a place to stage before entering traffic. This allows
the bus to only deal with one flow of traffic when exiting and then merge separately
creating a much more accessible exit to Park Avenue.

* The plan also develops a round-about at North Park Avenue and French Street so that
during heavy traffic times when buses cannot make a left turn out of the Transit exit they
can turn right and navigate the round-about to head south.

Parking

9-1-19-18R: Policy 18 (Relative) Parking:

Parking for day visitors to the Breckenridge Ski Resort will be in two new Parking Structures.
Parking for all new uses will be provided in structures beneath the new buildings, except the Skier
Services Building, Warming Hut and Conference Center, which will also be in the Parking
Structures. Also, some parking for the mixed-use building is on South Depot Road.

The Parking Structures are sized to accommodate approximately 1,270 vehicles, (535 in the south
structure and 735 in the north structure), which exceeds the current capacity of the two surface
skier parking lots. The current surface lots each hold slightly less than 600 cars. A specific note
has been added to the Master Plan to indicate the south Parking Structures will hold a minimum
of 400 cars, but would likely hold closer to 500.

The south Parking Structures is conceptually designed to have 133 cars per floor. Since the
baseline is 535 cars, the limit for size is set at 400 so that there is flexibility to remove a floor if

-80-



necessary due to unknown soil conditions, redesigned hotel layout, or business issues related to
the financing of the structure. It is also important to note that the structure could be phased by
level and not initially built to its ultimate size.

No new surface parking lots are proposed, but some on-street parking is shown along North and
South Depot Roads (not a right-of-way), which would be privately maintained. Staff proposes that
the on-street parking be allowed to count toward the provision of required parking. (The definition
of an “off-street parking space or stall” is: “A parking space for a motor vehicle which is located
on the property to be developed and not on or within any public property or public street, alley or
right-of-way.”)

These spaces are not on any public street, alley or right-of-way. Considering that the Applicant is
constructing the street and will own and maintain all of the private streets, Staff believes that
these parking spaces should be counted towards the parking totals. Since on-street parking is not
normally counted toward the parking supply, we have added a special finding to the proposed
Findings and Conditions. (See Finding #7)

Per Sheet 1 of the master plan notes, parking for the Condo-Hotel, Townhomes and residential
portions of the Mixed Use Building will be beneath each building. The Master Plan identifies the
following parking requirements for each use:

Use Parking Parking Required Location
Proposed by Code
Townhomes 2 per unit 1.5/ 1-bedroom and larger | Under building
Condo-hotel 1 per unit 1.0/ studio or 1-bedroom | Under building
1.5/ 2-bedroom or larger Under building
0.5/ lock-off unit Under building
Mixed Use Building 1 per unit 1.5/ 1-bedroom or larger | Under building
(Residential)
Mixed Use Building 1/400 sq. ft. 1/400 sq. ft. Parking on street
(Commercial)
Skier Services 0 Special review by In Parking Structure
Commercial Director and Planning
Commission
Conference Space in 0 extra spaces Special review by In Parking
Hotel Director and Planning Structure.
Commission Conference
attendees would
park under hotel or
in structure.

The 9-3-1, Off-Street Parking Regulations identify the required parking spaces for any uses.
Section 9-3-8 B allows Mixed Use Developments of greater than 100,000 square feet to base the
parking requirements on a qualified parking study.
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“D. Mixed Use Developments: The requirements of this Section may be increased or decreased

for a mixed use development containing not less than one hundred thousand (100,000) square
feet. Such change shall be accomplished by a development agreement in connection with the
approval or amendment of a master plan. Any request to vary the requirements of this Section
shall be supported by a written analysis paid for by the applicant and prepared by a qualified
parking consultant. Once approved, the development agreement and master plan shall establish
the off-street parking requirement in lieu of that set forth in this Section and shall serve as one of
the controlling development policies for a site plan level development of the property which is
the subject of the master plan as provided in subsection H of policy 39 "(Absolute) Master Plan",
section 9-1-19 of this title. (Ord. 3, Series 1999)”

A revised parking study from Felsburg, Holt & Ullevig transportation consultants was provided
to Staff and was also provided to the Town Council for the initial parking development
agreement on December 2, 2009. The study explains why the parking plan is considered
sufficient. The study makes several assumptions about the guest arrival mode split (Transit usage
by guests and employees) and varying peak demand times based on use. As mentioned earlier in
this report, the Town Council has approved a reduced parking supply of one (1) parking space
per one (1) Condo-Hotel unit, as opposed to 1.5 spaces per 2 unit as allowed by the Code.

Staff supports the idea of shared parking among uses. We support the reduction in parking for
the Condo-Hotel, due to the proximity of public Transit to this site, the proximity of downtown,
and the overall walk-ability of the location of this development. Based on the items above, we
believe this property will reduce demand for parking.

At this time and based on recent past precedent, Staff recommends positive four (+4) points for
providing over 95% of the required parking screened in a structure or under buildings. We also
recommend positive one (+1) point for making parking available to the public (in the structure)
and positive one (+1) point for shared driveway access (shared with FirstBank and Town Hall on
the south structures.)

Source of Density

9-1-19-3R: POLICY 3 (Relative) Compliance With Density/Intensity Guidelines:

The density (SFE = Single Family Equivalent) allocated to these sites comes from several
sources for this property, including the underlying Land Use Guidelines, previous master plans,
previous PUDs, and previous density transfers.

Gold Rush Lot Gondola North Gondola South TOTALS
Block 4, Lot Lot
Parkway Center Block 3, Sawmill Station
Parkway Center Square
Original/Previous 190 SFE 103 SFE 149 SFE 442 SFE
Density (SFEs)
Density (50) SFE (30) SFE (50) SFE (130) SFE
Transferred to

-82-



Peaks 7 & 8
Density (47) SFE (5) SFE (59) SFE (111) SFE
Reductions
(25%)
Remaining 93 SFE 68 SFE 40 SFE 201 SFE
SFEs
Density Proposal
Master Plan Density Distribution *
Building Type Proposed Maximum Maximum Maximum
Use Commercial SFE/ | Residential SFE / Total SFE /
Building Building Building
Townhomes Residential 0 SFE 60 SFE 60 SFE
(All 3)
Skier Services Commercial 25 SFE 0 SFE 25 SFE
Mixed Use Mixed Use 15 SFE 15 SFE 30 SFE
Building
Condo Hotel ** Mixed Use 20 SFE 150 SFE 170 SFE
Warming Hut Commercial 3 SFE 0 SFE 3 SFE

*Note.: This table depicts the maximum density (SFEs) per building. The total density for this
property (including the density transfer from the Gold Rush Parking Lot) is 201 SFEs, which will
not be exceeded unless affordable housing is added to the project. All affordable housing would
be in excess of the 201 SFEs.

**The Condo Hotel will have a minimum of 118 SFE of total density. This is approximately 152

Units.

As proposed, the combined maximum density allocations per building exceed the total allowed
density for the site. These densities indicate the most commercial and most residential density that
could be built at one building site, but the project, as a whole, cannot not exceed 201 SFEs. A note
has been added to the density chart to indicate that the Condo-Hotel would have a minimum
density of 118 SFEs. Also, no more than 25% of the total density can be developed as commercial
density, per Sheet #1 of the Master Plan (See “Master Plan Density” section.) No positive or
negative points are warranted under this policy.

The density distribution as shown on the illustrative plan is based on a best guess scenario, while
still giving each building room to be further designed. The specific buildings will have to be
designed under then-current market conditions and must have flexibility to be a successful project
at the time of construction. Town Council has stated the desire to have the Master Plan developed
as closely as possible to the vision plan. There are several elements of the Master Plan that will
control the size, mass and density of the buildings; including the Master Plan layout, density
restrictions as listed above, height restrictions in the guidelines, and architectural character
statements included in the plan.
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The Condo-Hotel is a major component of the project. The applicant has added language that will
guarantee a minimum of 118 SFEs for the Condo-Hotel buildings. Depending on the final design
of the units and the amenities, this building would have approximately 152 units. One scenario for
this building is that it will be much larger, closer to 140 SFE with 162 units.

Density Multipliers
The allowed density per unit is based on the Development Code in effect at the time of the master

plan application. The current multipliers, or allowed square feet per Singe Family Equivalent
(SFE), for uses proposed for this master plan are as follows:

Use Square feet per SFE
Townhome: 1,600 sq. ft.

Condo hotel (residential): 1,200 sq. ft.

Condo hotel (Commercial): 1,000 sq. ft.

Hqtel (with no kitchens of any kind in 1380 sq. fi.

units)

Mixed use building (commercial): 1,000 sq. ft.

1,000 sq. ft., provided that areas that are built to
serve the Transit function of the Skier Services
building will be excluded from counting toward the
total 201 SFE density within this master plan. These
spaces may include waiting areas, driver restrooms,
and restrooms for bus passengers, etc.

Skier Services Building (commercial):

There are no single family or duplex residential units permitted within this Master Plan. Also, no
density has been assigned for the Parking Structures. The current Development Code exempts “any
underground portion of a building which is used to provide required or approved parking for the
project” from the allocation of density in commercial projects. For multi-family projects,
“Common areas such as lobbies, hallways, and amenity areas shall not be counted against the
density”; such common areas include the parking below each building.

The code does not clearly indicate that the Parking Structures count (or do not count) as density.
Since the Parking Structures is not a commercial use, unheated, but is providing the required
parking for the Breckenridge Ski Resort, Staff does not consider this density.

Staft researched past precedent for other projects that have Parking Structures and underground
parking. These included Mountain Thunder Lodge, Main Street Station, Valdoro Village at
Breckenridge, Exchange Parking Structure and the Powderhorn condos. None of these projects
counted the Parking Structures as density (including above ground portions at the Village and
Powderhorn condos). The Staff report for the Exchange Parking Structure indicated that “the
proposal does not have any associated density or mass, since the above ground portion is not
enclosed and the below ground portion is used as parking.” In actuality, about half of the “below
ground parking” at the Exchange Parking Structure is above grade. We have also not counted the
Parking Structures in this master plan as mass.
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Mass Bonus: 9-1-19-4R: Policy 4 (Relative) Mass. allows a bonus of floor areas in addition to the
allowed density, for provision of above ground common elements such as lobbies, hallways,
recreation areas, meeting rooms, etc. The allowed mass multiplier is based on the use. Mass
multipliers in the current Development Code are:

Townhomes: 20% of allowed density
Condominiums and Apartments: 15% of allowed density
Condo-hotels and Hotels: 25% of allowed density
Commercial: no bonus

Deviations from the recommended mass are allowed, but negative points are allocated on an
incremental scale. Staff also notes that although the density for these properties are determined by
a recorded Density Transfer Covenant, the underlying density in Land Use District 20 was based
on the Floor Area Ratio (FAR) of 1:3 for this Land Use District. Section (4) B of Policy 4 also
states:

B. In a land use district where density is calculated by a floor area ratio only,
residential and mixed use projects shall not be allowed additional square footage
for accessory uses, and the total mass of the building shall be that allowed by the
floor area ratio of the specific districts. In residential and mixed use developments
within land use districts 18, and 19, no additional mass shall be allowed for the
project and the total allowed mass shall be equal to the allowed density. (Ord. 10,
Series 1990) (Emphasis added)

In this case, the density is not based upon a floor area ratio only. The recorded density covenant
allocates density to these properties, and the density is listed in SFEs (not in terms of an FAR).
Since the density is listed in SFEs and not an FAR, a mass multiplier will be allowed.

Since “allowed mass” is a function of “allowed density”, there is no mass allocated to the Parking
Structures. The structures will provide parking for outdoor recreational uses off-site (uses which
are not themselves density), and for public uses during the off-season. For this reason, no density
or mass is allocated or needed for the Parking Structures.

No negative points are currently warranted under this policy. Individual buildings will be reviewed
against this policy and points will be allocated (if any) during the development review process.

Site Plan and Land Use

9-1-19-2R: Policy 2 (Relative) Land Use Guidelines

The site plan is designed around five new uses, plus the existing gondola. These include a Condo-
Hotel, Parking Structures, Skier Services/Transit building, a Mixed Use Building, and
Townhomes. There is also an expanded gondola plaza, and new bus bays.
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Two Parking Structures are shown; one at the north end of the site adjacent to Park Avenue and
French Street, and another along Park Avenue behind FirstBank and Town Hall. These locations
were selected due to their easy access to Park Avenue, and also to maintain a more open and
pedestrian friendly environment near the center of the site.

A Condo-Hotel is planned near Park Avenue and Watson Avenue, across from the gondola plaza.
The bus area is to move to a location immediately west, along Park Avenue. This will help to move
the buses away from the gondola plaza, creating a more pedestrian friendly place without buses
and diesel fumes, and allows for a better connection to the Blue River. The existing Breckenridge
Station would be removed, and all Transit functions would be incoporated in the new Skier
Services building. The Skier Services/Transit building would face both the plaza as well as the bus
bays, and could be designed to lock off the Transit functions from the Skier Services functions, to
provide shelter when the Skier Services are closed.

Townhomes are shown at the northwest end of the site, next to the Blue River. These would be
accessed from a new private drive tentatively called North Depot Road, which also provides access
to the north Parking Structures. These units would be designed with views of and access to the
Blue River and pedestrian/bike path.

A mixed use structure is planned at the southwest portion of the site, between the Blue River and
the Condo-Hotel. This building would provide commercial uses on the ground floor, with
residential uses on the upper floors. This new private street will become one of the main pedestrian
and vehicular accesses to downtown from this property. To accommodate the development, the
relocation of the Blue River further to the east is shown with this plan.

There are also plans for a small building or kiosk at the east end of the gondola plaza. The specific
use for this building has not yet been identified, though it is tentatively identified as a “warming
hut” with up to 3,000 square feet of commercial density. Other potential uses might include a cafg,
restaurant, ice skate rentals, information center, etc. This sunny location should work well for aprés
ski activities, such as a restaurant/bar, which could act as a good meeting point at the end of the ski
day. Outdoor seating in this location could also help add activity to the plaza during summer
months, and would create a great vantage point for “people watching” toward the plaza and river
amenities. Staff finds the uses and relationship to the abutting Land Use Districts are compatible.
We have no reason to assign positive or negative points for the site plan or land uses.

Building Heights

9-1-19-6R: POLICY 6 (Relative) Building Height:

1 x (-2,+2) The height of a building has many impacts on the community. Building heights that
exceed the Land Use Guidelines can block views, light, air, and solar radiation; they can also
disrupt off site vistas, impact scenic backdrop and penetrate tree canopies that provide screening
to maintain a mountain forest character. It is encouraged that the height of new buildings be
controlled to minimize any negative impacts on the community.
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Land Use District 20 recommends buildings up to three (3) stories in height (or 38’ to the mean),
and along the Blue River and Watson Avenue, two (2) stories in height (or 26’ to the mean).
Buildings ranging from 1-1/2 stories (Skier Services/Transit) to 5 stories tall (Condo-Hotel) are
shown with this Master Plan. The Condo-Hotel building will be taller than most other buildings
in downtown or the adjacent Conservation and Historic District. The Master Plan is showing this
building located near other neighboring tall lodge properties. These include; Mountain Thunder
Lodge to the west and River Mountain Lodge to the south away from the Conservation and
Historic District.

The Condo-Hotel would be up to five (5) stories in height, with the fifth level of the hotel built into
the roof. This does not exceed the Absolute Policy, but warrants twenty (-20) negative points under
the Relative Policy. The Parking Structures would be up to three (3) stories tall on 4 levels, with
some parking on the upper (roof) level. The Townhomes would be 2 to 3 stories tall. The Mixed
Use Buildings are shown at about two (2) stories. The Transit & Skier Services building would be
about 1-1/2 stories.

This policy encourages incorporating density into the building roof structure. Staff believes that
this can be accomplished with the Condo-Hotel and Townhomes, and one positive point (+1) may
be warranted during the specific development review, not with this application.

Following is a portion of the Master Plan language on building height for the Condo-Hotel:

Heights of Buildings-This building will be up to five stories in height, not reflecting the
recommendations in the General Design Criteria for Land Use District #20. However the
outside face will incorporate the fifth floor into the roof, using dormers to create windows in
those spaces. The additional height within this building allows the other buildings to vary
between one and three stories throughout the site, creating a more organic spread of density that
reflects the adjacent communities that include a variety of building heights between five and one

story.

The Townhomes are shown at up to 3 stories. The Land Use Guidelines state: “The
determination of acceptable building heights will be made during the development review
process. Buildings in excess of three stories are discouraged, except along the Blue River and
Watson Avenue where buildings in excess of two stories are discouraged.” (Emphasis added)

The plan is designed to have lower buildings along the Blue River and near the Historic District,
with the taller buildings closer to the bed base west of Park Avenue. Portions of the Townhomes
are shown at 3 stories, but these taller building elements would be facing North Depot Road, with 2
story elements facing the Blue River. Language has been added to the Master Plan notes for the
Townhomes, to indicate that portions of the buildings along the Blue River shall be 2 stories, with
3 story elements allowed only along North Depot Road.

Due to the 5-story Condo-Hotel, Staff recommends the allocation of twenty (-20) negative points
under this policy.

Architectural Character
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The design character of the buildings will depend on each building’s use and location. For
example, the Mixed Use Building and Townhomes are closer to the Blue River and the Historic
District and will be shorter and will reflect the design character of buildings along Main Street. The
Condo-Hotel will be the tallest building on the site, and the most visually dominant. It is planned
as an icon for this site, and, as such, its scale will not be downplayed but be embraced and
celebrated. Also, the Skier Services/Transit building should be a unique and easily identifiable
building, and can be used to make a statement without impacting the historic district.

Condo-Hotel
Policy 5 (Relative) Architectural Compatibility recommends brick only as an accent:

Exterior building materials and colors should not unduly contrast with the site's background.
The use of natural materials, such as logs, timbers, wood siding and stone, are strongly
encouraged because they weather well and reflect the area's indigenous architecture. Brick is an
acceptable building material on smaller building elements, provided an earth tone color is
selected. Stucco is an acceptable building material so long as an earth tone color is selected, but
its use is discouraged and negative points shall be assessed if the application exceeds twenty five
percent (25%) on any elevation as measured from the bottom of the facia board to finished
grade. (Emphasis added)

The Condo-Hotel building will take its design cues from other civic structures in Town, such as
the old Summit County Courthouse on Lincoln Avenue and the Community Center and Library
on Harris Street. The intent with this new building is to use design features that could have
existed historically on a destination hotel in the Rocky Mountain west. There are five historic
buildings in Breckenridge made of brick. Brick has generally been used recently only on civic
structures in Breckenridge. Staff supports the use of brick and stone on this large structure. We
do not believe that a primarily wood sided building is appropriate on such a large building. Also,
as this building is near the downtown core, it is not appropriate to use rougher exterior treatments
that might be used in a more alpine setting.

Staff finds that the use of brick or cut stone is appropriate on a building of such scale in this
location. However, it should not be a primary material without allocation of negative points
during the development review for individual buildings, and we have included a condition of
approval to this effect. (No negative points have been assigned in the Master Plan for the use of
brick.)

Master Plan Language (Condo-hotel):

Architectural Character: This building plays a major role in the Master Plan and will reflect a
traditional downtown western hotel character. The building will create an iconic image within
the downtown and will emphasize the connection to the larger traditional buildings within Town.

Building Materials: Natural materials, including brick, wood siding, and stone may be used for
this building.
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Heights of Buildings-This building will be up to five stories in height, not reflecting the
recommendations in the General Design Criteria for Land Use District #20. However the
outside face will incorporate the fifth floor into the roof, using dormers to create windows in
those spaces. The additional height within this building allows the other buildings to vary
between one and three stories throughout the site, creating a more organic spread of density that
reflects the adjacent communities that include a variety of building heights between five and one

story.

Roofs: This building may have both gabled and hipped roof types. There may be flat roofs types
that also are used for outdoor decks.

Townhomes:

The Townhomes will take design clues from buildings on North Main Street. They will include
materials such as brick, stone and wood siding. Colors will reflect the colors of buildings in the
downtown core. Staff would like to see these buildings using traditional Breckenridge forms,
including steeply pitched roofs and vertically oriented windows. We feel that these design features
are important, as they will help this site to blend with the character of the adjacent Historic District.
We believe that brick should be used in only limited qualities, such as for foundations and
chimneys. It may also be appropriate to use stone on foundations and accents.

Master Plan Language:

Architectural Character: The townhome buildings will most reflect the character of the northern
Main Street community. These smaller building will reflect the smaller massing and historic
detailing found in much of the residential area of downtown.

Building Materials: Natural materials, including brick, wood siding, and stone may be used for
this building. The colors used within these building materials will reflect the colors of the
building in the downtown core.

Heights of Buildings: These buildings will be no more than three stories in height near North
Depot Road, and no more than two stories in height near the Blue River as recommended by the
General Design Criteria for Land Use District #20.

Mixed Use Building:

This building will most closely reflect the character of the older commercial buildings on the 100
block of South Main Street. They will have zero lot line setback (at the sidewalk edge), and will
include storefront windows on the lower level (for display of merchandise) and smaller upper level
windows in the residential units. The buildings will use a combination of wood siding, brick and
stone. Staff also suggests design features such as recessed entries, transom windows, kick plates,
cornices and sign bands. These features are important to create the commercial feeling of the street
and make the sidewalks welcoming to pedestrians. These design elements have been included in
the Master Plan notes.
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The roof forms include gabled, flat and false front roofs. It will also be important that the scale,
mass and fagade rhythm create the feeling of individual buildings. Some examples of newer
buildings that fit into the historic thythm of the 100 block of South Main Street include the Struve
building at 122 South Main Street, and the Rounds Building at 137 South Main Street.

Master Plan Language:

Architectural Character: This building will be the closest in character to the South 100 block of
Main Street. Historic looking storefronts with residential uses above and a zero lot line
appearance. Design features of these buildings could include recessed entries, transom windows,
kick plates, cornices and sign bands. Upper level windows should be smaller, residential type
windows. The building sits upon the main street of the site (Depot Street) and functions much in
the same way the buildings on Main Street function.

Building Materials: Natural materials, including brick, wood siding, and stone may be used for
this building. The color and primary material may change per each tenant space to give the
appearance of individual buildings. The colors used within these building materials will reflect
the colors of the building in the downtown core.

Heights of Buildings: This building will be no more than two stories in height and as
recommended by the General Design Criteria for Land Use District #20.

Roofs: This building may have a variety of roof types to create the Main Street image, including
gabled, flat, and false front.

Skier Services/Transit Building:

This building is planned to incorporate the architectural styling of a train station that could have
existed along Park Avenue (once the rail line). It is not a replica of any building that existed
historically in town, although the Town’s train station (with a much simpler design) was very close
to this location. The building is planned to reflect the railroad heritage of the west, which may
include a large sheltering roof with significant eaves, and focal elements such as a clock tower. The
building will use natural materials such as brick, wood siding, and/or stone. Colors will reflect dark
natural colors, such as the red brick of the old Summit County Courthouse in Breckenridge. It may
have both gable and hipped roofs.

Staff believes that the materials and style are appropriate for this development. We like the idea of
using features traditionally used in a train station, since this building will serve as a Transit Center
and the historic train station was near to this location. Also, some type of tower element will help
to visually identify this site as a gathering place and may serve a valuable function (for example, if
a clock is installed). We also support the use of brick on the building. While most historic
buildings in Breckenridge (including the historic train station) did not use brick, many civic
buildings did use brick. This civic type structure is unique and its function and architecture should
be celebrated.
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Master Plan Language:

Architectural Character: This building will represent the iconic nature of a Transit station in
Breckenridge. The design will reflect the traditional train depots of the west.

Building Materials: Natural materials, including brick, wood siding, and stone may be used for
this building. The colors used will relate to the historic Summit County Courthouse, as well as
the new Condo Hotel building within the project.

Heights of Buildings, This building will be no more than two stories in height and as
recommended by the General Design Criteria for Land Use District #20.

Roofs: This building may have both gabled and hipped roof types.
Parking Structures

The design of the Parking Structures will be some of the most challenging and important
elements of this plan. These large structures will need to accommodate their primary function
while fitting into the core of downtown without overwhelming the site. A variety of techniques
can be used to reduce the visual mass of the buildings, and to help them look less like traditional
Parking Structures. Changes in building materials, wall planes and the use of both solid and void
spaces can help the structure fit into the urban fabric of the site. They can also help the building
to maintain a human scale. However, it will also be important to identify these buildings as
Parking Structures, so that visitors quickly find their entrances and don’t congest traffic while
seeking a place to park. Proper use of landscaping and earthen berms can also be effective at
softening the scale and materials of large buildings.

Master Plan Language:

Architectural Character: Much of the architectural character for the two above ground Parking
Structures will be related to making the mass feel smaller and using materials that create a like
aesthetic to the community. The design will seek to lessen the visual impact of the Parking
Structures and help the buildings blend into the surrounding neighborhood through the possible
use of windows, faux windows, storefront, and other architectural techniques.

Building Materials: Natural materials; including brick and stone may be used for this building.
Additionally there may be some concrete panels and metal screening used to create additional
architectural interest. The colors used within these building materials will reflect the colors of
the building in the downtown core.

Heights of Buildings: These buildings will be no more than three stories in height and as
recommended by the General Design Criteria for Land Use District #20.

Staff and the Applicant will be happy to discuss ideas on how the Parking Structures may be
designed to minimize its visual impact and improve the aesthetics of these buildings.
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Gondola Roof Structure

During review and approval of the gondola itself, a roof structure was approved above the
gondola terminal in town. During the construction of the gondola, it was determined that the roof
structure could not be built at the same time if the gondola was to be open in time for the winter
of 2006-2007 season. As a result, the roof structure was not built, but foundations were installed
in anticipation of later installing the roof.

With the review of this Master Plan, the Applicants feel that the roof is not needed. They have
concerns over the size of the structure, and feel that the roof is not appropriate within this
development as planned. As a result, a note on the Gondola Building has been included on Sheet
1 of the master plan. The note essentially states that the roof structure is not compatible with the
architectural character of the adjacent buildings, and is therefore an impediment to the plan.
Following is the propose language in the master plan:

The plans for the Gondola approved under Development Permit #2004010 provided for a roof
structure to be constructed over the Gondola base facilities, but that structure has not yet been
constructed. The roof as designed may not be compatible with the architecture of the adjacent
buildings provided for in this master plan and, in addition, may present some impediments to
certain maintenance, repair, and replacement activities anticipated to be necessary.
Accordingly, to avoid a waste of resources, the roof should not be constructed as provided for
under Development Permit #2004010, [and] that Permit should be administratively amended to
delete the roof requirement.

Gondola Plaza & Amenities

9-1-19-24R: Policy 24 (Relative) Social Community

The success of this project will depend partly on the amenities and physical design of the public
spaces. The main public space in this plan is the expanded gondola plaza. The current plaza is
curtailed by the Transit staging area. The plan expands the plaza and ties it into the Blue River
much better, thereby making it a more pedestrian friendly area, particularly in summer when the
plaza could be used for special events.

The gondola plaza itself will be one of the most important and most visited spaces within this
plan. The plaza is the main loading and unloading zone for the gondola, and is designed to
accommodate large crowds. The space is designed to be large enough to handle the volume of
gondola riders, while remaining small enough to feel intimate on less crowded days. It will be a
place for meeting in the morning, and a place to reconnect for apres ski activities at the end of
the day. The plaza is designed with the Transit/Skier Services building to the west, the gondola
to the north, and the Blue River to the east.

A café with outdoor seating is planned for the Skier Services building, with seating facing the
plaza and the morning sun. Another outdoor seating area is possible at the warming
hut/café/restaurant near the river and pond. This area would be sunny in the afternoon and could
also work well as a coffee shop or a restaurant/bar for apres-ski activities. It would also provide
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great people watching in summer with the plaza, river and pond in view. The gondola plaza
would be built in Phase II.

Another public amenity is the new Transit staging area and Transit Center. The current Transit
staging area creates conflicts between buses, cars and pedestrians. The new location is designed
to minimize these conflicts, and could also help the buses stay on schedule by providing direct
access to Park Avenue, with a dedicated bus-only curb cut.

One other amenity of this plan includes a possible conference facility within the Condo-Hotel.
Although not “public”, this approximately 12,000 — 15,000 square foot facility would provide
additional venue space in the downtown core, which is a community need identified in the past
by the Breckenridge Tourism Office. Since it is unknown at this time exactly how much
conference space will be provided, Staff recommends that positive points (if any) be assigned
during the site specific development review of the Condo-Hotel, rather than at this time. As such,
no positive or negative points are recommended.

Vehicle Access And Circulation

9-1-19-16R: Policy 16 (Relative) Internal Circulation

The site is well served by an existing network of public streets including Park Avenue (State
Highway 9), Main Street, French Street, Watson Avenue and Ski Hill Road. These existing ROWs
provide the majority of the vehicular access to the site. Two new private roads are also shown;
South Depot Road, which connects to the existing Wellington Road at Main Street, and North
Depot Road, which will connect into the site from French Street on the north. Good pedestrian
circulation is also shown, with improvements to the Riverwalk providing good access to
downtown, and with a pedestrian bridge providing improved access to North Main Street.

Access to North Parking Structure

The north Parking Structures will take access from French Street. A new round-about is shown at
the intersection of French Street and North Park Avenue, which also intersects with the Gold Rush
Lot entrance. A new private street is planned from French Street into the south site area, which will
allow access to the Parking Structures and to the Townhomes. The road will also provide access to
the skier drop off area near the gondola plaza.

Access to South Parking Structure

Access to the south Parking Structures would be from North Park Avenue, just north of the
existing driveway for FirstBank and Town Hall. This existing curb cut would be relocated to the
north, and combined with the Parking Structures into one driveway cut. This change is proposed to
meet the Colorado Department of Transportation (CDOT) limitations on new curb cuts along the
Highway.
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Access into the south Parking Structures was one of the concerns raised by the public during past
meetings. Staff worked closely with the Applicant and FirstBank to address this issue. Other
alternatives considered for accessing the south Parking Structures included:

1. access from Watson Street;

2. relocating the access further north (across from Mountain Thunder Drive);

3. use of two access points (one into the bank and one for the structure);

4. loading the structure primarily from South Depot Road and;

5. swapping the structure and hotel locations.

These options were dismissed because they resulted in severe degradation of the project’s
circulation, increased conflict between pedestrians and vehicles, increased the traffic on Main
Street, and/or were not seen as supported by CDOT.

This access point to the south Parking Structure would be improved over the current curb cut at
FirstBank with the addition of new turn lanes, curbs and an access plan through FirstBank and
Town Hall.

The plan also includes some additional parking for FirstBank to the south of the Parking
Structures. This would be on Vail Resorts property, and a separate easement between the Applicant
and FirstBank will be needed. Finally, the design into and out of the Parking Structures would
include some curbs and turn lanes that ensure that vehicles entering or exiting the structure cannot
use the FirstBank and/or Town Hall property to access Ski Hill Road. Only FirstBank and Town
Hall customers and Staff could get through to the front of these buildings to access Ski Hill Road.
This option was important to ensure that bank customers could head south on Park Avenue, even if
the Parking Structures exit is congested or does not allow left turns out.

Pedestrian Circulation

In addition to the new vehicle circulation, several pedestrian improvements are shown. These
include pedestrian bridges across the Blue River near the gondola toward Main Street, a new road
with sidewalk from the Wellington Parking lot to the site, pedestrian pathways from the existing
ski back tunnel to South Depot Road south of the hotel, sidewalks along North Depot Road and
South Depot Road, an expanded pedestrian plaza in front of the gondola (separated from buses by
the Transit building), and an expansion of the Riverwalk behind the Mixed Use Building.

As a result of these pedestrian and street improvements, Staff recommends three (+3) positive
points for good circulation and separation of uses, as previously assigned the original and last

renewal.

Blue River Corridor

9-1-19-37A: Policy 37 (Absolute) Special Areas

The restoration and integration of the Blue River into the site plan are key goals of this Master
Plan. The river physically separates this site from the downtown core, but it will become a new
link to downtown through an extension of the existing Riverwalk and new pedestrian bridges. By
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creating a bicycle and pedestrian pathway along the river, the Riverwalk to the south will be
connected to the existing bike path on the north. This important link is currently missing, and this
portion of the river is currently inaccessible and generally unseen by most locals and visitors.

The river will also be improved for better aquatic habitat, including fish and other riparian
species. As this is a master plan and not a site specific site plan approval, many of the details of
the river restoration have not been determined at this time. Staff notes, a hydraulic analysis of the
river (including river width, elevation and flow/velocity) will be required by the Engineering
Department before development permits can be issued for Phase II or Phase III of this plan.

The Town of Breckenridge owns portions of the river. The landscape vision for the river includes
shifting the river to the east near the Mixed Use Building location. Also, the land east of the
Breckenridge Professional Building on Ski Hill Road is not entirely controlled by the Town or
VRDC, and as such, has not been included within this plan. The actual shifting of the river will
be a business issue and will need to be discussed in future meetings between the Town Council
and Applicant and then memorialized through future agreements.

Since there has not yet been a commitment by the Applicant to construct the river corridor
improvements, we do not recommend positive points at this time.

Phasing of River Improvements:

The river corridor improvements on the south side of the site would be installed along with Phase
III of the project. This phase includes construction of the Condo-Hotel, Mixed Use Building, and
South Depot Road. River corridor improvements north of Watson Avenue would need to be
completed along with the gondola plaza improvements. These developments are shown to be part
of Phase II, which also includes the north Parking Structures.

It is likely that the river improvements would be completed by VRDC at the time of their other
improvements within Phase III. Also, for South Depot Road to be useful, it will need to connect
to the Wellington Road extension, which timing has not been identified. These are business
details that need to be discussed between the Town and VRDC due to land ownership. Notably,
the Blue River adjacent to the Mixed Use Building is to be relocated to the east to accommodate
the new building. Construction of the river improvements may be included as part of the public
commitments made as part of a future development agreement for extended vesting or other
business issues to be reviewed by the Town Council.

Infrastructure

9-1-19-26R: Policy 26 (Relative) Infrastructure:

Roads:

In order to develop a large site such as this, many infrastructure improvements are usually
required. In this case, the needed infrastructure, including most of the roads and utilities, are
already in place due to the surrounding developed areas. The existing network of streets,



including North Park Avenue, Watson Avenue, and French Street help to feed traffic into and out
of this site. Two new roads are shown to supplement these existing streets, and provide improved
internal circulation. South Depot Road is planned to connect from Wellington Road on the east,
and tie into Watson Avenue on the north. This street is shown with on-street parking and
sidewalks, to help improve the pedestrian and shopping experience and increase the supply of
parking.

North Depot Road, which would connect from French Street on the north, would provide access
to the new Townhomes and the north Parking Structures. It would also serve as access to the
gondola drop-off, just north of the gondola.

Another new connection that needs to be identified in the phasing plan includes the extension of
Wellington Road. This road is part of the anticipated circulation plan for South Depot Road, but
its construction has not yet been identified in the phasing plan. It is anticipated that this road will
need to be constructed for South Depot Road to operate as designed.

Utilities:

There are water and sanitary sewer lines that surround the subject lots within North Park Avenue,
French Street, Main Street and Watson Avenue. There is also an existing natural gas line that
runs along the west edge of this property, near Park Avenue. This new development would
require the extension of some of these utilities. This would include expanding the water and
sewer lines along North Depot Road, and extending the water line along the Wellington Road
extension, South Depot Road and Watson Avenue to the west.

Storm sewer lines would be extended along Watson Avenue, and also along the north side of the
gondola, south of the Townhomes, with drainage flowing to the Blue River. Storm sewers would
also be extended from the courtyard of the Condo-Hotel to the new extension of Wellington
Road and into detention ponds or other water quality feature near the river. Lastly, the plans
show a storm sewer running along the south side of French Street, from the Parking Structures to
the Blue River. These utility locations are conceptual only at this time, but they show that some
new utilities will be needed, and are feasible with the current site plan.

Employee Housing

The proposal includes the provision of employee housing in an amount sufficient to earn positive
eight (+8) points for the development. The eight points was based on the recorded Covenant (Rec
# 942511) which provides for 22,089 sq. ft. or 8.51% of the anticipated density of the project in
employee housing, plus a 10% contingency. Since the density could be used in a variety of ways,
with a variety of density multipliers, we used the Applicant’s “best guess” plan plus a
contingency to determine how much density would initially be deed-restricted.

If less employee housing is required based on the actual square footage of density developed
than has been provided to earn these +8 points, deed restricted units can be released in the future.
If more density is required, the Applicant will be required to provide additional deed restrictions
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in the future.) We have added a Finding to this effect. Staff recommends positive eight (+8)
points.

Phasing

The construction timing for this project has not been identified, which will depend on market
conditions. This site will be developed over time. In order to allow this, a phasing plan has been
developed. The plan anticipates the need to construct the Parking Structures to replace surface
parking. It also allows for the Skier Services/Transit building to be built first, in a location that
does not impact guest parking. There are also a few aspects of the development that are not in the
phasing plan, including improvements to North Park Avenue and construction of the round-
about. The phasing plan has been included on Sheet 10 of the master plan.

Phase [:

Demolition or removal of the existing Transit building

Demolition of existing bus parking area

Build new Skier Services/Transit building

Build bus drop off/pick up area and access point to North Park Avenue

Phase II:

Build northern Parking Structures

Build three townhome buildings

Build North Depot Road and connect the bus area to French Street
Create gondola plaza

Construct river improvements associated with gondola plaza

Phase III:

Demolish surface parking lot

Build south Parking Structures

Build Condo-Hotel (Building may be built in two phases over time)

Build South Depot Road and extension of Wellington Road to South Depot Road
Build Mixed Use Building

Install river improvements south of Watson Avenue.

In addition to this phasing plan, there are some studies that are needed before certain phases of
development can begin. One of these issues relates to a hydraulic analysis of the Blue River,
including river width, elevation and velocity (flow). This information on the new design for the
river, and associated river improvements will be needed before Phase II and III begin, since
grading of the river can affect adjacent development. (Phase I, construction of the Skier
Services/Transit building, has an elevation set by the existing gondola, and can not vary
significantly.) As a result, Staff suggests that the phasing plan be removed from the current
master plan, and be considered separately, when more information is available. Some other items
that have not yet been identified in the phasing plan include:

Staff recommends these items in Phase I:
Construct round-about at intersection of North French Street and North Park Avenue
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Install and stripe turn lanes on North Park Avenue

Staff recommends these items in Phase 2:
Install and stripe turn lanes on French Street
Install pedestrian bridge across Blue River

Staff recommends this item in Phase 3: Construct expansion of Wellington Road through
Wellington Parking Lot.

We have included a Condition of Approval which states: “The phasing plan shown on Sheet 10
of the Master Plan is illustrative only, and is not part of this master plan approval. Prior to the
issuance of any Class A, B or C development permit for any development within the master
planning area, Applicant shall submit to and obtain approval from the Town of Breckenridge a
Class D development permit for a revised phasing plan, which shall include phasing for the
restoration of the Blue River and construction of the round-about at Park Avenue and French
Street.”

Point Analysis

All master plans are required to be reviewed on a point analysis, and shall comply with all
absolute policies, obtain a score of zero or more with respect to all relative policies, and comply
with all other applicable development policies of the town in effect at the time of the master plan
application. One of the issues with reviewing a master plan relates to the timing of the
assignment of points. While some elements of the master plan warrant the allocation of points
during the master plan review, other elements may not warrant point allocations until
development permit review. The following points are recommended at this time:

e Policy 6 (Building Height) -20 points for buildings up to 5 stories.

e Policy 16 (Internal Circulation)  +3 points for good vehicle and pedestrian circulation.

e Policy 18 (Parking-View) +4 points for providing parking underground or in a
structure.

e Policy 18 (Parking-Joint Facilities)+1 point for making parking available to the public.
e Policy 18 (Parking-Shared Access) +1 point for shared driveway access.
ePolicy 24 (Social Community

- Employee Housing) +8 points for providing 8.51% of density as employee
housing.
e Policy 24 (Social Community) +3 points for Council Goals, environmental sustainability.
e Policy 25 (Transit) +4 points for improved Transit circulation, improved

facilities and reduced vehicle and pedestrian conflicts.
The result is a passing score of positive four (+4) points.

Business Issues
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There are several issues related to land ownership, financing of improvements, maintenance of
improvements and the like, which need to be discussed and memorialized with Town Council in a
separate agreement. The master plan recognizes these challenges, and anticipates that such
agreements will be needed before this development proceeds.

Sheet 1 of the Master Plan includes a brief discussion of some of the business issues that are
anticipated at this time. These include: relocation and removal of property lines, operation of the
Transit facilities, maintenance of streets, financing of the Parking Structures, restoration of the
Blue River, extension of the Riverwalk, and extension of Wellington Road. We have included a
Condition of Approval to indicate that no Class A, B or C development permits will be issued for
development within this Master Plan until such business issues have been addressed. These issues
will be separately addressed by Town Council.

Staff Recommendation

This application was advertised as a Combined Preliminary and Final Hearing, and, as such, it may
be approved by the Commission at this hearing. Since there have been no Code changes in the past
three years that would affect this project, Staff has no concerns.

There are still several issues that have not been finalized in this application, which have been
included as Conditions of Approval. These issues are primarily business issues (i.e. property lines,
ownership and construction of public amenities, loss of parking, and construction of the river
improvements, etc.) that are not addressed in the Development Code, and need to be approved by
Town Council.

We look forward to your comments.

Staff recommends approval of this permit renewal with the attached Findings and Conditions, and
the Point Analysis as presented.
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Final Hearing Impact Analysis

Project: |Gondola Lots Redevelopment Master Plan (Permit Renewal) Positive Points +24
PC# 2009010 -
Date: 1/18/2013 Negative Points -20
Staff: Chris Neubecker -
Total Allocation: +4
Items left blank are either not applicable or have no comment
Sect. Policy Range Points Comments
1/A Codes, Correlative Documents & Plat Notes Complies
2/A Land Use Guidelines Complies Master Plan
2/R Land Use Guidelines - Uses 4x(-3/+2) 0 Lodging and commercial uses recommended
2/R Land Use Guidelines - Relationship To Other Districts 2x(-2/0) 0
2/R Land Use Guidelines - Nuisances 3x(-2/0) 0 None anticipated
93 SFEs of density transfer from Gold Rush
Complies Lot. Project shall not exceed 201 SFEs over
3/A Density/Intensity the entire site.
3/R Density/ Intensity Guidelines 5x (-2>-20) 0
Standard mass bonuses in place on April 2,
5x (-2>-20) 0 2009 (the date of the original permit
4/R Mass application) are in effect.
5/A Architectural Compatibility / Historic Priority Policies Complies
Will be reviewed during development review
for each building. Natural materials are
recommended. Brick is proposed as a primary
material on the condo-hotel and skier services
3x(-21+2) N/A building, rather than as an accent. No points
have been assigned at this time. Points for
use of brick and other architectural issues will
be reviewed during individual development
5/R Architectural Compatibility - Aesthetics permits for each building.
5/R Architectural Compatibility / Conservation District 5x(-5/0) N/A
R Cg:zltectural Compeatibility H.D. / Above Ground Density 12 (-3>-18) N/A
R Cg:zltectural Compeatibility H.D. / Above Ground Density 10 (-3>-6) N/A
6/A Building Height Complies
6/R Relative Building Height - General Provisions 1X(-2,+2)
For all structures except Single Family and Duplex Units outside
the Historic District
6/R Building Height Inside H.D. - 23 feet (-1>-3)
6/R Building Height Inside H.D. - 25 feet (-1>-5)
(-5>-20) =20 Buildings up to 5 stories (condo-hotel)
6/R Building Height Outside H.D. / Stories proposed.
Specific building designs have not yet been
6/R Density in roof structure x(+1/-1) N/A submitted. ) ° g
1x(+1/-1) N/A Specific building designs have not yet been
6/R Broken, interesting roof forms that step down at the edges submitted.
For all Single Family and Duplex Units outside the Conservation
District
6/R Density in roof structure 1x(+1/-1) N/A
6/R Broken, interesting roof forms that step down at the edges 1x(+1/-1) N/A
6/R Minimum pitch of eight in twelve (8:12) 1x(0/+1) N/A
2X(-2/42) 0 Site is vacant with no significant development
7/R Site and Environmental Design - General Provisions constraints.
7/R Site and Environmental Design / Site Design and Grading 2X(-2/+2) 0 No significant grading is proposed.
Site is in an urban area. No significant
buffering is proposed at this time.
4X(-2/+2) 0 Landscaping plans will be reviewed at time of
development permit, and buffering will be
7/R Site and Environmental Design / Site Buffering addressed at that time.
7/R Site and Environmental Design / Retaining Walls 2X(-21+2) N/A No retaining walls are proposed at this time.
Site and Environmental Design / Driveways and Site Circulation No significant grading is required for
7/R Systems ax(-21+2) 0 driveways or parking areas.
Yy Y p g
Site is in an urban area. Minimal privacy is
anticipated. Privacy issues will be further
2X(-A1+1) 0 reviewed during site specific development
7/R Site and Environmental Design / Site Privacy permit.
No wetlands are anticipated to be impacted,
2X(0/+2) 0 other than the Blue River during restoration.
Army Corps permits will be required prior to
7/IR Site and Environmental Design / Wetlands any work within the river or flood plain.
There are no significant natural features on
the site, other than the Blue River. The river
has been incorporated into the design of the
2X(-21+2) N/A project, but points (if any) for the river
restoration will be assigned during the site
7/IR Site and Environmental Design / Significant Natural Features specific plans for the river.
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8/A Ridgeline and Hillside Development Complies
9/A Placement of Structures Complies
Points will be assigned during the
2x(-2/+2) N/A development review process for individual
9/R Placement of Structures - Public Safety developments.
Points will be assigned during the
3x(-2/0) N/A development review process for individual
9/R Placement of Structures - Adverse Effects developments.
Points will be assigned during the
4x(-2/0) N/A development review process for individual
9/R Placement of Structures - Public Snow Storage developments.
Points will be assigned during the
3x(0/-3) N/A development review process for individual
9/R Placement of Structures - Setbacks developments.
12/A Signs Complies
13/A Snow Removal/Storage Complies
Points will be assigned during the
4x(-2/+2) N/A development review process for individual
13/R Snow Removal/Storage - Snow Storage Area developments.
14/A Storage Complies
Points will be assigned during the
2x(-2/0) N/A development review process for individual
14/R Storage developments.
15/A Refuse Complies
Points will be assigned during the
1x(+1) N/A development review process for individual
15/R Refuse - Dumpster enclosure incorporated in principal structure developments.
15/R Refuse - Rehabilitated historic shed as trash enclosure 1x(+2) N/A
Points will be assigned during the
1x(+2) N/A development review process for individual
15/R Refuse - Dumpster sharing with neighboring property (on site) developments.
16/A Internal Circulation Complies
Good network of pedestrian paths, bridges
3x(-2/+2) +3 and sidevyalks. Wa'lkable plan helps to
separate incompatible uses such as
16/R Internal Circulation / Accessibility pedestrians and buses.
16/R Internal Circulation - Drive Through Operations 3x(-2/0) 0 None anticipated.
17/A External Circulation Complies
18/A Parking Complies
Project meets parking need, per parking study
from Felsburg, Holt & Ullevig parking
1x( -2/+2) 0 consultants. 1:1 parking ratio for the condo-
hotel will be reviewed by Town Council under
18/R Parking - General Requirements a separate development agreement.
Parking in structures and under buildings.
2x(-2/+2) +4 Minimal surface parking on new private
18/R Parking-Public View/Usage streets.
. . . s 1x(+1) +1 ) . .
18/R Parking - Joint Parking Facilities Parking structures will be open to public use.
1x(+1) +1 Shared access with Town Hall and 1st Bank
18/R Parking - Common Driveways for south parking structure.
18/R Parking - Downtown Service Area 2x( -2+2) 0
19/A Loading Complies
None proposed within master planned area.
3x(-2/+2) N/A Private recreation facilities may be included
within condo-hotel, and will be reviewed at a
20/R Recreation Facilities later date.
21/R Open Space - Private Open Space 3x(-2/+2) N/A
No open space has been identified with this
3x(0/+2) N/A develqpment. Open space requirementslwill
be reviewed during the development review
21/R Open Space - Public Open Space process for individual developments.
22/A Landscaping Complies
No landscaping plan has been supplied with
2x(-1/+3) N/A the master plan. Landscaping requirements
will be reviewed during the development
22/R Landscaping review process for individual developments.
24/A Social Community Complies
Employee housing equal to 8.51% of the
density of the project will be provided off-site.
1x(-10/+10) +8 Deed restrictions for the employee housing
shall be created prior to the recordation of the
24/R Social Community - Employee Housing master plan or master plan notice.
Development will address Council Goals for
3x(0/+2) +3 2008, in_cluding _tran_sportation er?hancements,
economic sustainability and environmental
24/R Social Community - Community Need sustainability in buildings.
24/R Social Community - Social Services 4x(-2/+2) N/A None proposed.
24/R Social Community - Meeting and Conference Rooms 3x(0/+2) 0 Conference space planned in hotel building.
24/R Social Community - Historic Preservation 3x(0/+5) N/A None proposed.
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Relocation and reconstruction of transit
building and bus lanes. Increase in bus bays,

ax(-21+2) *4 improved transit service and better pedestrian
25/R Transit safety.
26/A Infrastructure Complies
26/R Infrastructure - Capital Improvements 4x(-2/+2) 0 No significant improvements proposed.
27/A Drainage Complies
3x(0/+2) N/A Final drainage plan will be required prior to
27/R Drainage - Municipal Drainage System development permits for individual buildings.
28/A Utilities - Power lines Complies
29/A Construction Activities Complies
30/A Air Quality Complies
30/R Air Quality - wood-fired oven in restaurant/bar 0 N/A None proposed at this time.
30/R Air Quality - wood-burning cooking appliance in restaurant/bar 2 N/A None proposed at this time.
30/R Beyond the provisions of Policy 30/A 2x(0/+2) N/A None proposed at this time.
31/A Water Quality Complies
No specific enhancements proposed at this
31/R Water Quality - Water Criteria 3x(0/+2) N/A time.
32/A Water Conservation Complies
3x(0/+2) No renewable energy has been identified at
33/R Energy Conservation - Renewable Energy Sources this time
3x(-2/+2) No energy conservation features have been
33/R Energy Conservation - Energy Conservation identified at this time
HERS index for Residential Buildings
33R Obtaining a HERS index +1
33/R HERS rating = 61-80 +2
33R HERS rating = 41-60 +3
33/R HERS rating = 19-40 +4
33R HERS rating = 1-20 +5
33/R HERS rating = 0 +6
Commercial Buildings - % energy saved beyond the IECC minimum
standards
33/R Savings of 10%-19% +1
33IR Savings of 20%-29% +3
33/R Savings of 30%-39% +4
33R Savings of 40%-49% +5
33/R Savings of 50%-59% +6
33R Savings of 60%-69% +7
33/R Savings of 70%-79% +8
33R Savings of 80% + +9
1X(-3/0) 0 No outdoor heated sidewalks are proposed at
33/R Heated driveway, sidewalk, plaza, etc. this time.
Outdoor commercial or common space residential gas fireplace No outdoor fireplaces are proposed at this
) 1X(-1/0) 0 :
33IR (per fireplace) time.
No specific outdoor water features are
1X(-1/0) 0 proposed at this time. Specific proposals will
33/R Large Outdoor Water Feature be reviewed in the future.
Other Design Feature 1X(-2/+2)
34/A Hazardous Conditions Complies
34/R Hazardous Conditions - Floodway Improvements 3x(0/+2) 0
35/A Subdivision Complies
36/A Temporary Structures Complies
37/A Special Areas Complies
37/R Community Entrance 4x(-2/0) N/A
37/R Individual Sites 3x(-2/+2) N/A
No commitment has yet been made as to
2x(0/+2) 0 which entity will construct and finance the river|
37/R Blue River improvements.
37R Cucumber Gulch/Setbacks 2x(0/+2) N/A
37R Cucumber Gulch/Impervious Surfaces 1x(0/-2) N/A
38/A Home Occupation Complies
39/A Master Plan Complies
40/A Chalet House Complies
41/A Satellite Earth Station Antennas Complies
42/A Exterior Loudspeakers Complies
43/A Public Art Complies
Some public art anticipated, but not yet
1x(0/+1) N/A identified. Applicant will need more specific
43/R Public Art plans approved by Public Art Commission.
44/A Radio Broadcasts Complies
45/A Special Commercial Events Complies
46/A Exterior Lighting Complies
47/A Fences, Gates And Gateway Entrance Monuments Complies
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TOWN OF BRECKENRIDGE

Gondola Lots Master Plan - Second Renewal
Legal Description: Tract A, Block 3, Parkway Center, Lot 1, Block 3, Parkway Center, Lot 1A, Block 4, Parkway
Center, Lot 1B, Block 4, Parkway Center, Lot 1-A, Sawmill Station Square, Filing No. 3, Lot 1-B, Sawmill Station
Square, Filing No. 3, Lot 1-C, Sawmill Station Square, Filing No. 3, Lot 2-A, Sawmill Station Square, Filing No. 3,
Lot 2-B, Sawmill Station Square, Filing No. 3, Lot 3-A, Sawmill Station Square, Filing No. 3, Lot 3-B, Sawmill
Station Square, Filing No. 3, Lot 4, Sawmill Station Square, Filing No. 3, Lots 71-74, and Lots 87-90, Bartlett &
Shock Addition
PL-2016-003

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends the Planning Commission approve this application with
the following findings and conditions.

FINDINGS
1. The proposed project is in accord with the Development Code and does not propose any prohibited use.
2. The project will not have a significant adverse environmental impact or demonstrative negative aesthetic
effect.
3. All feasible measures mitigating adverse environmental impacts have been included, and there are no

economically feasible alternatives which would have less adverse environmental impact.

4. This approval is based on the staff report dated April 5, 2016 and findings made by the Planning Commission
with respect to the project. Your project was approved based on the proposed design of the project and your
acceptance of these terms and conditions imposed.

5. The terms of approval include any representations made by you or your representatives in any writing or plans
submitted to the Town of Breckenridge, and at the hearing on the project held on April 19, 2016 as to the
nature of the project. In addition to Planning Commission minutes, the meetings of the Commission are tape
recorded.

6. If the real property which is the subject of this application is subject to a severed mineral interest, the
applicant has provided notice of the initial public hearing on this application to any mineral estate owner
and to the Town as required by Section 24-65.5-103, C.R.S.

7. The plan shows that on-street parking is proposed on North Depot Road and South Depot Road. Each of
these streets is proposed to be built, owned and maintained by the applicant, owner of the property, and not
by the Town of Breckenridge. While on-street parking is generally not allowed to count toward the parking
supply for a development, parking on private streets not maintained by the Town of Breckenridge has not
been previously discussed, approved or denied. The Planning Commission hereby finds that the creation of
a new private street, which will not be maintained by the Town of Breckenridge, and upon which parking
has been provided, shall count toward the “Off Street Parking” requirements for this development.

8. The Employee Housing covenant, previously required by Condition #10 of the original Development
Permit for this Master Plan (approved January 26, 2010), has already been provided and recorded with the
Summit County Clerk and Recorder at Reception #942511. This covenant provides for 22,089 square feet
of employee housing at Breckenridge Terrace Apartments on Block 2, Breckenridge Airport Subdivision.

9. The density transfer covenant previously required by Condition #14 of the original Development Permit for
this Master Plan (approved January 26, 2010), has already been provided and recorded with the Summit
County Clerk and Recorder at Reception #942512. This covenant transferred 93 Single Family Equivalents
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10.

10.

11.

(SFEs) from the Gold Rush Parking Lot (Lot 1, Block 4, Parkway Center) onto the South Gondola Lot
(Sawmill Station Square, Filing No. 3).

This application has been reviewed as a combined Preliminary and Final hearing. The issues involved in
the proposed project are such that no useful purpose would be served by requiring two separate hearings.

CONDITIONS

This permit does not become effective, and the project may not be commenced, unless and until the applicant
accepts the preceding findings and following conditions in writing and transmits the acceptance to the Town
of Breckenridge.

If the terms and conditions of the approval are violated, the Town, in addition to criminal and civil judicial
proceedings, may, if appropriate, issue a stop order requiring the cessation of work, revoke this permit,
require removal of any improvements made in reliance upon this permit with costs to constitute a lien on the
property and/or restoration of the property.

The vested period for this master plan expires three (3) years from the date of Town Council approval, on
April 26, 2019, in accordance with the vesting provisions of Policy 39 of the Development Code. In addition,
if this permit is not signed and returned to the Town within thirty (30) days of the permit mailing date, the
permit shall only be valid for eighteen (18) months, rather than three (3) years.

The terms and conditions of this permit are in compliance with the statements of the staff and applicant made
on the evidentiary forms and policy analysis forms.

This permit contains no agreement, consideration, or promise that a certificate of occupancy or certificate of
compliance will be issued by the Town. A certificate of occupancy or certificate of compliance will be issued
only in accordance with the Town's planning requirements/codes and building codes.

This Master Plan is entered into pursuant to Policy 39 (Absolute) of the Breckenridge Development Code
(Chapter 1 of Title 9 of the Breckenridge Town Code). Uses specifically approved in this Master Plan shall
supersede the Town’s Land Use Guidelines and shall serve as an absolute development policy under the
Development Code during the vesting period of this Master Plan. The provisions and procedures of the
Development Code (including the requirement for a point analysis) shall govern any future site specific
development of the property subject to this Master Plan.

Approval of a Master Plan is limited to the general acceptability of the land uses proposed and their
interrelationships, and shall not be construed to endorse the precise location of uses or engineering feasibility.

Concurrently with the issuance of a Development Permit, applicant shall submit a 24"x36" mylar document of
the final master plan, including all maps and text, as approved by Planning Commission, and reflecting any
changes required. The name of the architect, and signature block signed by property owner of record or agent
with power of attorney shall appear on the mylar.

Prior to recordation of the master plan, Applicant shall change all references of “Condo-Hotel” to
“Condominium”.

Applicant shall record with the Summit County Clerk and Recorder a mylar document reflecting all
information in the approved Master Plan. The mylar document shall be in a form and substance acceptable to
the Town Attorney, and after recording shall constitute the approved Master Plan for the future development
of the property.

Prior to issuance of a development permit for any construction within twenty-five feet (25”) of any wetland
areas, including, but not limited to, the southwest portion of the round-about at French Street and North
Park Avenue, a wetlands delineation study will be required, and a wetlands mitigation plan may be required
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12.

13.

15.

14.

15.

16.

17.

if wetlands are impacted. Applicant shall obtain any required federal or state permits relating to wetland
impacts, and all construction methods shall follow applicable state and federal standards.

The Master Plan permit extension approved by this Permit shall not become effective until the development
agreement approved on February 22, 2010 between Vail Summit Resorts and the Town of Breckenridge
(recorded with the Summit County Clerk and Recorder at Reception #934609), authorizing a reduction in
the parking spaces required for the proposed condominium/hotel from one and one-half spaces to one space
for each residential unit including one bedroom or more, has been extended by the Town Council and
executed by Applicant and the Town.

The phasing plan shown on Sheet 10 of the Master Plan is illustrative only, and is not part of this master
plan approval. Prior to the issuance of any Class A, B or C development permit for any development within
the master planning area, Applicant shall submit to and obtain approval from the Town of Breckenridge a
Class C development permit for a revised phasing plan, which shall include phasing for the restoration of
the Blue River, a hydraulic analysis for the Blue River, and construction of the round-about at Park Avenue
and French Street.

Prior to recordation of the master plan, Applicant shall apply for approval from the Colorado Department of
Transportation (CDOT) for such site access permit(s) to and from State Highway 9 (North Park Avenue) as
may be required. After such application to CDOT has been submitted, Applicant will diligently pursue
approval, and such approval must be obtained from CDOT prior to issuance of any Class A, B or C
development permit by the Town for development within the master planning area. If the access plan is not
approved by CDOT, revisions to the master plan may be required, which may require re-review of the
master plan by the Town of Breckenridge Planning Commission and/or Town Council.

Prior to application for a development permit for the South Parking Structure, Applicant must provide
written evidence to the Town that any consents required for the relocation of the public access easement
described and provided for in the Grant of Public Access Easement recorded December 14, 1990 at
Reception No. 397220 of the Summit County, Colorado records have been obtained from the beneficiaries
of such public access easement.

Prior to issuance of a Class A, B or C site-specific development permit by the Town for any development
within the master planning area, a preliminary agreement pertaining to this Master Plan shall have been
approved and executed by the Town and the Applicant: (a) identifying the business issues between
Applicant and the Town, such as but not limited to property line adjustments, lease rights, shared
improvements, ownership, financing mechanisms, cost sharing and maintenance responsibilities, parking
structure management and (b) providing general terms for the resolution of each such issue. If such
agreement results in the need for a change to any substantial element of the master plan, an amendment of
the master plan may be required and, if the development for which a Class A, B or C site specific
development permit is requested will be affected by such amendment, then the amendment will be required
prior to the issuance of such Class A, B or C site-specific development permit by the Town.

Prior to recordation of the master plan or recordation of a notice of approval of the master plan, Applicant
shall revise Sheet #1 of the master plan to indicate that no greater than 30 SFEs of density will be
developed as commercial uses. Furthermore, Applicant shall modify Sheet #1 of the master plan to indicate
that the townhomes will be a minimum density of 25 SFEs.

Prior to recordation of the master plan or recordation of a notice of approval of the master plan, Applicant
shall revise Sheet #1 of the master plan to indicate that parking spaces on North Depot Road and South
Depot Road will be available to the general public for parking.
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PROJECT GOALS:

This sres i integral 1o the identity snd o The ares of = the

wconamic. sockl, and phyalcsl caniar of tha commonity. As part of tha downiown cors. Bhis progect reflects the
siandards ssisbiished s pan of this centrsl place  To eneure ihe design doss indeed reflect both downtown and
trs genersl Breckensdpe community valses, Ihem are sx design drivers thal establish the specific goals for the
direction of the project.  Thay am as follows:

Compatible with Breckenridge
Craats an snvironmanl that (s compaiibls with the valuss snd chemscier of B existing Town.

Authentic story
Finiste 1o the Town of Brackenddge in an authentic way, bullding on the existing story of this strong community

Integration with fabric of Town
Intagrats with the Town fabdic 8o thal the newly developsd ares has & ssemisss irenelton ko the axseting Town.

Balance transit/transportation issues

Develop & balanced schulion that improves the rensit snd

World class visitor/resident experience
Egtablish & world class vishor/resident sxpariencs within the skl ares, as well as the Town  This ncludes creating

an hat & high leved of guality and & charscter that will stand the test of fme
Sustainability

m;m that the w0 ] places by Vall Summii Resorts. inc
PROJECT CONCEPT:

Tha design process started with a Vision Pian created by both Vall Summit Resorts, Inc. and the
Town of Breckenridge in the Spring and Summer of 2008, This plan established the vision for this
property through an P with the Town g and the an & whole.
The resulting vision can create a needad assat for the as wall as - p

for Vall Resorta in tha downtown community. This Master Plan |s based on the Vision Plan

How does a new project relats to the defining core el of & historc ity? The vision
afﬂlM.MrP‘nn|.ﬂo|lnimllllloﬂullhotllmTMn‘rle-dﬂlqnmlﬂIlWﬂi
what could have baan. What if the Town had presarved the rall hertage of this site? What if tha
natural beauty and amenity of the Biue River had been respacied as the Town devoloped? What ¥

the Town had been & resor ity sariier in ita i ‘Whan askad thase
new design can ba P shifts can occwr on issuss regerding
haight and . Op wmmmalmnwh-mmm

avallable, and the Town's

is not only resp but

Tha vision in this mastar plan is not only appropriate to the context. but also brings new
opportunities that are not available in the Town today. These include new civic designs such as
tha Tranait Depot, the Gondola Plaze, the Rivar Walk, and the Train Park. Additionally, the new
pr ha assals that include space,
apras skl ina deatrian and and morm
convensent parking for the cors area. The Master Plan adds theas improvemants to the Town ina
‘way that still integrates into the fabric of Town, through maintaining the street grid, creating a
gredual growth in height from Main Strest, and utilizing the existing Infrastruciure systems in thalr
current configuration

Tha Gondola Lots Redevelopment Master Plan crealss an addition to the community rooted in

history, but reflective of the current neads of the Town of Breckenridge. Visitors to Town will still

be grested by the romantic Main Street fesl of Town, but will be intrigued by the lconic Grand Hotel

and Gondola Plaza Blue River axpsrienca. Tha siregts will connect visitors and reaidents

throughaut the downtown araa io both the Gondola and to South Main Sirsel. The day skisr will

have batter acceas to both parking and after aki of idge have
public and circul

The design creates a landmark bullding thal guides the framework of this site. Many of the sarly
lowns in the Western par of the U.5. and Canada that had toudsm, were served by a ralircad line
that stopped at, or near, a destination hotel bulkding. Exampies of this type of resort include The
Hotal Colorado in Glenwood Springs. the El Tovar Holel at the Grand Canyon. the Antlers Hotel in
Colorado Eprings, and the Empress Hotel in Victona, British Columbia.

The design is able to ot fo the y by g the grid through real streets for both
pedestrians and cars, as well as opaning up views from most of the site o Maln Stresl. Also,
important to the design are improvements to the river corridor, the Gondola Plazs, the Ski Back,
and the Tranait Station,

1625 Alrport Road, 2nd Floor PO Box 1688
Breckenridge, CO 80424 Brackenridge, CO B0424
(870) 496-4148 {ST0) 453-2251
ct: Abex Iskenderian Contact: Tim Gagen, Town Manager
LAND PLANNER/ARCHITECT: GENERAL NOTES:
Proparty Location
?;;PNE:LG;" '"c Suite 103 The project site is & af Iy Ski HIll Road, Highwary 9, North Main Street, and

French Streat. mmumﬁonmmmmmmmnmn The majority of the site iz owned by Vail Summit
Resorts. Inc. and ls currently used for the Gondola and approsimately 1660 skier parking spaces, Other

GENERAL NOTES:

GENERAL NOTES:

Parking Requirements
Tha parking demands Tor the project vary between the varsty of uses planned within the Master Plan. In
addition 1o the parking provided for ssch of the propossd uses within the project, the Masier Flan provides

inchude the existing main Town tranall station and bua parking area, small parking arass and tha Bius River Coarridor
ownad by tha Town of Breckanridge

Adjacent land uses include: Town Hall, 8 bank, retsil businesses, offices, single family residences, residential
condominiuma, the City Market /Parkway Center and a vacant lot

The Blus Rivar runs the antire langth of the project and i integrated inlo the design for improvements to the trail and
river corridor.

Mesd and for this Locstion
The design llustrates o variaty of bullding types, massing, size, and function; reflecting tha sclactic nature of the
neighboring contaxt. This aliows the design 1o integrate into the fadric of the existing Town spaces witnout indicating
whara the “project” atarts or stops and without imposing formulaic design to the whole aite,

The north portion of Main Sireet hes Aled from the o and growth of the Town as much
&8 Soulh Main Streat. mum«nwmummmmlmnmmwm
cors will bacome a rew and vibrant part of the community  The impression of this open parking ares will be much
improved as the Town gains and assels, such as streats, more compact parking
through parking and that witl connect bath vehicles and pedestrians

mhmlnnmm{wm mwmw.mm-m close 10 downiown
Thia will brirg vialtors o tha il the sassons and will help suppodt the town
In ttve mhoukder saasons. mmmamwunnmummmw-mwmma
commercial uses will bring addiional revenue 1o the and creals for the northarm podtion of Mabn
Street to fulfl its potential

The Riverwalk will be improved, creating grest community banefil. The pathway will be extandad and the river will be
rasionyd to have isss sisep banka, mons access. and tetier wiidiife habist Thers may be saveral pedeatrian bridges
scded o the Riverwelk (o creste grester Bnkeage with the shops on Main Street and to provide greater sccess to tha
path,

Vehicular, Pedestrian and Blcycles Clrculation

The Masiar Plan ls carsful to creats sirest o the while also the visual
Bosthatic of all vawa. Thass sirse! conNections will banell veniculsr scooss, mﬁm bicyclo sccess and
pedesirian access to/ffrom the project. This project and o tha North Main Strest
community, mmmmlnm-n-mawﬁm One key connection |s the new
Depot Strest which connects the Gondola area to French Street on the north and 1o Wellington Avenue on the south
The northem portion of Depot Street aligne with the acosss drive to the Parkway Canter, one of the main commaercial
hube in Town.

Tha design |s sensitive 1o the entry experdance for the Town and places smaller townhome bulldings as the northerm
most developmant within the project. The north parking structure is strategically Iocated fo allow vehicles entaring town
from the north to park and aliow its to bscoma prior o entry 1o the town core.  This may reduce
traffic in Town by intercepting & majority of the skier raffic st Park Avenus and French Street and cresting a pedesirian
anyironment within ihe propect

Froma na bicycle the streats will create inviting and contextusi pedestrian and
mmmmammmmmmmn as well as reinforce the fesling of tha project
irmgrating into the existing fabric of the Tewn  The path sleng tha Blus River will be extended and connscted into the
project in seversl locations o fecilitate ancther avenue of pedestrian and bicycle access. Additionally, the design will
saek oul locatione 1o cross the Biue River from the bike path snd connect o North Main Streel. Bicycies will be

through & of bike lonos, and through the use of bicycle racks
throughout the development

Master Plan Density

Tha proparty shown in the Master Plan = designated for 201 SFEs (Singia Family Equivaleniajol denaity, This is the
cusrent denslly and the Master Plan only pressrves the cument denalty. That s made up of 93 SFE transferred
from the Goid Rush Lot onto the Morth and South Gondola lots. Tha South Gondola Lot (40 SFE) and North Gondola
Lot (68 SFE) make up the remainder of the 201 SFEs. For the purposes of this Master Plan the density is distributed
throughoul tha antire site.

ﬂm“lnmdmmhwhhwﬁm“ Thess uses include 8 conda hotel, & mixed use buliding,

tha rensitskier senvices building, lownhomes, and parking structurss. Thers is siso a varety of uses within esch of
these bulldings that coniributes o the 201 total SFE for the project.  The Master Plan has an opportunity o
sccommodata ths markel nesd for both commarcial and residential uses as the projact ia bullt over lime. Since thers is
mmnmmmmmnm:mummmwmmnmmumuyummwu-
Naxioke deneity umes that will not excesd the 201 total SFE availabie for this
property. suwmwuwﬁmmmﬁswwmw This Master Plan will cap the Commercial
Dnaity st no more than 30 SFE on the proparty. Affordabia housing s not anticipated ss part of this Master Pian,
hamwavat il Addad in tha luluta tha danaity for this use would ba in addibon to tha 201 iotal SFE. Tha dansity will ba
calculnied par Town siandands.

Townhome. One SFE Unit = 1600 g, i

Conda Hotel Ore SFE Unit = 1200 sq. ®

Condo Holel -Commercial: One SFE Unit = 1000 sq, 1.

Hotel: One SFE Unit = 1380 »q. .

MMU“MHW'DmsFEw-m.q.ll.wlm.q.ll if it meeta the requiremeants balow for a
Condo Hotel

Mixad Uss Bullding-Commarcial; Ore SFE Unil = 1000 sq. ft
Skier Services Bullding-Commarcial: GPISFEUM!-‘ODO‘Q R, provided thet arses thet am Dullt 10 sere the translt
hmeuunutm-swms.meummmlmmmhmmmmuummlwemlnvwiw-tmln
Mastor Plan. Thess spaces may include walting ansas, driver for bus
e mixed use residential denally i to be opersted as parl of he condo-Notel with accesa 1o all of the amenities of e
condo-hotel. then the denaity for the danaity shall be 1,200 square fest par SFE rather
amn 980 squars feet per SFE. A covenant memariaitzing the access rights of the mixed use residential cocupants ahall
e recorded sgainst the resl properly of Both the mised Use buding and the condo-hatel bullding, in & form soceptable
o the Town Aormey
Buiidings within the masier plan are siigibls for 8 mass bonus, par Policy 4 (Relative) Mass of the
Code. The mass bonus |s imended to provide above ground squan

. ting

dmﬂuwmwmnummmDo\rolupmonlcmmeﬂom-thmanmmplun
application. April 2, 2009. These bonuses are as follows
Tmnhnmu 20%

mnd {in mixed use building): 15%
c«noo-rm-mum 25%
Commercial: none
Skier Services Building: nona
Bullidings that axcesd the recommended mass shall bs subject 1o nsgative points, per Policy 4 (Relative)
Mass. (Note: Subsection B of Policy 8-1-18 Policy 4 (Relative) Mass shall not apply to this master plan, as
tha dansitisa were not calculated by a fioor area ratio only. but are based on a recorded covanant.)

MASTER PLAN DENSITY DISTRIBUTION*:

Buliding Type F o Maxi Total
Use = A Paeidents SFE/Bulidi

T (A 3y 0 80 80

Skier Services Commarcial| 25 0 26

Mixed Uss Building | Mixed Usa 15 15 30

Condo Hotel ** Mixed Uise 20 150 170

Hut = 3 o 3

* Now tnble depicts the maximum SFE par buiiding. The totsl SFE for this proparty is 201 and will
not be excesded unioss affordable housing or & chvic use (s added 10 the project. ANl affordable housing,
nonprofit and clvil uses would be in sxcess of the 201 SFE.

**The Condo Hobel will have a minimum of 118 SFE of total denaity,

*=Townhomes will have B minimum of 25 SFE of lolal denaity.

B Corrgn (DM Mgrin Pasareed O eagn, we 2000

See Notiea ofF AT!""‘“"""
of Mardar Plae meardad [NOJBY:
o Aacophen No. 242513 1

1270 porlung spaces within the parking structures. The South Pariing Structure will hold &
minimum of 400 spaces. Thess spaces combsnad with the parking on the Goid Rush Lot will axcsed the
requiramant for 1580 spaces on this proparty, dictaled by a separate agreamant batesen the Town of
Breckenridge snd Vall Summit Resorts, Inc. Additionaily the Mester Plan may reduce the number of public

parking spaces svailable on Town owned property due o constraints sssociated with river
that is losl due o this Master Plan will ba replaced within the parking

include
Plan can sccommodats the required parking ss Usied balow:

Townhomes : 1.6 Spols par Unit, parked under bullding

Condominium Hotel: 1 spot per Unit parked under building. parking for the minimal commarcial space will ba
on stireet or in the parking structures ot 1 9pot per 400 S F of commercial density.

Mixed Uss Bullding: 1wcmwbw¢nw19lwbw|b'¢wui-wuﬂ! (depending on final unil
design) parked undar buliding for residential usss, commaercial uses will have access 1o below buliding
parking, parking on strest and 0 parking structures &t 1 spot per 400 5 F of denaity.

Skisr Services: Pmmpmmnp.mmmlaumptmsﬁﬂmlmw
Condominium Hotel Conferance Space: Parking

Warming Hut: mmmmmwnmn»mwmwmw.nup-ungmmm-um
par 400 5.F of commercial denaity.

Parking spaces on MNorth Depot Road and South Depot Road will be avallable to the genaral public
for parking

The Parking will be and 80 that thers will be manimel queuing within Public
mwdulkmhu—du-nmuupndmmbmnmlmnmnﬂa—ﬂnﬂu—nnu
for ihe guests parking snd the vehicles on ihe adjecent ™ that thare will be no
queuing In the adjacent ROW to any parking structure on B0% of the days of the year.

Public Faclifties

Several public improvemants are planned within this Master Plan. The existing transit bullding will be replsced
with & combined Transi/Skisr Services bullding tha! will ba located sdjscent 1o & new bus loading ares nNear
Park Ave. The bus loading srea will accommaodate 11 buses at any one tme and is designed to faciltate an
efficient loading/unionding process, s wail as an affickent croulation fo Park Ave, and Main Stroet.

Two parking struciures will be bulll Mat will provide skier parking plus additional parking capacity for the
downtown Breckanridge.

mrea of

Design Standarda - Policy and Compatibliity

The site axists in Land Use Disirict 820 and & stated in the policy & portion of the ares
batwesn the historc downtown to the sast and the new condominium developments 1o the west.” It is fully the
iMMhMrMbM“NMWMHMWMNGMW Thl
will prassnt & mtybs with the herwrennr

lummmmhﬂlnhmdm\mumdlhr mwwwwwmn
roots in & mon raditional bulkding thet s more reflective of the existing contsxt, The lownhomaes along the
Biue River will use the smallar bulidings on North Main Street as architectural precedents. The Masier Flan
cranies a varkely of bullding fypss. slzes and styles to further anforce the organic and mied use

Tha Master Plan is designed 1o creats an sfficient and susiainable developmaent. Tha project will explors ways 1o
reduce the smvironmental and carbon Impact of the development. The latest proven tachnology avalable is
Im“hmﬁm.hw The will ba AR
uwamhhmMummemdmm--mvu
Summit Resorts, Inc Innddllbnﬂnpmhdwmmlh then current Town sustainability code

The existng Transit Building wil be A and matanal

davelopad io identify materials 1o ba divered from disposal snd sorted to be either satvaged for rmuse or recycled.

aypsum rd, mnd i dabris that can be processed into & ecycled content commadity

mmnwmlmmluw A spacific arsa on or off the construction site will be designated for
or wnd nfforts will ba tracked for the Transit

o reuse of may includa of 1] and salvege

Building.

of matarials on-alis.
Point Analysls
allocations at the e of site specific sitas for the sames slament of

ncramantal points under Saction 8-1- ‘!'." J‘Mligrwnmlnﬂ’dm"uth

The housing restricted to empioyee housing to achieve posilive points in connection with the approval of this
mmmmhmhmhmmnuufw 13, 'CMFOGWHGNWUMI'M
tha Town of @ porary Rules and for the C:
ofSummn“ Housing y impact Fee" r-l-ﬁngeom&um
54, 88 that the the
Mﬂnhmnm mmoisowon 13, unmbﬁnmm and provided thal such
cradit sgainat any impact fes remains available.

Propossd Public Amanities and Open 8|

Many of the goals within the Master Plan discuss the integration with Town and this is achieved through » varkety of
ways, Indluding a revitalization of thae Blue River cormidor through this part of Breckenrdge. The river is & great
masat 1o the community as 8 whole, as well as this project. Tha river plays & major rols In two specific aspacts of
e project. mnmumwmanmnmmmnmm Tha river will ba repositoned

the grades of the banks will ba more gredusl (o create & mone natural
MW‘MNWMWWMW MNorth of Watsan tha fver
habitst banefits of the fver and the edge condition,
T‘r-mwmmnmrmummuumn.mmmmmmnm
Plaza south, while sllowing tha river 1o become a more nalursl corridor &8 it moves north of the Plaza.

Tha Gondola Plazs serves as one of tha defining culdoor spaces within the project. It provides space o queus for
tha gondola. room io circulate o and from the space. access the TransilSkier Services bullding and the restauran!
buiiding, Bnd has room for summaer functions such as ar fisime or ouldoor conoens. Amenites within the Flazs mey
Inciude pisces for children to play, Bn ice sketing rink, culdoor seating, landscaped bads and banchas, and
universal scosss 1o the river. The space should be designed 1o ba highly versatila 1o meet the changing nesds af
Vﬂmmnnﬂﬂmdﬂm Tha Gondols area will have tha most dasign intensity with
spacial paving with pattems, rock walls, to the rver, and land
mmmammnmm mumnlummwmmna«mmumnmwl

character of the design, The architacturs and form of aach bullding will refiact the uses and location of sach
bullding differenthy.
Mixed Use Busiding:

A-mum-li:)—-u-— Thes buliding will be the closes! in charmctar to the South 100 block of Main

Uppar level windows should TyPe windows ‘rmmnuuruummmnm

dmm:msmwmmhhmmyMMWMMMm

wood siding. and stons may be used for this

buliding. Tmmmmmmmmm,mmwummm»ﬂwwlmﬂ

Individusl bulidinga. The color used within thess bulkding materiats will mflect the colors of the bulldings

in the downtown core.

Haights of Bulldings: This building will be no mors than hwo slones in hesght and es recommended by the
General Design Critera for Land Use District #20.

Roofs: This bullding may have a varioty of roof types io craats the Main Street image. including gabied,

fint, and falss front

Sker ServicesTransil Bullding
Architectursl Cherscier This buliding will represent tha iconic nature of & trenst station in

Do 0 sppear from the ground and aif os wall.

The second improvement Lo the cormidor is specific 1o the opportunity 1o engage the river from & parsonal and
developmant aspect. The Blus River Cormidor 18 the spine of the town and (s emphasized within this project site.
mmmmmmwnmuhmmummm-wwhm
dOWniown Brea. mwmmm-ﬂmmmm n
slamant of the design, as well as b-mnﬁ-ammm The bike
path will be and the weill b by adding saveral
bridge connectons 1o Main Street and more destinations, The Gondola Plaze will creste an opportunity to walk
down o the river's sdge and inleract with the water through a potential water feature, a small pond srea. and the
actual river fow isell  Along the Mixed Usa Building the River will have a mare lakd back condition st the bank and
the Buliding itself will interact with the river corridor by having a face to the river with decks, connections to the tral,
and sntrances 1o the ground foor commerclal uses. The Bius River south of the Gondols Plazs will have an
anhanced fver sdge thal will appear more like the improvemants at the Blue River Plaza; north of the Gondols
Piaza the rver will appsar maons natursl and the landscaps will seek to snhance the habitat and plcturssque
sppearance of the river

I mddition 1o the mer and transit cantsr shall provide an added
amanity for the community. mmnmmw|mmummnmnmmmmmm
buses, uwﬂbu—h-mﬁhwmmu-ynlﬁnmhpwmm

Tmmmmmwmmuwm
Buliging Nevtural widing, and stone may be ueed for this
mm Tmmmmmwmmmsummcomwcwm ns wall a8 the new Condo
Holbel buliding withan the
Heights of Bulidings: Thia buikding wil gensrally be o more than two stories in height and &5
recommanded by the General Design Criteria for Land Usa District #20, howaver it may incorporste
tower slomants 1o create distinction
Roofs: This buliding may have both gabled snd hipped roof types,

Condo Hotel:
Architectursl Characier: This building plays & major role in the Master Plan and will reflect » traditional
dorwnicn wastem hotel characler  The building will crests an lconic imags within the downiown and will
smphasize (he connection 1o the langer historic cdvic (e, Old Summit County Courthouse, Old Colorado
Mountain College, etc.) bulldings within Town,
Builaing Natural 0 bnck, wood siding. and stone may be used for this

building.

Heighta of Bulldings-This buliding will ba up 10 five stories In height, not reflecting the ecommeandstions in

he General Design Crilena for Land Liss District #20. However the outside fece will incorporete the fifth

ficor Inte the roal, using dormaens 1o create windows in those spaces. The sdditions! height within this

bullding alicws the other bulldings to vary bebtwesn one and thres siores Hroughout the site, creating &

mmumamm!mmmmmnlm-uﬂwdum
batwean five and one story

Roofs: This buliding may have both gabled and hipped oof types. Thers may be fal roofs types thal

aisc are used for outdoor decks.

Townhomes.

Ci The gs will most reflect the charecter of the northern Main

Strest community. mmnrwmnnmmmmn-mmmlwmm
much of the residential ares of downtown
Building MNatural brick, wood siding, and stons may be used for this
Buliding. The colors used within thess building materals will reflect the colors of the building in the
derwmitown core.
Haights of Bulldings: These bulldings will be no mone than three stores in Height nesr North Depot Rosd. erd o
mone than two storles in height near the Biue River. as recommended by the General Design Critenias for Lend Use
Diwtrct w20

Parking Structures
Architectural Character. Much of the architectursl character for the two above ground mtructures
will be related to making the mass fes! smaller and using materials thet create & ke sssthetic to the
community. Tha design will ssek 1o leasan the visusl impact of the parking structune snd help ths
bulldings bhend into the surrounding neighborhood through the possible use of windows, faux windows,

-nuom.r
Buiiding mmm.mummmm Agditonsity
m“,ummam imarest. The
mmmmmwummuummmum-mmmmnmmu

within tha projsct
Heights of Bulldings: Thess bulldings will be no more than three storles in height and s recommanded by
the General Design Criterla for Land Use District #20.

Submittal Date: 4-3-09

G plan for the area of the South Lot the Lots Redd
mmnmmumumm plazas,

mmmm: in adaiton, the area for bus circulaton and
umwmmwmw:muymwmmmummmmmwumumm
apr ¥ mmwwmmwww Nolddi!wﬂb"#llhap.n
bus loading srea

“w.‘mﬁmhﬁlm

GONDOLA BUILDING

The plans for the urher D P-mnnwovowmu-wmwm
uﬂrmwum mmmmmmgﬂ The roof as
dhwmmmmmmwpﬂn“

o certmin repalt, and replacement activities
1o avokd 8 woste of resources, the roof should not be construcied as
Mfammwmnmwwmwmnnmmwymhmm
roof requirement.

may not be
in sadition, hwmmm

BUSINESS ISSUES
on land owned by both Vall Summil Resorts . inc. and the Town of

N entcipaies
Breckenridge, M-nwlmmhlmuwadeSunnﬂm Inc. and
thve Town of priot ta the with in the Mastar Plan. Such issuss
Include. but are not limhed 1o, .ummmnamouhnﬂmpwm ‘ownarship and operation of the transit
canter and bus bays, strest g and dhmm ‘construction of
the Blue River comidor and the of the with the of
this Master Plan. Vall Summit Resonts. Inc. mwmmmqmmmTMdm
10 address these lssues In as much dotail as possible so that bath parties will be able to Implamant portiona
of the master plen for heir with an g of the by or to asch other.
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Gondola Lots Redevelopment
Master Plan

Sheet 2 of 4
Gold Rush Lot
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] GOLD RUSH LOT %
| The property west of Park Avenue, known as the Gold Rush Lot, is part of the master pian for the project. Currently the Gold Rush Lot 7
écunlainunpavedpeﬂhgandahmsﬁpmnnspomskiershmm%wwmuwmmm.Thisuaster 5
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A Plan. The Gold Rush Lot currently parks approximately 370 cars and feasibly can be expanded to park approximately 470 cars. ¢
%
5 Vail Summit Resorts, Inc. is committed to minimizing pedestrian interaction with Park Avenue from the Gold Rush Lot and will pursue ﬁ
é operational solutions to minimize pedestrians crossing Park Avenue I the Gondola.
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Gondola Lots Redevelopment

Master Plan
Sheet 3 of 4
Proposed Site Plan

Ski Back Tunnel . Gold Rush Lot
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Prior to the issuance of any Class A_ B or C developmant permit for any development within the master planning This Pian is conceptusl. The final location of bulldings s subject 1o change depending Upon tha finsl design of the bulldings and R
[=! ares. Appiicant shall obtain approval from the Colorade Department of Tranagortation (CDOT) for the proposed Ouldoot spaces, Detention aress. the Biue River relocation, and finel bulkding sizes wil sd influence the final dewgn / F-d
(@] Bccess onto State Highway 8 (Park Avenus). noRTe 1 = B0
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Gondola Lots Redevelopment
Master Plan
Sheet 4 of 4
Although cars are welcome, the Watson/S. Depot Rd. inlersection will Circulatlon P lan
be dominated by pedestrians. Both Watson and South Depot Road wil
S5 vt s S o e i g s 09
Rd. through the courtyard connection s ; A
: . . - Both Watson and South Road will be roundabout at French and Park creates a smooth flow of ¥
i Rowdabout reates 8 pedeskin sako U(/\\ Parking garage access poinis are from wmwmmw% e trafic in all directions and creates a traffc caiming device y
| crossing, but minimizes pedestrian crossings @] Park Ave. or Fench St. to capture the ’
i and encourages use of the bus system. ¥ traffic from the main artedals and to keep ro
R, the intemal streets from having too much ;
' Gondola Plaza creates a pedestrian traffic. = |
i EF L _/des&naﬁonandgamamg' space.
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o il i There will be no access to the structure 4,4
l_ e parking from the bank and town parking R
4 E ; # Iots to discourage cut-through traffic. R
e T
| e
Nnd
_,@ '. . 1 | | il
= A large drop off area wil provide drop off
[ g \&;“;ﬂm“-;“m@”;nwsw i Fo  oplions for smallshutfes and passenger 1o avode confcts between cars gong [0 the
I gathenng space for pedestrians during special even =] cars. parking structure and cars going fo City Market
B 5 iridabeis
Pedestrian Crossi Pedestrian Walk i Vehicular Traffic - Size of symbol indicates relative amount of vehicle us per roadway
PEDESTRIAN CIRCULATION D o I ’ @ sioran VEHICULAR CIRCULATION e - e o
Relocating the transit function to the west side of mmidwma {ai";':'m%mwhm nsit 7. 7. 77777 7 Z 7777, ) EFTFT S
the project greatly reduces vehicle and pedestrian iding creates a tc setting A
corflcts thatexist in current conditons. _ waiingfo the bus or enoying the Ul ¢4 PEDESTRIAN CIRCULATION g
| Gondota Plaza, 04 / Pdestiansare the pimaryfocs o the cirauaton design fr the project. There are tvoe pedestan enionmerts i the projec: atheingspaces, wlkabe suees,and the Blos River il A
i Transit only access point will provide /1Galhen'ngSpam-Thedesignincorporatessweralpedesuiangaﬂ\eringW‘m:ﬂwm.mmm«msmmwmewm.Thuospmulm j
! buses immediate access onto Park after ﬁi‘maaurﬁqusdwacﬁrandalhacﬁmfurlhewm. %
> ! loading/drop off at the transit station. - "/ Walkable Streets - One of the main goals of the design is to connect and relate to the downlown character of Breckenridge. One way the design creates that feel is through continuing the street grid and 9’
3‘1‘4% L , Roundabout creates /fpm-vidingwa]katiesimets.Thlsmhemnﬂyc:eatesmreomﬂidswﬁ'lwrsamlpeoplumanHhepdedhmedit‘sbadmtmfmmdmﬂndmanmmmm area. However this idea would be
R4 e b O A - -—@- unities for the bus to "/ atthe expense of relating to Town and making the project feel more active.
5 head south without making ; Blue River Trail - The bike/padestrian trail along the Blue River will be preserved and improved to create a better linkage to the existing path south of Ski Hill Road and to develop areas that can actually ]
a left tum out of transit 1 interact with the water. %
i access drive. - g
- ‘//J VEHICULAR CIRCULATION ;
: 59 /// The project is bordered by Park Ave. and Main St wo of the bus'est oads in Tow. The design takes advantage of these artrias {0 caplure visting cars quickly in parking structures thatload o of the. [/}
2 //; major roads so the interior of the project is only dealing with low speedfvolume traffic. This gives the internal roadways a great deal of flexibility to feel more like pedesinan dominated environmentsand /]
&~ 2 /iubawmadiwpedes&bspmmascbsedmlﬂumhlm.mm:mdasigmdhuaawaﬁnsmbd,immmmﬁdﬂ\s.specialpaving.muﬂipleu’msvﬂks. ;
E E out pot R 2 . o tRo it / on-street parking, and very low speed limits to keep the vehicle/pedestrian conflicts to @ minimum. Additonal driving and tum lanes will be added in several areas Io facilitate better traffic fiow, see Sheet ||
2 : § 6: Proposed Site Plan. A
== BUS CIRCULATION
| — ——
[___g 7 DDD “s This site contains the existing main transit hub for the Town. The master plan design incorporates 12 bus parking stalls {one more than currently provided). The transit element is relocated close lo Park 7
: - Ave. to reduce the transitipedestrian conflicts of the current design. The buses enter the transit center from Watson on two one-way parking areas heading north. Once loading they can circulate onfo %
o . = [;.:_! B g Park via the transit only access to Park that will be a ext only intersection and tumn left or right depending on the route. Additionally, Park Ave. will have an acceleration lane for the buses to tum left into
tj [I:JEI] ] l{j ‘:i'l ] (,:]I:] [_‘J /| providing them a lane separate from the flow of traffic to tum into when heading south. If Park Ave. is too congested to gain left tum access at the transit only access point, the buses have the option to %
o 0 . 5 travel north on Park Ave. and tum to head south by going around the roundabout. One bus stall is provided on Watson for the optional addition of a Main Street Trolley Bus that could drop offfpick up 1]
- Main Strect ] right off of the Gondola Plaza.
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BUS CIRCULATION trans systems Submittal Date: 4-3-09
[NO:[BY:| DATE: | REVISIONS:
1 5.14.09 | Planning and Zoning Review
@ 0 5 150 300 [2 10.04.09| Planning and Zoning Final
W 13 11.19.09| Planning and Zoning Final
1" = 180" 4 12.14.09| Town Council Hearing VAIL R ESORTS [
Ny - 5 2.08.10 | Recorded Master Plan - AT Lt T e B
- | DEVELOPMENT COMPANY P
i R D o e T e e = s et e I - = ) T e P IS LA L T VTG I AT AN ooy

fl




Subject:

Proposal:

Date:
Project Manager:

Applicant:

Agent:
Owner:

Address:

Legal Description:
Site Area:

Land Use District:

Planning Commission Staff Report

Ski Hill Road at Peak 8 Reconstruction Cucumber Gulch Preserve Preventative
Maintenance Area (PMA) Variance, Class B Minor - Combined Preliminary and
Final Hearing- (PL-2016-0082)

In association with the Sixth Amendment to the Amended Peak 7 & 8 Master Plan

(PL-2015-0444) and the Grand Colorado at Peak 8 — East Building (PL-2015-

0215), a portion of Ski Hill Road (between One Ski Hill Place and Ski Watch

Drive) is to be re-graded to an overall even slope (from 2.8 ~ 13% to 5.25%) to

improve vehicular safety and vehicular access to the new base area developments.

The work will include a temporary re-alignment of a portion of Ski Hill Road to

the west to allow the following:

1. Temporary relocation of the bus loading zone,

2. The relocation of the existing storm sewer, sanitary sewer, water lines, and
utility trench,

3. Construct a new retaining wall, concrete pan, guardrail, along the east side of
Ski Hill Road within the PMA and PMA setbacks,

4. Relocation of one of the Breck Connect Gondola Towers, and

5. The finished reconstruction of Ski Hill Road and associated improvements.

The development area is within the Cucumber Gulch Preventative Management
Area (PMA) established by the Cucumber Gulch Preserve Overlay Protection
District Ordinance. (No. 9 Series 2000 which is also enforced under the
Development Code Policy 2, Absolute, Land Use Guidelines). During
construction, all activity will be monitored as directed by the Ordinance.

April 6, 2016 (for meeting of April 19, 2016)

Michael Mosher, Planner 111

Alpine Metropolitan District, Representatives; Ken Marchetti of Marchetti &
Weaver, LLC and Erik W. Peterson of OAC Management Inc.,

Don Leinweber, P.E., Civil Insight, LLC
Town of Breckenridge

A portion of Ski Hill Road right of way at the base of Peak 8, abutting 1521,
1595, and 1627 Ski Hill Road.

Ski Hill Road right of way
Approximately 7,000 sq. ft. (1.73 acres)

39: Residential, Lodges 4 UPA Subject to the Sixth Amendment to the Amended
Peak 7 & 8 Master Plan

-110-



Site Conditions: The development area is located just north of the entrance to One Ski Hill Place
along Ski Hill Road to the base of the intersection of Ski Watch Drive.

Adjacent Uses: North: Protected open space in Cucumber Gulch Preserve
South: Restored wetlands and Ski Hill Road
East: Protected open space in Cucumber Gulch Preserve
West: Ski Hill Road, Peak 8 Base Area

Item History

The Cucumber Overly Protection District was established by a Town ordinance in 2000 for the
protection of the sensitive natural resources within Cucumber Gulch. The ordinance required the Town
to do the following:
e Establish a Preventive Management Area (PMA) around the important resources of the area,
including wetlands, endangered wildlife habitat, and wildlife corridors.
e Have scientific studies conducted to identify resources of concern in the area.
Prohibit certain potentially harmful activities within the PMA until the ordinance can be revised
based on the studies.
e Require that development meets certain standards.
Provide that Best Management Practices be applied through restrictive covenants to new
development within or adjacent to the district.
e Require new roads have wildlife passageways if constructed within the district but outside the
PMA.
e Provide that a recreation plan for the area be adopted by the Town in conjunction with other
agencies, based on the result of scientific studies.
e Allow for relief from the ordinance under certain circumstances.

The Amended Peak 7&8 Master Plan (and all subsequent amendments) planned on Ski Hill Road being
aligned and redirected to accommodate the new buildings at the base of Peak 7 and Peak 8. With the
development at Peak 7, County Road 3 was abandoned and Ski Hill Road was extended at the base of
Peak 7 to reconnect with County Road 3 outside the Town limits.

. e

T e

. ‘ "; _ N -. ERYSS W :
After the realignment of County Road 3 (PC#2000155 and PC#2003014), Ski Watch Drive was re-
graded (PC#2003009) and aligned for a safer intersection with Ski Hill Road. Lastly (this application),
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the lower portion of Ski Hill Road will be reconstructed and raised to even the grade and provide water
quality improvements to benefit the protection of the Cucumber Gulch Wetlands.

The Cucumber Gulch Preserve (“Preserve”) is highly valued by the Town and citizens due to its
valuable wetland complex and associated wildlife biodiversity. The Preserve has been identified as an
Aquatic Resource of National Importance (ARNI) by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
because the area contains rare peat-forming, groundwater-fed fen wetlands, as well as surface water-fed
wetlands that support a rich biodiversity of animals, birds and plants. The Town and its citizens have
committed significant resources to acquiring, protecting, and appropriately managing this sensitive
wetland ecosystem.

Protection of the wetland values in Cucumber Gulch Preserve is a high priority for the Town of
Breckenridge. As this proposal includes development within the PMA and within 300 feet from
wetlands containing principal water bodies in the PMA, a variance is needed to perform the
reconstruction of Ski Hill Road and construction of the retaining wall utilizing the Development
Standards and Best Management Practices provided for in Sections 11 and 12 of the PMA regulations.

Work is expected to begin this May 2016 and finish this November 2016. The contractor will prepare
and submit a Method of Handling Traffic (MHT) plan for Town approval. The project sequence is
anticipated as follows:

* Mobilization, staging, erosion control, partial road demolition in utility preloading area at the base
of Grand Colorado on Peak 8 staging area.

* Import soils in the utility corridor - perform active soil settlement monitoring with little to no
construction activity for about 1.5 months.

 Utility replacement/relocation construction in newly placed fill.

* Retaining wall construction, backfilling and active soil monitoring.

» Roadway sub-grade preparation, base course and paving

* Final erosion control.

» Ancillary construction: guardrails, striping, signage.

Staff Comments

Land Use (Policies 2/A & 2/R): The Cucumber Gulch Overlay Protection District is an amendment to
the Land Use Guidelines. The ordinance also identifies a relief procedure (“variance”) in situations
where there is no practical alternative, and when the actions will not result in significant degradation to
natural or wildlife features of Cucumber Gulch. (Note: Only relevant sections of this ordinance are
shown in this report.)

8.4 Prohibitions within the PMA. The following are prohibited within the PMA, unless specifically
approved by the Town pursuant to Paragraph 14 of these Regulations:

C: Placement of material such as soil or gravel.

D: Removal or excavation of material such as soil, gravel or vegetation.

1. Construction of any water quality facility, including but not limited to detention ponds and
monitoring stations, unless located on non-wetland areas of the PMA as approved by the Town. Town
approval shall involve the consideration of an analysis of the least environmentally damaging
practicable alternative, including alternative sites outside the PMA. Approval by applicable
regulatory agencies must be obtained.
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11. Development Standards: Development within the District shall be subject to the following standards:

B. Modifications to the hydrology shall not result in detrimental effects to the resources of the District.

C. Where vegetation is proposed to be disturbed, the applicant shall submit a plan to restore such
areas in a manner that provides similar biological functions, based on percent cover and type of
species. Revegetation shall consist of native plants that are found in the vicinity.

F. Construction activities shall employ effective methods to minimize soil erosion and resulting

sedimentation, including silt fences, temporary re-vegetation of long-term construction sites,

avoidance of slopes greater than 30%, and management of storm water run-off, and other methods.
Following is the variance language from Ordinance 9, Series 2000, which adopted the PMA regulations:
14. Relief Procedures.

A. The Planning Commission or Town Council may grant a variance, exception or waiver of any
requirement of these Regulations (collectively, “variance”) upon a written request by a developer or
owner of property subject to these Regulations. A variance shall be granted only upon finding that (a) a
strict application of these Regulations would, when regarded as a whole, result in compensable taking
of the property, or (b) the purposes of these Regulations will be adequately served by an alternative
proposal or requirement (including any required mitigation, which shall be within the District), and
(i) the granting of the variance will not result in a substantial degradation of the natural and wildlife
features of Cucumber Gulch, and (ii) there is no other practical alternative. No variance by itself or in
combination with other variances shall have the effect of nullifying the intent and purpose of these
Regulations. Section 9-1-11 of the Breckenridge Development Code is not applicable to the granting of
a variance under these Regulations. (Emphasis added.)

The applicants and agent anticipate minimal impacts to the PMA. Also, the proposed roadwork will not
impact ground water flows as the road is being raised from its current location.

The applicants are proposing the following mitigation efforts:

® Any roadway runoff will be captured in a series of drainage inlets and routed to the existing
subdivision detention and water quality pond across from One Ski Hill Place. Each inlet has a
sediment catching sump to remove heavier material.

e To protect any new grading, high-strength soil retention blankets will be placed on all steep
roadway embankments over any 2:1 slope.

e All unpaved, disturbed areas will be top-soiled, seeded with a mix suitable for Town of
Breckenridge standards including any permissible fertilizer, or soil conditioners to ensure
growth.

¢ During construction, silt fencing, aspen-curlex erosion logs, sediment traps, and temporary
mulch cover shall be employed. Other measures will be added at the direction of the Applicant’s
engineer or the Town Community Development, Streets, and Engineering Departments.

Staff believes that the proposal meets the criteria (A) of the Relief Procedures section as the Town
Engineer has collaborated on the proposed design, and has agreed that the proposed plan is the most
appropriate course of action for the protection of the wetlands in the upper Cucumber Gulch. Also,
under subsection (i) the granting of the variance will not result in substantial degradation of the natural

-113-



and wildlife features and the granting of the variance will not nullify the intent and purpose of the
Cucumber Gulch regulation.

Drainage (27/A & 27/R): Currently, there are no improvements along Ski Hill Road to protect the PMA
from snow stacking or simple drainage off the paving into Cucumber Gulch. The improvements to Ski
Hill Road will incorporate an increased setback for snow stacking, a 3-foot wide concrete drainage pan
to route water, and a guardrail. Water will be directed to retaining pond infrastructure before entering the
PMA. Staff is supportive of these improvements.
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Erosion Control: Best Management Practices will be utilized in this project. Measures will include
temporary diversion of water flows, installation silt fencing, aspen-curlex erosion logs and installation of
effective revegetation. Erosion control measures have been reviewed and are supported by the Town
Engineering Department.

We also note that all construction activity, material and machinery shall be located and utilized outside
the PMA boundary, including placement of the retaining wall. This work must be performed from
above, outside the PMA. This has been added as a Condition of Approval.

9-1-19-5R: Policy 5 (Relative) Architectural Compatibility: Retaining wall finish: The new
retaining wall will vary in height from 2-feet to 18-feet at the tallest point. The finish of the concrete
retaining wall was presented in association with the development review for Grand Colorado at Peak 8 —
East Building (PL-2015-0215). The retaining wall along the north side of Ski Hill Road will be finished
to match the existing retaining walls in the area with vertical form-liner and color to match. Staff has no
concerns. The finish was approved as part of that permit.
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The approved retaining wall finish is similar to that constructed in Glenwood Canyon:

Point Analysis (Section: 9-1-17-3): Staff finds no reason to assign positive or negative points under any
Relative policies of the Development Code. We find that the project meets all Absolute polices, with the
exception of Policy 2/A-Land Use as it relates to the Cucumber Gulch Overlay Protection District, for
which this variance is requested.

Staff Recommendation

Staff finds that the proposal meets the requirements for a variance from the Preventive Management
Area of the Cucumber Gulch Overlay Protection District, and recommends that the Planning
Commission approve the Ski Hill Road at Peak 8 Reconstruction Cucumber Gulch Preserve
Preventative Maintenance Area (PMA) Variance (PL-2016-0082) along with the attached Findings and
Conditions.
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TOWN OF BRECKENRIDGE

Ski Hill Road at Peak 8 Reconstruction

Cucumber Gulch Preserve Preventative Maintenance Area (PMA) Variance

A portion of Ski Hill Road right of way at the base of Peak 8, abutting 1521, 1595, and 1627 Ski Hill Road
PL-2016-0082

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends the Planning Commission approve this application with
the following findings and conditions.

FINDINGS

1. The proposed project is in accord with the Development Code and does not propose any prohibited
use.

2. The project will not have a significant adverse environmental impact or demonstrative negative
aesthetic effect.

3. All feasible measures mitigating adverse environmental impacts have been included, and there are
no economically feasible alternatives which would have less adverse environmental impact.

4. This approval is based on the staff report dated April 6, 2016 and findings made by the Planning
Commission with respect to the project. The project was approved based on the proposed design of
the project and the acceptance of these terms and conditions imposed.

5. The terms of approval include representations made by in writing or plans submitted, and at the
hearing on the project held on April 19, 2016 as to the nature of the project. In addition to
Commission minutes, the meetings of the Commission are tape recorded.

6. The issues involved in the proposed project are such that no useful purpose would be served by
requiring two separate hearings.

VARIANCE FINDINGS

1. Policy 2 (Absolute) of Section 9-1-19 of the Development Code (“Policy 2 (Absolute))” provides,
in pertinent party, as follows:

Land Use Guidelines have been adopted for the Town and surrounding areas by the
Breckenridge Town Council. To promote the health, safety and general welfare of the
community, all developments shall be reviewed against the Land Use Guidelines and,
where applicable, an approved master plan. Each development located within the
boundaries of the . . . Cucumber Gulch protection overlay district as defined in the Land
Use Guidelines shall comply with all of the regulations applicable to such overlay district.

2. The property that is the subject of this Application is located within the Cucumber Gulch Overlay
Protection District (the “Cucumber Gulch Overlay District”).

3. Because the property that is the subject of this Application is located within the Cucumber Gulch

Overlay District, Policy 2 (Absolute) requires the proposal to comply with all of the regulations
applicable to the Cucumber Gulch Overlay District.
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4.

10.

11.

The Town’s regulations that are applicable to development proposed within the Cucumber Gulch
Overlay District are contained in Ordinance No. 9, Series 2000, entitled “An Ordinance Amending
the Town of Breckenridge Land Use Guidelines By Establishing The Cucumber Gulch Overlay
Protection District; and Making Amendments to the Breckenridge Development Code Related
Thereto”, adopted by the Town Council of the Town of Breckenridge on February 22, 2000. Such
regulations are currently in full force and effect, and are referred to in this document as the
“Cucumber Gulch Regulations.” Although the Cucumber Gulch Regulations have been
amended since they were adopted in 2000, none of the amendments are relevant to this variance
request.

. In addition to being located within the Cucumber Gulch Overlay District, the property that is the

subject of this Application is located within the “Preventive Management Area (PMA)” as defined
and described in the Cucumber Gulch Regulations.

Section 8.4 of the Cucumber Gulch Regulations provide, in pertinent part, as follows:

8.4 Prohibitions Within the PMA. The following are prohibited within the PMA, unless
specifically approved by the Town pursuant to Paragraph 14 of these Regulations:

C. Placement of material such as soil or gravel.

D. Removal or excavation of material such as soil, gravel or vegetation

K. Construction of any water quality facility, including, but not limited to detention ponds and
monitoring stations, unless located on non-wetland areas of the PMA as approved by the Town.
Town approval shall involve the consideration of an analysis of the least environmentally
damaging practicable alternative, including alternative sites outside the PMA. Approval by
applicable regulatory agencies must be obtained.

The applicant seeks a variance from the prohibitions of Sections 8.4 (C), (D, and (B - C&F) of the
Cucumber Gulch Regulations in order to reconstruct a portion of Ski Hill Road.

All required notice with respect to the hearing on the applicant’s request for a variance has been
given as required by the Development Code.

An absolute policy is defined by Section 9-1-5 of the Town’s Development Code (Chapter 1 of
Title 9 of the Breckenridge Town Code) as “a policy which, unless irrelevant to the development,
must be implemented for a permit to be issued. The policies are described in section 9-1-19 of this
chapter.”

By virtue of their inclusion in Policy 2 (Absolute) the Cucumber Gulch Regulations are treated as
an absolute policy.

The Application does not comply with the prohibitions of Sections 8.4 (C), (D), and (K) of the
Cucumber Gulch Regulations. Therefore, unless a variance is granted with respect to the
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12.

13.

14.

15.

requirements of such regulations, the Application will have to be denied pursuant to Section 9-1-
18-2(E)(5) of the Development Code. (“If the proposed development does not implement all
affected absolute policies (subject to variance) . . . the Planning Commission shall deny the
permit.”)

Paragraph 14(A) of the Cucumber Gulch Regulations, entitled “Relief Procedures”, sets forth
additional special rules for the granting of a variance from the provisions of the Cucumber Gulch
Regulations. The normal variance procedures and requirements of the Development Code do not
apply to the consideration and approval of a variance request under the Cucumber Gulch
Regulations.

Paragraph 14 (A) Relief Procedures of the Cucumber Gulch Overlay Protection District ordinance
provides, in pertinent part, as follows:

A. The Planning Commission . . . may grant a variance, exception or waiver of any
requirement of these Regulations (collectively, “variance”) upon a written request by a
developer or owner of property subject to these Regulations.” A variance shall be
granted only upon finding that . . . (b) the purposes of these Regulations will be
adequately served by an alternative proposal or requirement (including any required
mitigation, which shall be within the District), and (i) the granting of the variance will
not result in a substantial degradation of the natural and wildlife features of Cucumber
Gulch, and (i1) there is no other practical alternative. No variance by itself or in
combination with other variances shall have the effect of nullifying the intent and
purpose of these Regulations. Section 9-1-11 of the Breckenridge Development Code
is not applicable to the granting of a variance under these Regulations.”

Town of Breckenridge Engineering Staff has reviewed the application and determined that
the proposed reconstruction of Ski Hill Road and resulting infrastructure will benefit the
health of the Cucumber Gulch.

The Planning Commission has received and considered the evidence submitted in connection with
the applicant’s request for a variance; and based upon such evidence makes the following findings
as required by the Paragraph 14 of the Cucumber Gulch Regulations:

A. The purposes of the Cucumber Gulch Regulations will be adequately served by the applicant’s
proposal as described in the Application.

Reason/Factual Basis for Finding: The purposes of the Cucumber Gulch Regulations are to
protect the health, safety and welfare of the community, and to protect the open space and habitat
values of Cucumber Gulch. The applicant’s proposal will further the purposes of the Cucumber
Gulch Regulations by protecting wetland function in the area.

B. The granting of the requested variance will not result in substantial degradation of the natural
and wildlife features of Cucumber Gulch.

Reason/Factual Basis for Finding: The applicant has proposed a series of Best Management
Practices during the implementation of this project and ongoing maintenance. These include
erosion control methods, use of native seed mix, and use of biodegradable fabrics to ensure
adequate native revegetation in the area.
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C. There are no other practical alternatives to those proposed by the Applicant in the Application.

Reason/Factual Basis for Finding: There are no practical alternatives to the applicant’s proposal.
The alternative measures outlined in the staff report will not achieve the desired outcome.

D. The variance sought by the Application, either by itself or in combination with other variances,
will not have the effect of nullifying the intent and purpose of the Cucumber Gulch Regulations.

Reason/Factual Basis for Finding: This variance will not have the effect of nullifying the intent
and purpose of the Cucumber Gulch Regulations. The regulations will remain in effect, and the
proposed project is expected to have a positive effect on the community, public health, and
welfare of wildlife in Cucumber Gulch.

The granting of a variance from Section 8.4 will in no way relieve the applicant from complying with all
of the Development Standards and Best Management Practices provided for in Sections 11 and 12 of the
PMA regulations. In addition, a Declaration of Restrictive Covenants for Boreal Toad Protection was
recorded on June 17, 1999 at Reception No. 598534 and contains restrictions similar to, but not as broad
as the Development Standards and Best Management Practices which the applicant must comply with.

Accordingly, the applicant’s request for a variance from the prohibitions of Sections 8.4(C), 8.4(D), and
8.4(K) of the Cucumber Gulch Regulations in order construct an infiltration gallery as described in the
application is GRANTED with the conditions set forth below, and the application is determined to
comply with the requirements of Policy 2 (Absolute) of the Development Code.

CONDITIONS

1. This permit does not become effective, and the project may not be commenced, unless and until the
applicant accepts the preceding findings and following conditions.

2. [If'the terms and conditions of the approval are violated, the Town, in addition to criminal and civil
judicial proceedings, may, if appropriate, issue a stop order requiring the cessation of work, revoke
this permit, require removal of any improvements made in reliance upon this permit with costs to
constitute a lien on the property and/or restoration of the property.

3. This permit expires three years from date of issuance, on April 26, 2019 unless substantial construc-
tion pursuant thereto has taken place.

4. The terms and conditions of this permit are in compliance with the statements of the staff made on
the evidentiary forms and policy analysis forms.

5. Applicant’s contractor, wetlands consultant and/or Town Staff shall inspect all erosion control
features as necessary during the period of onsite work for this project. In addition, after
completion of the project, all erosion control features shall be inspected after each significant rain
event through the spring of 2017.

6. The applicant shall comply with all of the Development Standards and Best Management Practices
provided for in Sections 11 and 12 of the PMA regulations.

7. Applicant shall conform to the Construction and Maintenance Plan submitted with the application,
except as the Town deems necessary to modify for the purpose of protection of the PMA.
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Any drilling or channelization of overflow locations should be monitored and repaired to prevent
erosion and sedimentation.

All construction activity, material and machinery shall be located and utilized outside the PMA
boundary.

PRIOR TO START OF CONSTRUCTION

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

Applicant shall submit and obtain approval from the Town Engineer of final drainage, grading,
utility, and erosion control plans.

Applicant shall submit and obtain approval from the engineering Department for a Site
Improvements Agreement in association with this permit.

Applicant shall obtain approval from the Town of any seed mixes and fertilizers used in association
with this permit.

Applicant shall enter into a Construction Agreement with the Town which details bonding and
guarantee requirements and project completion dates.

Applicant shall install erosion control measures on the downbhill side of disturbance areas, in a
manner acceptable to the Town Engineer. An on-site inspection shall be conducted.

Town shall document the existing condition of all roads and trails used to access the project site. If
damaged during construction, Applicant will be required to repair roads or trails to their condition as
existed prior to construction.

PRIOR TO ISSUANCE OF CERTIFICATE OF COMPLETION

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

Applicant shall revegetate all disturbed areas where revegetation is called for, utilizing “Forest seed
mix”’ from the Natural Resources Conservation Service in Kremmling, Colorado and flow-through
jute netting to improve vegetative success.

The project approved by this Permit must be constructed in accordance with the plans and
specifications, which were approved by the Town in connection with the Development Permit
application. Any material deviation from the approved plans and specifications as a modification
may result in the Town not issuing a Certificate of Compliance for the project, and/or other
appropriate legal action under the Town’s development regulations.

No Certificate of Compliance will be issued by the Town until: (i) all work done pursuant to this
permit is determined by the Town to be in compliance with the approved plans and specifications for
the project, and all applicable Town codes, ordinances and standards, and (ii) all conditions of
approval set forth in the Development Permit for this project have been properly satisfied.

All area disturbed during construction of this project shall be repaired by the applicant.

Future maintenance access by the Applicant will occur with permission of Town staff, who will
oversee the vehicular maintenance access and the scope of maintenance work required.
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